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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TR RS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SFK
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am honoured to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“SFK” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”
or “2021”).

For the Year, the total revenue of the Group decreased by 3.91% to
HK$3,624.51 million (2020: HK$3,772.12 million) and the Group
recorded a net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$17.43 million (2020: a net loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of 19.03 million).

During the Year, the Group has been awarded 7 new projects with a total
original contract sum of approximately HK$3,345 million (2020:
HK$1,933 million). The outstanding value of our ongoing projects as at
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$6.3 billion (2020: HK$5.3
billion), which comprise 10 projects for general building works and 17
projects for civil engineering works. After the Year, the Group has been
awarded two projects for general building works with a total original
contract sum of approximately HK$3.1 billion. As such, the outstanding
value of projects on hand is still maintained at a healthy level.

2021 was an unprecedentedly challenging year during which the
COVID-19 pandemic across the world has dampened the economic
situation. Although there are still many uncertainties on the road to
recovery, the Group is in the hope that the development of COVID-19
vaccines and the recent launch of mass vaccination around the world will
begin to signal the end of this pandemic and mark the beginning of
economic recovery from which the Group will benefit. Above all, with the
leadership of our professional team and the dedication of our united
employees, we believe the Group can overcome all difficulties and can
thrive.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation
to my fellow board members, management team, staff members,
suppliers, subcontractors, business partners and, most importantly, our

shareholders and customers for their continuous support to the Group.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share.

Chan Ki Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is principally engaged in construction and maintenance
projects in Hong Kong and construction projects in Macau under our
brand “SFK (¥7 #& /&)”. In addition, the Group provides other services,
which comprise mainly housing and property management services (such
as the provision of cleaning services and security management services),
fresh water and flush water maintenance services, sewage water
sampling services, electrical and mechanical engineering services and
building information modelling (“BIM”) services to real estates in Hong
Kong.

The Group is one of the few construction companies in Hong Kong that
are included in the List of Approved Contractors maintained by the Works
Branch with Group C status (unlimited value) in all five public works
categories. The Group is also one of the approved contractors to tender
for the Housing Authority’s new works contracts and maintenance
contracts of unlimited value. These are the highest grades in the
respective categories, which enable us to be capable and flexible in
acquiring or tendering for all kinds of Government and Housing
Authority’s construction and maintenance contracts for general building
and civil engineering works.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the Year decreased by 3.91% to HK$3,624.51
million (2020: HK$3,772.12 million). The Group recorded a net profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$17.43 million in
the Year (2020: a net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$19.03 million). The results for the Year were mainly due
to the combined effect of a mix of projects from our general building
works and civil engineering works undertaken during the Year, with the
major projects being outlined in the following sections.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W DT

Maijor projects awarded and undertaken in 2021 —EC-FREHtRAENEEER

During the Year, we were awarded 7 projects as a main contractor in ~ F R » IR EBAEAEE S (HEM7EEAB (2k
Hong Kong (out of which 5 and 2 are from the public sector and private B RXEZPIRFLEKBENIBE DBl ASEM2E)
sector, respectively), with total original contract sum of approximately — [R&] A K4EEEX) A3,345 BEBTT - TREIIKFE
HK$3,345 million. The table below sets out the summary of our REH#N—RIEFTRTATREZENFRSERME -
construction and maintenance projects for general building and civil

engineering works that were awarded during the Year:

Number of Total original
projects contract sum
HEHE RETE#HMBE
(approximate
HKS$'million)
(BMHBEEST)
Original contract sum at or above HK$500 milion  5EE T EWRETE L
G 3 3,112
Original contract sum below HK$500 million SEBTTATE2EET
but at or above HK$200 million A FBRETE &5 Nil f2& Nil 4
Original contract sum below HK$200 million 2{EAB LA TR 5,0008
but at or above HK$50 million BT LRETED
TR 1 193
Original contract sum less than HK$50 million 5,000 8B TTA THRRT
BRBHE 3 40
7 3,345
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, we had a total of 10 projects for general
building works and 17 projects for civil engineering works on hand. The
total original contract sum of these projects was approximately HK$12
billion. The outstanding value (defined as the difference between revenue
recognised and the original contract sum) of our ongoing projects as at
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$6.3 billion. The following table

BEE W kDT

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 BMFEHFEE10
EA—MRIEFTREEIRI7TELARTRER - 25HE
BRAIEHBRBHAI120EB L  —E-—F+=A
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sets forth the particulars of some of the sizeable construction and
maintenance projects for general building works and civil engineering

works awarded and undertaken by us as a main contractor and remained
ongoing as at 31 December 2021:

FT_A=+—ADEETNHD —REFT
BREARTIZENABZERREIRBFIS -

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2021
R&T R=B=-%
BRI ) HREE
BREHY £BAH IRER A E2 B
(approximate (approximate
HK$'million) HK$'million)
(BoBgET)  (HOREAET)
Site Formation and Infrastructure Works Civil engineering works Site formation and infrastructure works July 2021 409.0 137.2
for the Civil Engineering and TARTE for development at Kam Tin South, i
Development Department Yuen Long — Advance works
TATREREN DM TEN THABAEER BT TENER
ARREIR RIETE - AIETRE
Piers maintenance for the Civil Civil engineering works —  To carry out maintenance works for piers March 2022 150.1 67.6
Engineering and Development maintenance project BERBRENTREIR S|
Department TAIR - REEE
TRTEARENERRESH
Design and Construction managed by General building works —  Design and Construction of Minor Works to August 2022 531.1 2148
the Architectural Services Department maintenance project the Government and Subvented Properties “E--FN\A
BREETENTIRRESR —REFIE - REEB  for Architectural Services Department —
RETR New Territories and Outlying Islands
(North)
REEZHEMBTRIEREBRIEN
NI TRRARG RBETIE -
MARES ()
Construction of Public Rental Housing General building works Construction of Public Rental Housing October 2022 3,740.0 785.4
Development and Subsidised Sale —fRiEFIE Development and Subsidised Sale Flats S
Flats Development of the Housing Development
Authority RARERERRAERAMNERE
FEZEELAAMLRERRHER BRAERETR
EYHERRRRABIRETR
Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats General building works Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats QOctober 2022 1,911.0 767.2
Development of the Housing Authorty ~ —RIEF T2 EPHERERETE S

EEZECEMNERRLEHE
BETR

=

FHRIFTEAEAEREEERAA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W DT

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2021
R&T R-B=-%
BHRT RIT&H HREE
BRER Ed PN IREE A &8 BERNhE
(approximate (approximate
HK$'million) HK$'million)
(BoagEn)  (HOBEEAT)
Management and maintenance of roads Civil engineering works —  Management and maintenance of public March 2024 482.6 194.9
in Kowloon East for the Highways maintenance project roads, including associated slopes, “Z-WE=AR
Department TARIE - REEE highway structures, tunnels and
RENEERRLRENEREHR landscaping, and minor improvement
works in Kowloon East but excluding
Expressways and High Speed Roads
EENRENERNDLER (REDAKR
BIRERRIN)  DEEITRBNAR -
EREEY  BiE  BRREN MR
BRYETR
Electrical and Mechanical Works for Civil engineering works Electrical and Mechanical works for sewage May 2024 557.6 50.2
Sewage Treatment Faciliies of the TARTR treatment faciliies in Shek Wu Hui ZZZMERA
Drainage Services Department Effluent Polishing Plant
ERBTKREREHHRETR (Main Works Stage 1)
IKEERBAEELR — AlERK
RiB(EHRTRE—RR)
Three Runway System Project for the General building works Building and Givil Works for New Integrated September 2024 440.7 208.1
Hong Kong International Airport —REFIR Airport Centres —“Z-WFNA
EEABEBRERRATRAY SRR AL LHEFREATE
Infrastructure Works for Non-public General building works Non-public Housing Facilities — December 2024 1,497.0 124.5
Housing Facilities of Hong Kong —REFIR Transport Infrastructure Works, —E-ME+ZAR
Housing Authority Water Feature Park and Landscaped
EEREZERFRERERBNER Walk
R LR FRERERIE — EHAWRN
T EKRERXLERAE
Maintenance of properties managed by General building works —  Alterations, additions, maintenance March 2025 8304 114.4
the Architectural Services Department maintenance project and repair of buildings and lands “2-1%=R
RELEERNMERBRE —ffiEFI2 - REEE  and other properties in Hong Kong
Island Western, Southern and
Lantau Islands for which
Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) is responsible
RREZ(MEEHE)REMES
AR ERABLEET
TR EMEETRE M
REREBIR
Maintenance of properties managed by General building works —  Alterations, additions, maintenance March 2025 784.8 934
the Architectural Services Department maintenance project and repair of buildings and lands “E-RF=A

REEZEROMERMARE

—RETIE - REEE

and other properties in Tuen Mun

and Yuen Long for which

Architectural Services Department

(Property Services Branch) is responsible
RREZ (MESHE) BENERAR

THNET DR EMMEET

MR REREEIR

* The actual contract completion date was postponed and the project was still ongoing *

as at 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE @ RO

Major projects completed in 2021

—EC-FERMNEEEB

Completed projects refer to projects for which we have received the SRIEEHERFIEMEBESKE T ITEREZHALD
completion certificates from the respective customers or terms of year of  FHID @RMWIER - F - AEBEAARE S H T
the contracts expired. Details of the major projects completed by the REIFBIEEFFNT ¢

Group as a main contractor during the Year are as follows:

Revenue
recognised
during the

Original Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works contract period  contract sum 2021
R-B=-%
RITEH HREE
BERER B3 R IREE FHEEE Ex BNk
(approximate (approximate
HKS$'milion) HKS$'milion)
(BasERT)  (BAEEET)
Maintenance of properties managed by General building works —  Alterations, additions, maintenance and repair April 2017 to 1,471.8 170.0
the Architectural Services Department maintenance project of buildings and lands and properties in March 2021
RELZERNNERERE —fREFIR —REBEE () Hong Kong lsland Eastern and Outlying “EtFNAZE
Islands (South}; and (i) Hong Kong Island “E--%=f
Western, Southern and Lantau Island for
which Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) is responsible
REEZ(MEEHR)BEN(EERER
B5(M): kESER  BER
ABWET - THRMERITHE
M - REREBIE
Maintenance of properties managed by General building works —  Maintenance, improvement and vacant flat October 2018 to 863.2 206.4
the Housing Authority maintenance project refurbishment for properties in September 2021
BREZESEENYERERE —REFIR - RAER () Wong Tai Sin, Tsing Yi and Tsuen Wan; “E-\Ft+Rz
and (i) Hong Kong Island & Islands “Z-FNA

ROEA BREZER: R)ESR
HERMMRRHRE HER
TEBUPHIR

=

FHRIFTEAEAEREEERAA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

A majority of our revenue is generated from our general building and civil
engineering works. During the Year, the revenue attributable to our
general building and civil engineering business amounted to HK$2,787.28
million and HK$608.97 million (2020: HK$2,908.81 million and
HK$648.80 million), respectively, representing approximately 76.90% and
16.80% (2020: 77.11% and 17.20%), respectively, of the total revenue of
the Group for the Year.

During the Year, other than general building and civil engineering works,
we also provided other services which comprised mainly housing and
property management services (such as the provision of cleaning services
and security management services), fresh water and flush water
maintenance services, sewage water sampling services, electrical and
mechanical engineering services and BIM services to real estates in Hong
Kong. Revenue attributable to these other services amounted to
approximately 6.30% of the total revenue of the Group for the Year (2020:
5.69%).

Award of contracts after the Year

The Group has been awarded the following contracts for general building
works after the Year and the table below sets forth the particulars of the
projects:

BIMARE DR E —BEFRTATIE - £/
—BEFRIARIREBNEED R AF2,787288 8
BTN 60897 AEETL(ZE-FF :2,908.81 A&
BT 64880 E BB L) DA FARNEE L
W2 4976.90% % 16.80% ( — T T F : 77.11% K&
17.20%) °

FR - B—REFRTARTIZI - B2 EH AR
% XEeEREENEREREEERMESE
RS (2B 2RI RIR L BRI » KK RBIKIR
BR - J5KEERY - #EIRRRBE KBIMARTS ©
H At RIS FEAG W (G F A S E B 416.30% (=
T-TF 1 5.69%) °

REFERBROEH

RAFER  AEECESUA T -REFTIERLY
TR#FIAB WIS

Original
Project type Business segment Scope of works Contract period contract sum
HERR £B28 IR#EE RNH CHEEEE
(approximate
HKS milion)
(B4
BEET)
Maintenance of properties managed by the General building works — Maintenance, improvement and April 2022 to 478
Housing Authority maintenance project vacant flat refurbishment for March 2025
REEZELEENNERLRE —REFIE - REER properties managed by the Housing  —ZE-—#AZE
Authority in Tuen Mun and “T-hFZR
Yuen Long
REEZERERUNEMR
TRRMERERE  BERZE
BRUEHIR
Construction of public housing developments General building works Construction of public March 2022 to 2,624
of Kai Tak Sites 2B5 and 2B6 —REFIRE housing developments January 2026
HRAENE B RBOALEEERIAE ERNAREERER Sy
—Z-E-R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our commitment to safety, quality and environment

The Board is of the view that the continued success of our business
primarily depends on our ability to meet our customers’ requirements,
particularly in respect of safety, quality and environmental aspects. The
Group has established a set of quality assurance measures and has
committed to high safety standard and environmental impact control.
Through the systematic and effective control of the Group’s operations
and monitoring procedures and control over its subcontractors,
compliance with safety, quality and environmental requirements can be
further assured, and such that non-conformance, environmental incidents
and liability can be eliminated or reduced.

The Group has been accredited and continuously re-accredited with
[ISO9001, ISO14001, ISO45001 and ISO50001 certifications. The Board
believes that these certifications will enhance our public image, credibility
and customers’ confidence in the Group. In recent years, more and more
tenders have included the requirements of ISO9001, ISO14001 and
ISO45001 certifications and our certified status will bring us more
business opportunities and uphold our competitiveness.

For more details on our performance in safety, quality and environmental
aspects, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) on pages 34 to 91 of this annual report.

Effective cost control and savings measures

Our management has been flexible and will continue to do so in deploying
resources with reference to the stage of completion of various ongoing
projects in order to capture business opportunities and to optimise the
allocation of resources.

Given our wide diversity of works, we are able to implement a centralised
resources sourcing and allocation system which allows us to reduce
costs by making bulk purchases and maximise utilisation of resources,
and a customised enterprise resources planning programme to monitor
the cost in real time.

We maintain good and long-standing relationships with our
subcontractors. By having long-standing relationships with our
subcontractors, we can make comprehensive assessment of our
subcontractors over years so as to ensure the quality of works in the long
run. Our relationships with these subcontractors also obviate the need for
keeping a large number of workers under permanent employment of the
Group, thereby giving us the feasibility to deploy our resources more cost
effectively without compromising our quality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIBEH R D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately HK$147.61 million, or
approximately 3.91%, from HK$3,772.12 million for 2020 to
HK$3,624.51 million for 2021. The decrease in our revenue was mainly
due to the decrease in our revenue from general building business of
HK$121.53 million and civil engineering business of HK$39.83 million.

Revenue from general building business decreased by approximately
HK$121.53 million, or approximately 4.18%, from HK$2,908.81 million
for 2020 to HK$2,787.28 million for 2021. The decrease in revenue
between years was primarily due to the completion of certain general
building contracts, including mainly the contracts for maintenance of
properties managed by the Architectural Services Department and the
Housing Authority, respectively. This was partly offset by the increase in
revenue between years in accordance with the work progress of other
general building contracts, including the construction of subsidised sale
flats development for the Housing Authority.

Revenue from civil engineering business decreased by approximately
HK$39.83 million, or approximately 6.14%, from HK$648.80 million for
2020 to HK$608.97 million for 2021. The decrease in revenue between
years was primarily due to the reduction in revenue in accordance with
the work progress of certain civil engineering contracts, including the
management and maintenance of roads in Kowloon East for the
Highways Department.

Revenue from other services (which mainly comprised housing and
property management services, fresh water and fresh water maintenance
services, sewage water sampling services, electrical and mechanical
engineering services and BIM services) for 2021 amounted to HK$228.26
million (2020: HK$214.51 million), representing 6.30% (2020: 5.69%) of
the total revenue of the Group.

Our business remained to be primarily focusing in the Hong Kong market
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit/(loss) and gross profit margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of HK$85.71 million for the Year, as
compared with a gross loss of HK$39.92 million for 2020. The gross loss
in the previous year was mainly due to the combined effect of losses
recorded for two of our civil engineering contracts totalling HK$104.24
million, whereas such contracts did not record a loss of similar level in
2021. Excluding the loss recorded for these two projects in 2020, there
was an increase of approximately HK$21.39 million or 33.26% in our
overall gross profit between years. This was mainly attributable to the
relative control of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) epidemic in Hong
Kong and the improvement of market conditions in Hong Kong during
2021 which had a positive impact on the progress of existing projects.
This led to an increase in revenue and a decrease in project overhead
costs and subcontracting costs. In addition, there was an increase in
contributions from our ongoing projects between years in accordance
with the work progress, leading to an increase in gross profit between
years.

The Group recorded a gross profit margin of 2.36% for 2021, compared
to a gross profit margin of -1.06% for 2020. The positive gross profit
margin in the current year was mainly attributable to the relative control of
the COVID-19 epidemic in Hong Kong and the improvement of market
conditions in Hong Kong. In addition, there was better cost control which
resulted in higher gross profit margin when compared to that of the
previous year.

Other revenue

Other revenue mainly consisted of interest income and sundry income.
Our other revenue for 2021 amounted to HK$3.64 million, compared to
that of $95.85 million in 2020. The other revenue in 2020 comprised a
one-off lump sum government subsidy of approximately HK$91.98 million
under the Employment Support Scheme. Excluding the government
subsidy in 2020, our other revenue for 2021 of HK$3.64 million was
about in line with that of HK$3.86 million for 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIBEH R D

Other net gain/(loss)

Our other net gain for 2021 amounted to HK$1.37 million, compared to
our other net loss of HK$7.43 million for 2020. The difference was mainly
because balance in the previous year included a net realised and
unrealised loss of HK$7.73 million on interest rate swaps. Excluding this
item in 2020, the difference between years was mainly attributable to the
inclusion of a HK$1.94 million gain on disposal of a subsidiary in the
current year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consisted of staff costs and rental
charges. Our administrative expenses for 2021 amounted to HK$65.44
million, compared to that of HK$78.17 million for 2020. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs between years.

Finance costs

Our finance costs for 2021 amounted to HK$2.41 million, compared to
that of HK$12.05 million for 2020. The decrease mainly attributable to the
improvement of the liquidity position and the decrease in bank
borrowings of the Group during the Year.

Share of results of a joint venture

Our share of results of a joint venture for 2021 was a net loss of HK$2.30
million, compared to that of a net profit of HK$1.34 million for 2020. The
net loss recorded in 2021 was mainly due to the increase in
administrative expenses recorded for the joint venture between years.

Income tax

Our income tax for 2021 was HK$2.59 million, compared to a credit of
HK$21.41 million for 2020. The net credit balance in 2020 was mainly
explained by the recognition of deferred tax from tax losses in certain
subsidiaries’ books that are expected to be utilised in future years.

Profit/(loss) attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company

Based on the above factors, there was a profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company amounting to HK$17.43 million for 2021,
compared to a loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$18.65 million for 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following are some principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
which may materially adversely affect its business, financial condition or
results of operations:

The COVID-19 pandemic presents challenges to our
business

From December 2019, the outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in
mandatory quarantines, lockdown, closures of businesses and facilities
and travel restrictions imposed by the government of Hong Kong,
mainland China and other countries around the world. The COVID-19
pandemic, as well as the restrictions imposed and actions taken by the
governments and society as a whole in response to the COVID-19
pandemic, could present significant challenges and uncertainties to the
economy and our business as well. Since the outbreak, the business and
operation of the Group have been adversely affected. While the duration
and the potential long term impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
global economy and our business in particular may be difficult to assess
or predict, the pandemic has resulted in, and may continue to result in,
significant disruption of global financial markets, which may reduce our
ability to access capital or our customers’ ability to pay us, and could in
turn negatively affect our liquidity. There remains substantial uncertainties
about the dynamic of the COVID-19 pandemic, which may have potential
continuing impacts on the Group for subsequent periods if the pandemic
and the resulting disruption were to extend over a prolonged period of
time. Our Directors will continue to assess the impact of the COVID-19
on our Group’s operation and financial performance and closely monitor
our Group’s exposure to the risks and uncertainties in connection with
the epidemic. Subject to the development of the outbreak of COVID-19
in Hong Kong and around the world, we will take appropriate measures
as necessary and inform our Shareholders and potential investors as and
when necessary.

Highly regulated industry

The construction industry is a highly regulated industry and our business is
subject to various government regulations. In accordance with the laws of
Hong Kong and Macau, the Group is required to obtain or maintain certain
registrations, licences and/or certifications to operate its business. All such
registrations, licences and/or certificates are granted/renewed and
maintained upon the satisfactory compliance by the Group with, among
others, the applicable criteria set by the relevant government departments
or organisations. Such criteria may include the maintenance of certain
financial criteria including the working capital level, the adequacy of our
management structure and the appropriate experience and qualification of
the personnel of the Group. These registrations, licences and/or certificates
may only be valid for a limited period of time and may be subject to
periodic reviews and renewal by government authorities and relevant
organisations. In addition, the standards of compliance required in relation
thereto may from time to time be subject to changes without substantial
advance notice.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

The loss of or failure to obtain or renew or a suspension of any or all of
the Group’s registrations, licences and/or certifications could materially
and adversely affect the business of the Group.

Reliance on the contracts granted by the Hong Kong
Government

The Hong Kong Government has been and is expected to continue to be
the Group’s largest customer. If there is any decrease or delay in the
spending of the Hong Kong Government in the construction industry or
any revocation or suspension of the licences, the business, results of
operations and financial positions of the Group may be adversely
affected.

Competitive tendering progress and the making of
estimates

The business of the Group operates on a non-recurring and project-by-
project basis. We have no long-term commitments with our customers,
but rely on successful tenders that determine the award of construction
contracts. The number of contracts awarded to the Group, therefore,
may vary from time to time. Upon completion of its contracts on hand,
the Group’s financial performance may adversely be affected if the Group
is unable to secure new tenders or obtain new contract awards with
comparable contract sums or at all.

Further, in the tendering process, the Group has to estimate construction
time and costs in order to determine the tender price. However the actual
implementation of a project may not accord with such estimation due to
cost overruns and/or other related construction risks. If our estimates of
the overall risks, revenue or costs prove inaccurate, the Group will
experience lower profitability or even make losses on contracts, which
could materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.

Uncertainty in construction progress

The Group relies on subcontractors to implement the construction
contracts and there is no assurance that these subcontractors will be
able to continue providing services to us at fees acceptable to us or our
relationship with them could be maintained in the future. In the event that
any of our principal subcontractors are unable to provide the required
services to the Group or their cost for providing the required services
increase substantially, the Group’s business, results of operations,
profitability and liquidity may be adversely affected.

Further, there may be delays or disruptions to our works due to
unforeseen circumstances that are beyond our control. If the Group fails
to complete works by the relevant deadlines as stipulated in the
contracts, it may be required to compensate its customers and the
Group’s business, results of operations, profitability and liquidity may be
adversely affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Uncertain external factors

Most of our operations are currently located in Hong Kong. Although the
construction industry in Hong Kong has been growing in view of the
strong housing needs and government large infrastructure projects, the
future growth and prospect will largely depend on the continued
prosperity of the property market and the continued availability of major
construction projects.

For more details of the above principal risks and uncertainties and other
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer to the section
headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
November 2015 (the “Prospectus”).

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (“KPIS”) WITH
THE STRATEGY OF THE GROUP

The Group sets a number of KPIs to support the delivery of its strategies
with its performance, including the followings, and others in respect of
environment, social and governance matters which are discussed in the
ESG Report.

KPIs
EIRRRER
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K
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Maximise value for the
Shareholders

RERAEZKEE

Gross profit margin
= 2.36% (2020: -1.06%)
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Despite intense competition across the construction
market and impact from the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic, the Group managed to turnaround from loss
to profit in the Year by controlling our costs effectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

Strategy KPlIs Performance

g FERRER E3:)

Improve the Group’s liquidity Net cash used in operating activities The Group adopts a policy to regularly monitor the
NEXREEREBES = HK$18.31 million liquidity requirements of the Group and the Group’s

(2020: net cash generated from
operating activities
HK$493.11 million)

KRBT &5
=1831BEHET
(ZZ_ZF  KEFRPMELEN
REFEEAR N BESET)

Cash and bank balances (excluding
pledged deposits)
= HK$236.84 million
(2020: HK$449.83 million)

e RIRITHER (P REEEFER)
=236.84 B EHE T
(ZZ =T : 440838 8F7T)

Strive for the “zero harm” Accident rate
safety goal = 7.49 per 1,000 workers
BhERIZEE]IX2ER (2020: 10.04 per 1,000 workers)
BONEIE

“BFELIAT49
(ZZ-ZF  5TH/RIA10.04)

OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The customers of the Group are divided into two categories: (a) public
sector including Hong Kong Government and its related organisations
and institutional bodies; and (b) the private sector. During the Year, all
projects of the Group were secured by tendering. The Group maintains
good relationships with its customers, and have regular contacts with
customers, architects and other consultants in the construction industry
to keep abreast of market development and potential business
opportunities.
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compliance with lending covenants so as to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet the liquidity requirements of the
Group in the short and longer term.
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During the Year, the Group has put adequate resources
and effort to uphold and improve its safety management
system in order to reduce its risks related to safety
issues. Our accident rate for 2021 was 7.49 per 1,000
workers which remains low and is significantly lower
than the construction industry average, of which the
industry average for 2020 was 26.1 per 1,000 workers
according to the Labour Department of Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Suppliers

The major purchases required for our business are construction materials,
which mainly consist of concrete and steel sourced mainly in Hong Kong.
Generally, the Group selects suppliers from a pre-qualified list of suppliers
based on their past performances and capacities to comply with
specified project requirements. Only those suppliers on our approved list
are invited to submit quotations or tenders. We have maintained good
and long standing working relationship with our suppliers and some of
our suppliers have been working with us for over 20 years. We do not
foresee any difficulties in sourcing materials in the future.

Subcontractors

The Group generally acts as the main contractor and will engage or
outsource to subcontractors to carry out certain part of the works. While
the Group has not entered into any long-term agreement with its
subcontractors, it engages them on project basis. Nevertheless, the
Directors believe that the Group has maintained good relationships with
its subcontractors. Some of the subcontractors have been working with
the Group for over ten years and we had not experienced any significant
disruption in the provision of works by our subcontractors. With the
relatively large pool of approved subcontractors in the Group’s pre-
qualified list, we do not foresee any difficulties in finding substitute
subcontractors, if necessary.

Employees and remuneration policy

The Group maintains a very stable and experienced management team
and an amicable long-term relationship with its employees as it is our
belief that our employees are important assets to the Group. As at 31
December 2021, the Group has 1,571 employees in Hong Kong and
Macau of which 1,447 were full-time employees and 124 were part-time
employees. The Group’s total remuneration for 2021 was approximately
HK$476 million. The Directors recognise the importance of attracting and
retaining staff. In order to promote employee loyalty and retention, the
Group provides technical and operational on-job trainings to its
employees covering various aspects of its operations including contract
law, and workplace and occupational safety. The Directors consider that
the Group has maintained good relationship with its employees. The
Group has not experienced any strikes, work stoppages or labour
disputes which affected its operations during the Year. The Directors also
consider that the relationship and co-operation between the management
team and the employees have been good during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

The Group entered into separate labour contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong Kong and Macau.
The remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries,
medical benefits and bonus. Share options may also be granted to
eligible employees. In general, the Group determines salaries of its
employees based on each employee’s qualification, position, seniority
and experience.

More information concerning our customers, suppliers, subcontractors
and employees are set out in the ESG Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Directors believe that it is essential for the Group to act as an
environmentally responsible contractor to meet the customers’ demands
in environmental protection and the expectation of the community for a
healthy living environment and in return it will ensure the healthy growth
and development of the business. The Group is committed to sustainable
construction and minimisation of any adverse impact on the environment
resulting from its business activities. In the course of delivery of its
services, the Group shall (i) focus on prevention of pollution, waste
minimisation and resource conservation as critical considerations within
our core management process; (i) comply with applicable legal
requirements and other requirements which relate to its environment
aspects; and (i) establish, implement and maintain the environmental
management system and strive for continual improvement in
environmental performance.

In order to comply with the applicable environmental protection
legislation, we have established an environmental management system in
accordance with 1SO14001:2015 international standards and were
awarded 1SO14001 certification in 2006. The Group has assigned
separate resources to implement its environment management system
and maintain its ISO14001 certification with an aim to reduce its risks
related to environmental issues. The Group promotes environment-
friendly construction worksites, install environmental facilities and put in
place environment control measures at our construction sites as
appropriate. In 2015, we were awarded 1ISO50001 certification for the
energy management systems of our head office and construction sites.

All along, the Group had a low number of environmental-related non-
compliance incidents. There was no conviction of violating the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in both 2020 and 2021. We will
continue to ensure implementation of our policy on environmental
management as mentioned above to avoid violation of applicable laws or
regulations in respect of environment.

Further disclosures on the environmental aspect are made in the ESG report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Group was fined for a total sum of HK$97,000 in
respect of 2 summonses for violation of certain regulations under the
Factories and Industrial Undertaking Ordinance (Cap. 59 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “F&IU Ordinance”) related to a routine inspection by
Labour Department. The Directors consider that the above matters
arising from the inspection were independent issues.

During the Year, save as disclosed above or otherwise in this annual
report, the Group has complied with all applicable laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and Macau in all material aspects for the business operation
of the Group. During the Year, the Group has also obtained all necessary
licenses, permits or certificates necessary to conduct its business
operation in Hong Kong, and has made the necessary registration and
obtained the necessary licenses to carry out its business in Macau.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the capital structure of the Group consisted of
equity of HK$375.59 million (2020: HK$397.59 million) and bank loans of
HK$82.12 million (2020: HK$200.42 million) as more particularly
described in the paragraph headed “Borrowings” below.

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with
working capital being financed by our operating cash flows and bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, our cash and cash equivalents
were HK$236.84 million (2020: HK$449.83 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the current ratio of the Group was 1.20 (2020:
1.17).

QOur principal uses of cash have been, and are expected to continue to
be, operational costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank loans, which are
repayable within one year, of approximately HK$82.12 million (2020:
HK$200.42 million). As at 31 December 2021, the bank loans bear
interest ranging from 1.69% to 1.98% (2020: 1.63% to 1.69%) per
annum. The decrease in bank loans between years was mainly due to
the sufficient internal resources available to finance the working capital of
the existing projects and hence a decrease in demand of bank loans. In
addition, the repayment of bank loans led to a decrease in bank interest
expenses which aligned with the Group’s strategy of controlling costs in
an effective way.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately HK$1,917 million
(2020: HK$2,540 million) of unutilised banking facilities in Hong Kong and
Macau (including loans, letter of credit and letter of guaranteed facilities).
All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulflment of certain
covenants as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. The Group remains in compliance with its loan
covenants during the Year.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 21.86% (2020:
50.41%), calculated based on the interest-bearing borrowings divided by
the total equity as at the respective year end.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of
HK$282.92 million (2020: HK$284.42 million).

The Board regularly reviewed the maturity analysis of the Group’s
contractual liabilities and concluded that the Group had no liquidity issue
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s capital expenditures primarily comprise purchase of plant
and equipment, such as motor vehicles and equipment, which were
funded, and are expected to continue to be funded, by internal resources
and cash flow generated from our operation. For the Year, the Group has
incurred HK$11.73 million (2020: HK$2.36 million) on acquiring items of
plant and equipment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The functional currency to which the Group’s operations and assets and
liabilities are denominated is the Hong Kong dollars. The Group has cash
balances that is denominated in the United States dollars, Renminbi and
British Pound. Given that the Hong Kong dollars are pegged with the
United States dollars, there is no currency risk exposure to the United
States dollars. The Board considers that the Group was not exposed to
significant foreign exchange risk. The Board will review the Group’s
foreign exchange risk and exposure from time to time.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES,
AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the Year and no future plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2021.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in the subsidiaries, a joint venture and joint
operations, the Group did not hold any significant investments during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W DT

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed below, the Group had no other financial guarantees
and contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021:

(@

24

As at 31 December 2021, approximately HK$280,579,000 (2020:
HK$271,757,000) of performance bonds were given by financial
institutions to the Group in favour of the Group’s customers as
security for the due performance and observance of the Group’s
obligation under the contracts entered into between the Group and
their customers. The Group has provided guarantees of the above
performance bonds. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory
performance to its customers to whom performance bonds have
been given, such customers may demand the financial institutions
to pay to them the sum or sums stipulated in such demand. The
Group will then become liable to compensate such financial
institutions accordingly. The performance bonds will be released
upon completion of the contract works.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company do
not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has provided guarantees of
HK$177,951,000 (2020: HK$141,544,000) representing a 50%
proportionate guarantee in respect of certain banking facilities of
HK$355,902,000 (2020: HK$283,087,000) granted to its joint
venture in Macau. The 50% proportionate facilities were utilised to
the extent of HK$124,979,000 (2020: HK$55,656,000), of which
amounts of HK$92,090,000 (2020: HK$51,044,000) represent
performance bonds given by financial institutions to the customers
of the joint venture.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
these guarantees as their fair values cannot be reliably measured
using observable market data and no transaction price was
incurred.

The subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in a number of
claims, lawsuits and potential claims relating to employee’s
compensation cases and personal injuries claims. The directors of
the Company considered that the possibility of any economic
outflow in settling the legal claims is remote as these claims are all
well covered by insurance. Accordingly, no provision for the
contingent liabilities in respect of these litigations is necessary, after
due consideration of each case.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(e) A subsidiary of the Group is defendant in several arbitration
proceedings relating to projects performed. With reference to legal
opinions obtained, the directors of the Company considered that
the possibility of any economic outflow in settling such arbitration
proceedings is remote. Accordingly, no provision for the contingent
liabilities in respect of such arbitration proceedings is necessary,
after due consideration of each case.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged deposits, amounting to
HK$20.11 million (2020: HK$20.11 million) and assignment of project
proceeds from certain construction contracts of the Group, the Group’s
joint operations and the Group’s joint venture to banks as security of
banking facilities (including bank loans and performance bonds). Pledged
deposits remained relatively stable between years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, our Group did not have any capital
commitments (2020: Nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

COVID-19 has caused significant adverse impact on local and global
economy which is expected to continue in 2022. As such, we expect that
contractors in Hong Kong, including the Group, will continue to have
pressure on profit margins. However, we believe that the Hong Kong
Government will take more relief measures to try to overcome the
challenges and to alleviate the financial burden suffered by the businesses
from the COVID-19 outbreak. Together with the Government’s continued
commitment and efforts in land development and provision of public
housing in Hong Kong, the Board remains confident of the Group’s future
development and will continue to build on our existing competitive
strengths to achieve our long term business objectives.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W DT

MAJOR PROJECTS COMPLETED IN 2021

—E_—FRAMNERTRHE

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions,
Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands and
Other Properties for which the ASD (Property Services
Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Hong
Kong Island Western, Southern and Lantau Island)

REEEWESKE) AENEEY - TR EMY
HETHE M2 REREBIENEBREN(E
NIETE : BEWE  BEEERAKEL)

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance
and Repair of Buildings and Lands and Other Properties for
which the ASD (Property Services Branch) is Responsible
(Designated Contract Area: Hong Kong Island Eastern and
Outlying Islands (South))

REXEEWESKE) AENEEY - T RAMYEE
THE NE RERESIENEHEN(EHNEEE:
EERERES (F))
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE @ RO

|| CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERREEHFERE

Construction of Public Rental Housing
Development Phases 1 & 2 and Subsidised
Sale Flats Development at Diamond Hill
Comprehensive Development Area
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W DT

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS I'
EEETHERREEHFERE

Construction of Subsidised Sale
Flats Development at Ma On
Shan Road and Public Housing
Development at Hang Tai Road,
Ma On Shan Area 86B Phase 1

URBBLUREHHERER
REr 8RS8 ILE 6B BESR
BRE-—HQAEEERRITEN
BEIR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE @ RO

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERREEHFERE

Three Runway System Project - New
Integrated Airport Centres - Building and
Civil Works

ZHE ARG E — HHS R ESI L

—BEMNLKRIRE

Non-public Housing Facilities at Diamond
Hill Comprehensive Development Area

- Transport Infrastructure Works, Water
Feature Park and Landscaped Walk
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RE

_ Civil Engineering and Development
Department Maintenance Contract for Piers
(2017-2022)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W DT

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERREEHFERE

Highways Department Term Contract
(Management and Maintenance of Roads in
Kowloon East excluding High Speed Roads
2018-2024)

BEEEREH (NERER (REDEK
BRERRN 2ERREE-F—/\F
E-T-NF)

Site Formation and Infrastructure
Works for Development at Kam Tin
South, Yuen Long - Advance Works
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE @ RO

|| CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERREEHFERE

Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing
Plant — Main Works Stage

1 - E&M Works for Sewage
Treatment Facilities

THEE AR — ER TR
%—WiE — SARBRIEN
IR

TECFR|IFEREEREEBER QA 31



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W DT

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS ||
EEETHERREEHFERE

Water Supply and Fire Services
Team Maintenance Contract (KC
Region) 2019/2020-2022/2023
for Hong Kong Housing Authority
Estate, Areas and Buildings
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Enhancement of Deodourisation
System at Stonecutters Island
Sewage Treatment Works
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE @ RO

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

EEETHEERHERERE

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions,
Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands
and Other Properties for which the ASD (Property
Services Branch) is Responsible (Designated
Contract Area: Hong Kong Island Western, Southern

and Lantau Island)
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b REITRE - I - REREEIENES
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Term Contract for the Design and Construction
of Minor Works to Government and Subvented
Properties for which the ASD is responsible
Contract Area: New Territories and Outlying
Islands (North)
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Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions,
Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands
and Other Properties for which the ASD (Property
Services Branch) is Responsible (Designated
Contract Area: Tuen Mun and Yuen Long)

REEEMESKR)AENEEY - 1
REMYFETHRE - M2 - REREBST
BHNEHEN(ENEEE : BMRTH)

“E - FRI|IFRAREREEARAA

33



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - kERRE

CONTENT H

Board Statement

Chapter 1

Chapter 2
Chapter 3
Chapter 4
Chapter 5

Chapter 6

Chapter 7

Chapter 8

Chapter 9
Chapter 10
Appendix

About this report

1.1 Introduction
1.2 Report Compilation Basis
1.3 Scope of Reporting

Social Responsibility Management

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Analysis

Overview of ESG Performance

Environment

5.1 Emission Control and Waste Management

5.1.1 Environmental Policy

5.1.2 Relevant Environmental Legislation

5.1.3 Air Pollutant Emission
5.1.4 Greenhouse Gas Emission

5.1.5 Emission Reduction Targets and

Mitigation Measures
5.1.6 Waste Management

5.1.7 Waste Reduction Targets and Mitigation

Measures
5.2 Effective Use of Resources
5.2.1 Effective Use of Energy

5.2.2 Energy Efficiency Targets and Energy

Conservation Measures
5.2.3 Effective Use of Water

5.2.4 Water Efficiency Targets and Water

Conservation Measures

5.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

5.4 Climate Change
5.4.1 Impacts of Climate Change

5.4.2 Mitigation Measures for Climate Change

Impacts

People

6.1 Employment and Respect for Labour Rights

6.2 Safety and Health

6.3 Education, Training and Career Development

Operating Practices

7.1 Quality and Compliance Management

7.2 Supply Chain Management

7.3 Moral Integrity and Anti-corruption

Community

8.1 Community Participation
8.2 Focus Areas of Contribution
8.2.1 Health
8.2.2 Voluntary Services

Awards and Recognition Highlights
Looking Ahead

The Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide

Content Index Table

H ﬁ ﬁ
o]
ot o

==
o o

ﬁ
it

H
W
R

J\

e
R

B 8%

34 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

A

AR AR

1145

1.2 RS RmEIKIE

1.3 &8s

HeETEE

BHEN2EREZ ST

RE (e hEAREME

IRiE

5.1 BERUZ S & R & 32
5.1.1 RBER

5.1.2 \BEARF LD
5.1.3 /)5 2 WHERR
5148 EREHEN
5.1.5 78 B 1Z R R AR 1E

5.1.6FEWER
5.1.7 BEEYDR BE B AZ I 42 fR 1

52ERAER
52.1Z AR
5.2. 288 R R B1Z N BT R tE it

5.2.3 AKX
5.2.4 /KR E B 12 R Ei/KEE 1

53RBERAARER
5.4 RIREL

5.4.1 ELTIJ“TKE’J%?@
5.4 2 AR FE L RN

AN

6.1 EFBEMEELFIER
6.2% % MhEEE
B6.3HE « FIIRBERR
LB
7T1EEHEAEREE

72 RSB E R
BERMEERER

o

8.1t m&

82 HRAR T HE
8.2.11#kF
8.2.2& T ri%

BANEHE
‘2
BRATRE - e RERRE

HEIRBRSIE

35
36

36
36
42

47
48
50
52

52
52
53
53
54
55

57
58

59
59
60

60
61

61
62
62
63

65

65
67
71

72

72
74
76

7

7
7
7
78

79
82



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD STATEMENT

Dear valued stakeholders,

SFK Construction Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “SFK”
or the “Group”) recognise its corporate social responsibility to society.
Consequently, our Board is responsible for overseeing the environment,
social and governance (“ESG”) issues.

As a key player in the construction industry, SFK is encouraged by the
progress we have made. However, we would also beware of the
upcoming challenges and work we may face to maintain our
sustainability. Our Board are continuously committed to identifying,
evaluating and addressing the material risks related to the ESG impact
arising from our business and operation. At the same time, we will
continue to mitigate the risks from these material ESG-related issues.

We will continue to integrate ESG into our daily operation practically and
will further prevent environmental pollution, reduce environmental
nuisances and minimize waste at our construction site.

Management Approach and Strategy

We have established a team led by an executive Director to determine
ESG issues. The team is responsible for compiling ESG issues including (i)
to identify internally from our operations, and (i) to collate externally from
our stakeholders. The identified ESG issues have been evaluated by our
team. Environmental goals and social goals for the sustainability of the
Group’s business are then set out.

The team’s parameters have been set by our Board to prioritise the ESG
issues in terms of potential risk to the Group’s business. Data from these
material ESG risks is gathered and KPIs are created to set practicable
targets. To enable us to oversee and monitor the ESG performance,
measurable targets have been set out for key ESG aspects including
emission, harzardous and non-harzardous waste reduction, energy use
efficiency and water efficiency. The team manages these material ESG
risks by regularly monitoring the KPIs against the targets.

Progress Review

The team updates our Board regularly with the status of achieving the
KPI targets, the environmental goals and the social goals.

We continuously monitor the risks constituted to the Group from these
material ESG issues. Our Board would also assess our ESG goals from
time to time.

We value the wellness of the community just as we upkeep the safety of
our workers. Recognising the society’s support to our business growth,
the Group backs various not-for-profit organisations through
sponsorships and donations as well as volunteering. In these challenging
times, we participated in activities to provide pandemic relief to the
community so as to make our humble support to the community.

We do our utmost to ensure the greatest well-being of our staff and our
community, and hand-in-hand we have weathered storm after storm.
Together, we will embrace the challenge and strive for a sustainable
future.

Board of Directors
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE g lhER/HRE

SFK and the Volunteers of Hephzibah
Serving Centre distributed Mid-Autumn
Festival gift packs to the site workers

FEEARERBRSGPOLETIREPURER
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CHAPTER 1 ABOUT THIS REPORT F—E MARTEE

1.1 Introduction 11 #5
The adoption of Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”) FRiE e kBa(RE g kER)
criteria is an emerging trend for stakeholders to evaluate the PERRHETHESRARRBRE MBS o K
performance of companies. This report is presented to respond to WENRBAEREERAREELLIERAE -
this expectation with high transparency of operation and to WRERRKMELZERE - tg RERTEAE
showcase our effort in various ESG aspects. BT -

1.2 Report Compilation Basis 1.2 HEFHMKE
This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, AFRERIKBEBBEZISGAARRAA ([
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Frl) #&5 EmR RN (T EWRA D Ms =+ 138
Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of FodghEalREEsI((RE g kEn
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the WEESI DR - AREMBFEBRRHERKR AL
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The information disclosed SEANREERFMETHRTEIMTHESR -
in this report was derived from the results of internal statistics and DETHAER s EERTER/FMNEBEIEH
analysis of the Group’s internal management systems. The ESG IR g REVSRE -

issues which were the most pertinent to the Group’s operations
and key stakeholders were identified.

The report is prepared according to four reporting principles: REE TR UIE S R A mE

() Materiality: report content is guided by the result of our () EBEMN: MERNBTURMEZFHEZR
stakeholder engagement; KR BIES]

(i)  Quantitative: ESG performance is reported in quantitative iy =b:RRE HEREAREUS/LE
figures; BE

(i) Consistency: reporting methodology and calculation basis are (i) —BM MEFERFEEERTR
compatible across reporting periods; and MOMERERE &

(iv)  Balance: unbiased information is transparently disclosed in (v) T ARENBERBETRTERES -
this report.

36 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g kEARRE

SFK won Silver Award in the “CEDD
Construction Site Safety Award 2020”

HEABRIIAIERAREIHEZE KE
2020 | HEEXESR 38

SFK won two awards in the “22th
Construction Safety Award Forum
and Award Presentation”

h .~ EEREotoEREES
smretmcocirces S U 2 K385 5 8 AR SR8 | rh
e = | =mmErs

oy CoUNCIL

ﬁﬂl"l!ﬂil\‘l‘l’llﬂ!ll

27 Cossiderate Contractors Site Award Scheme Award Prasestation Ceremany

AWIERIS (THLE - 045 - GR - 20pmieTs) (B 5RIN
CCSA (Public Works - RMAA Works) Merit
SFK won two awards in the “27th wmawEE oemea R FEEE merit

Considerate Contractors Site Award

” - a.- = A i o §
Scheme E’ i ,' ',.E _ '}
SEER 27 BABBEY &R >
&l BRI EEIE : y =y

= &
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Sun Fook Kong Construction Group
= s % & @ B % 8
. A}e” SaEN

SFK won nine awards in the
“Quality Public Housing
Construction and Maintenance

& Awards 2021”

HEBRBEAHEERE
RRBHEBERE2021| FEE
N {E 8 1R

AT Bestwise Envirotech Limited
Bestwise BMMEREARLE

GrouP

un Fook Kong Construction
z a o * 8
- orice /95
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Sun Fook Kong Holdings Limited
FHAERAEMOE

o+
. e —

Missinn

e

corlng:::

comPony

B HLBRERRE

5 years+ Caring Company Logo

BEBESFHULER[ERRERBAE]

==+
=S

Partner Employer Award 2021 - Certificate of

Appreciation (Enterprise)

[RBAR]|EFaT8 2021 — ZFFLEETR

(ﬁﬂ:;c “g;E oyer

SFK Construction Holdings Limited

FEAREREEMELF

i henoued as n MITR

Good MPF Employer

BMEFEE

Good MPF Employee

o T R T W N R R e e

& = Ea
=) apamasanane *Bitaaan G
i.", =
Wi 7
If ¥ b
b 2

QF Star Employer

QF ERE=E TR R 4B 2 )

San Fook Kong Housing Services Limited
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\*‘ S 2020 Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence
Hong Koggzﬁ?wcirds for - Construction Industry — Merit Award

T e 2020 EHMBSHMAE — BEE — ERS

Certificate of Merit
R

2 - E: ion of Hong Kong lnte | Airpart
SHAPTNG' arfoon el infoa Tknee—lelr ay Su-smn

Environmental Recognition Award
Certificate of Recognition

Presentad to

S Fook Komg Conatraction Lisiied
Cantract 303

Expansion of Hong Kong International Airport into a Three-
Runway System — Environmental Recognition Award Certificate
of Recognition for Outstanding Environmental Performance in
Q3 2021

BEEETEEBRMERNAZHERSE 2021 FE=ZFEHH
BIERBEAWEITE

EEIRTFERANAER

BN T EIGEE
NEHEAEALT }
. :f &2
Fg-ﬂﬁl
MErEs THSsn
Thanks for assisting with clothing recycling '“'“‘-:
HriEe

activities and help the needy in society

12 B I 4 [ WOE B
HypdeaEm A+ =2

Participated in “Smoke-Free Care Run” held by The Lok Sin
Tong Benevolent Society Kowloon

SHEHHNELSEZERN BAEREN
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The Volunteer Team of SFK participated in
- the “Water World in Summer” volunteer
.~ - —L = activity held by SAHK

HERR IS EBEHEERN
[EHKHR | BTES

SFK distributed anti-epidemic masks
provided by the Construction Industry
Council to site workers

FEARMBRT A RBEXEDIRE
FpERAE

SFK provided ICAC seminars to the
management and staff from time to time

FEEAETROEEBRETRAMKLE
HIBHE
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1.3 Scope of Reporting

42

This ESG report discloses the relevant initiatives of the Group and
its progress for the reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021. The construction sites are selected based on the
following selection criteria:

° Original contract sum is higher than HK$100 million;

o The contract commenced before 30 June 2021;

° The contract is expected to complete after 30 June 2021.

Based on their significance of contributions to the Group, the head
office and the construction sites of the following entities were
selected to be included in this report:

° Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited

° Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited

° Bestwise Envirotech Limited

o Bestwise — SFK Joint Venture (A joint venture between

Bestwise Envirotech Limited and Sun Fook Kong (Civil)
Limited)

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021
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Table 1.1 #*1.1
Expected Contract
Contract Completion Date Original
Commencement Updated as at Contract
Entity Project Client Date 31 December 2021 Sum
R-B=-%
+ZA=t+-H2
BEHEHTIAH RAT&#H
BE EH ®F AHBRRAH EHER &5
(Million HK$)
(B8#T)
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited  Contract No. CV/2016/09 Civil Engineering & 17 March 2017 16 March 2022 150
MEB (LK) BRAR Civil Engineering and Development Development —E—+F —EoCE
Department Maintenance Contract for Department ZAt+tH =R+H
Piers (2017-2022) TAIRARE
AHEH : CV/2016/09
IATRAREBRAERERD
(2017-2022)
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. 20170225 Hong Kong Housing 27 March 2018 18 March 2023 3,740
Limited Construction of Public Rental Housing Authority —E-N\F —TCI=f
MEERREERAR Development Phases 1 & 2 and EBEEZES =ZA=t++tA =ZA+/\H
Subsidised Sale Flats Development at
Diamond Hill Comprehensive
Development Area
BHET, < 20170225
R ERLGREREAABEEREE
F-NE_RREDLERELRE
BETR
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited - Contract No. 05/HY/2017 Highway Department 1 April 2018 31 March 2024 483
HRB (LK) BRAR Highways Department Term Contract RE “E-\F 113
(Management and Maintenance of mA—A e =
Roads in Kowloon East excluding
Expressways and High Speed Roads
2018-2024)
AHIES : 05/HY/2017
RUETHEN(NERER (RBAER
RRDERN 2 EE RS
2018-2024)
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited - Contract No. YL/2017/01 Civil Engineering and 25 July 2018 21 December 2021 409
HRB (LK) BRAR Site Formation and Infrastructure Works for ~ Development “E-\F “Z--F
Development at Kam Tin South, Yuen Department +A-+HA +ZAZt—-H
Long — Advance Works ITRIBARE
BIET  YL2017/01
THARARERE T FENERSE
IR-A#TRE
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20179448 Hong Kong Housing 1 October 2018 30 September 2021 467
Limited District Term Contract for the Maintenance, ~ Authority —I-N\EF —T--f
NRBEEERAR Improvement and Vacant Flat EBEREZEY +A-8 NA=+H
Refurbishment for Hong Kong Island &
Islands (1) 2018/2021
BHET, : 20179448
“E-\FE_R_-FREES -
RE - HERZEBUBHIRNSRE
EHEN(-)
TECFHRI|IFTREEREEBERAA 43
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Expected Contract
Contract Completion Date Original
Commencement Updated as at Contract
Entity Project Client Date 31 December 2021 Sum
R=B=-%
+tZA=t+-H2
BHANTIAS CHIEE
BE EH ®F AHBRRAN EHER kA
(Million HKS)
(AEET)
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. 20179439 Hong Kong Housing 1 October 2018 30 September 2021 395
Limited District Term Contract for the Maintenance, ~ Authority “E-N\E “E-F
MEEREERA Improvement and Vacant Flat EBEEZEE +A—H NA=+E
Refurbishment for Properties managed
by Property Service Administration Unit/
Wong Tai Sin, Tsing Yi and Tsuen Wan
Region (2) 2018/2021
BHET, < 20179439
“E-\FEZR--FREEAI FK
REEMEERRBE) - RE -
YERTEBUBNIRNAETE
af(z)
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. TC G973 Architectural Services 3 February 2019 2 August 2022 531
Limited Term Contract for the Design and Department —E-NF —T-CF
MEEEEERAR Construction of Minor Works to BEE “A=H NAZH
Government and Subvented Properties
for which the Architectural Services
Department is Responsible Contract
Area: New Territories and Outlying Island
(North)
BHIET, - TCGIT3
REBEZBENNRIEREBRIEN N
HIRETR RBENTHAL
BHRE - MRARES (L)
Bestwise-SFK Joint Venture ~ Contract No. DE/2018/17 Drainage Services 9 July 2019 31 March 2021 169
BR-FREEHE Enhancement of Deodourisation Systemat ~ Department “T-hE “E-—F
Stonecutters Island Sewage Treatment  EH%E tANAB ZA=t+-8
Works
— SFK49%
— Bestwise 51%
B - DE2018/17
HEBMM KRR R RIK R4
— #1EE 49%
— HE51%
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. 3403 Airport Authority Hong 12 August 2019 29 November 2024 441
Limited New Integrated Airport Centres — Building ~ Kong —E-NF “ECNE
MEBEERRAR and Civil Works KWEERR NA+ZH +—RA=1+hA

AU+ 3403

MR REHRL - BERLATR

44 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Entity

Project

EH

BRI e kEa®mE

Expected Contract
Completion Date
Updated as at

31 December 2021
RZB=-F
+ZA=t+-H2
BHAARIAS
EHER

Contract
Commencement
Date

Original
Contract

Client Sum

EHE)
&8
(Milion HKS)
(BBATL)

BF BREKRAH

Bestwise Envirotech Limited

ARRRHEARAA

Bestwise Envirotech Limited

BRRRNEARAA

Sun Fook Kong Construction
Limited
MRt EEERAR

Sun Fook Kong Construction
Limited
HREZEERAR

Sun Fook Kong Construction
Limited
MRBRERRAR

Contract No. 20199003

Water Supply and Fire Services Term
Maintenance Contract (KC Region)
2019/2020-2021/2022 for Housing
Authority Estates, Areas and Buildings

AHIES 20199003

20192020 F B 2 2021/2022 EE BB R
EZBEETEY  h REFHHK
BN RETBRESH(ZER)

Contract No. DE/2018/04
Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing Plant —
Main Works Stage 1 — E&M Works for
STW
AKIEHTE  DE/2018/04
BMERKEE - TRIRE KR
— KEERENEETE

Contract No. 20180557 Construction of
Subsidised Sale Flats Development at
Ma On Shan Road and Public Housing
Development at Hang Tai Road, Ma On
Shan Area 868 Phase 1

BHE, : 20180557

%ﬁm%é%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm
FOBREREE —HLEFEERET
EmpEIR

Contract No. 20200134 Non-Public
Housing Facilities at Diamond Hill CDA

— Transport Infrastructure Works, Water Z8EEZEE

Feature Park and Landscaped Walk
BHES - 20200134 BEILEAEEE

FRERERE - BRERRBIR

ERRENEERKE

Contract No. TC J912
Term Contract for the Alternations,
Additions, Maintenance and Repair of
Buildings and Lands and Other
Properties for which the Architectural
Services Department (Property Services
Branch) is Responsible Designated
Contract Area: Hong Kong Island
Western, Southern and Lantau Island

BHET  TCI912
REEZE(MEEBR)AENREY
T REMMEETSR Mg
REREETIENTHAN
AKETR  BEE  ERERAEL

Architectural Services

BEE

Hong Kong Housing 100
Authority

EEEEZES

1 October 2019 30 September 2022
—ZT-NE T
+A-A NA=+H

2 December 2019 558
“Z-NEF

;:H:H

Drainage Services
Department
EHE

14 May 2024
47 4@&
AA+mA

29 December 2022
—E-CF

+-A=thH

Hong Kong Housing 1,911
Authority

EEEEZES

24 February 2020
I S 33
“R=+mA

1 March 2021
—E-—F
=A—H

Hong Kong Housing 1,497

Authority

1 January 2025
Z2o0E
—A—8

31 March 2025 830
ik S ik

=A=1-H

1 April 2021
—E--F
mA—A

Department
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Expected Contract
Contract Completion Date Original
Commencement Updated as at Contract
Entity Project Client Date 31 December 2021 Sum
R=B=-%
+tZA=t+-H2
BHANTIAS CHIEE
BE EH ®F AHBRRAN EHER kA
(Million HKS)
(AEET)
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. TC J951 Architectural Services 1 April 2021 31 March 2025 784
Limited Term Contract for the Alternations, Department “E--F “E-RE
MEEREERA Additions, Maintenance and Repair of ~ E£E mA—A =A=1+-8

Buildings and Repair of Buildings and
Lands and Other Properties for which
the Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) is
Responsible Designated Contract Area:
Tuen Mun and Yuen Long
SHES  TC J951
REEE(MEEHR)AENREY
T REMMRETSR M2
RERBEIRNTERLD
BHETR BRIk

Note: The expected completion date is determined with reference to the actual work
schedule together with our estimation based on experience as at 31 December
2021.

As indicated in the table above, data and information from 15
projects were included in the preparation of this report. Data
collection and analysis were conducted based on relevant
guidelines or standards, to exemplify, ISO 14064 for greenhouse
gas emissions. All numerical data is presented as absolute figures,
and all financial data is reported in Hong Kong dollars unless
otherwise specified. Employees of contractors and subcontractors
to whom we have no direct responsibility are not generally included
as part of our workforce unless otherwise specified.

To assist readers to browse through this report and to demonstrate
transparency and compliance, a detailed ESG content index
following the framework of ESG Reporting Guide was included at
the back of this report section.

This ESG report section has been approved by the senior
management of the Group. We would like to express our sincere
appreciation to all those who contributed to our corporate
sustainability performance and to the preparation of this report.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021
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CHAPTER 2 SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY £-E HERaEEH

MANAGEMENT

Along with delivering quality construction works to our clients, SFK ZEREZEFXNEBERETEMNBE - FEEERD
remains unwavering in lessening environmental impacts and contributing ¥IRBFERRELG SN FELRE HEMARKRETF
to the sustainable development of our society. SFK assimilates such a T - #i@AKEBr ¥t e FTNEARATR
mindset of corporate social responsibility into the decisions-making P& E@EEKLENEERFED Vs FEL2@E
process at all levels of our business operation, and has established a  E)d ¥t & & (EIBE A BRI P18 &S

comprehensive Corporate Social Responsibility Policy to explicate our
commitments:

We are committed to: BN -

—  considering the impacts on stakeholders, society, economy during — —

the environmental decision-making process;

—  fully complying with the laws of the country/region where we  —

operate or where we have signed agreements and respecting
relevant international acts;

—  dedicating ourselves to maintain the highest business operation  —

standards with fair competition and requesting all staff and
business partners to comply with the same;

— following internationally recognised standards, encouraging  —

compatible environment, respecting and maintaining human rights
and labour rights;

—  taking safety and health as our first priority, and providing a safe ~ —

and healthy environment to ensure the safety and health of all staff
and affected parties (including the public) at all times of work;

— emphasising environmental protection, taking prevention, reduction
and control of environmental pollution as a prerequisite of our daily
operations;

—  reviewing our Corporate Social Responsibility Policy regularly to  —

make continuous improvements, particularly when there are
changes to the applicable ordinances and other requirements; and

— informing all employees of our Corporate Social Responsibility — —

Policy, regardless as to whether they are directly employed,
contracted or representing us in other means, and allowing the
public to access to this Policy.

— = —

=

ZRERRRBETHFNE - £ REED

=
4=

EmETRMACEHEMERE HhEMEE
RAMENER - YESRBEEES

BRORERAFHFINREEFEERE A
C:4 THEBBHETRERE

MEEERTARA  SEESNES 48
Rife AR ER A B RS

ER2RREEERBMNE -2 Rtk
REMRE URFREEBEIMIZETT (8
BRR)  EEAERA TIEL 2 M2

BERERRF - TR - B RIEFIREISRIER
B R ERATE

EHRARMANECELSEEBER - UEHS
BE BHREERNGIREMRERE
ErGER

AEEESSARMNECELSEERE - M
THEEELBRNER  ANBARARMLT
ARREF LAFAREMZLEE
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CHAPTER 3 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

In order to understand what social and environmental issues are valued
the most by our stakeholders, stakeholder engagement is a key element
of SFK’s social responsibility management. We engage our stakeholders
in various channels to facilitate our communication with them and the
component is subsequently incorporated in our accountability and
decision-making process. Opinions are exchanged in our regular
meetings with clients and subcontractors regarding environmental,
occupational health and safety management, as well as quality
management. In addition, feedbacks from our engagement with
employees are also taken into consideration in our direction of human
resources policies and practices.

With the aim to identify stakeholders’ key concerns with reference to the
ESG Reporting Guide, SFK conducted an online stakeholder engagement
survey in July 2021. Invitations to participate in the survey were sent to
clients, suppliers, contractors, service providers, as well as SFK’s senior
management, management staff and general employees, who were
invited to grade the aspects stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide
according to the level of materiality they consider these aspects are to
SFK or to the stakeholder groups they are representing.

Table 3.1

BoE SHENBRREERNSH

RTBREMAFNEREREROHL S RERE

FHEN2EZ %ﬁ%f’%?ﬂ:"%f&ﬁ@mfaﬁlﬁ
HAPIR ﬁ;ﬂl BEFOHEZENEERES 2MH
RER &89 Ki%fé;ﬁiiﬁzﬂaﬁE’]FEJ,EE\;E/%%ML;E*H
e e ﬁffﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ;;ﬁ HR DBEERXRE
RE BERERERZ2ER LA&E%%@E’U%E o
o - EANBRBEREES - HMEZEERETIH
[R5 -

MEER T —FLAETTHELEOEZEE
HE - FERERE e REAREESIRERD
EHRIH - BP - R - ARR - REBHEREN
BN aREeRE EBAEBUR—REER
B2EPE  REBERBEHBEXAESARERN
FOEHRNEZUREEHRE dehERWmE
&SI NPT E R B EAETTRTAR °

#*3.1

SFK’s Management ¥fiig &) B

Unimportant Not So Important

Somewhat Important

Very Important Extremely Important

T /2E TAEZ BEEE HEEE 2
1 2 3 4 5
o =
o= £
= x5
= =
:: - B4 B2, B7
T B B1,B6
2 B 4 A1, B3
m R B5, A2
g A4, BS, A3
2 £
= =
&) E
s 8
£ B
= £ '8
E S8 2
E =
=
) =
g £
S g2 1
Legend: SR -
Aspect BE
Al Emissions Al 238
A2 Use of Resources A2 ARER
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources A3 RIRERAER
A4 Climate Change A4 RIREME
B1 Employment B1 BE

B2 Health and Safety

B3 Development and Training
B4 Labour Standards

B5 Supply Chain Management
B6 Product Responsibility

B7 Anti-corruption

B8 Community Investment
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The importance of each reporting aspect was determined by compiling
the degrees of importance given by all the participants. A materiality
matrix was prepared to clearly illustrate the result by placing each aspect
with regard to its importance grade (a) to the management of the Group
and (b) to the other stakeholders consisting of general staff of the Group
and external stakeholders including clients, suppliers and contractors.
The aspects located in the top-right quarter of the material matrix were
considered by both the management of the Group and the other
stakeholders as material and were thus reported in this report.

The Health and Safety (B2 aspect) and the Anti-Corruption (B7 aspect)
were the two most significant aspects determined in the stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. The overall pattern of
importance score across ESG aspects were similar to that in last year.

In general, all ESG aspects were considered to be important by both the
Group and the external stakeholders. The management approaches and
performance were outlined in this report, with emphasis in the aspects
that were considered by the stakeholders as more material.

For more information about these material aspects, please refer to “The

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Content Index Table” in the
Appendix to this report.

— = -

=

EREEAMNEELTABREMELEENER
RETUHE - RBEWHSHALER - RIREERE
HH@QAEEEEERO)EMFNE(BREAKE
H—RETUREP HEBIAZBZII BN
EVNBEUTRFEER LR ARBEEERER
HiBHnERRUREZNLERE FANSEEY
BEEEHE  WMIMERETRENA -

ez 2 (B2EH) RRER (B7EBEH) RFNHES
HEBEUMETMAETERZRETRER - BE -Halk
EREEBENERMFOMAEBRAEEZFHEU -
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CHAPTER 4 OVERVIEW OF ESG PERFORMANCE FNE BE dgREIRREE

The following management approaches or initiatives, in line with the A TEE i A REAEEREN L E ST H
direction of social responsibility set forth by the Group, were implemented —% ' ER_ZE-—FFH -

in 2021.

Table 4.1 % 441

Policy or Legal

Subject Areas Aspects Compliance Highlights
Fris g =gl BERILER RWE
Environment Emissions v Project Environmental Policy related to the
RIE P minimisation of various emissions and
discharge, as well as proper waste
management
BHERERFERERERDZBHERMIAREE
B REY) E 12
Use of Resources v Implementation of ISO 14001 Environmental
AR Management Systems and ISO 50001 Energy
Management Systems
FHEI1SO 14001 BRIEE 8 K X 1SO 50001 &6 IR
EIEER
The Environment v Active participation in BEAM Plus projects
and Natural Resources ERS2HGRIRTIER
RERRAER
Adoption of Sustainable Deposits to facilitate
banking system’s support to United Nations’
Sustainable Development Goals (SDG)
FRAARFEFFARERITEREE A B A
R B 1% (SDO) M
Social — Employment Employment v Provision of a fair and sound work environment,
and Labour Practices = as well as a family-friendly employment policy

HE - RERSTER

Health and Safety v
EEREZE

50 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

REATFRENTIERREALERERENER
R

Implementation of ISO 45001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management Systems
EHEISO 45001 BERER LT ERER

Safety and Health Policy Statement with a
guaranteed safety budget of not less than
0.25% of the contract sum for each project

ZERERBEER  TRILZZBENMENE
EIEE &4© %1 0.25%
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Policy or Legal

Subject Areas Aspects Compliance Highlights
iz fEE BESER RBE
Development and Training v Establishment of a comprehensive staff
R RS development programme
WU ZEHE TER:TE
Provision of training and examination allowance,
as well as examination leave
RAEEII R EARMEUARE SR
Labour Standards v Compliance with the Employment Ordinance
TR (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong
BTBEEENE 57 ERBEESD
Social — Operating Practices Supply Chain Management v Performance and compliance assessment of
g — LEREN HEEER suppliers and sub-contractors
HEBLD BRI ARG
Requirements on suppliers to support
environmental-benign initiatives
B ER S RIPIRERT B E
Product Responsibility v Implementation of ISO 9001 Quality Management
EmET Systems
EMISO 9001 EEEHEE R
Establishment of procedures to respect intellectual
property rights and privacy
R G EHBERERELEOERF
Adoption of Building Information Modelling (BIM)
technology
PR EE(E B AR B (BIM) 1l
Anti-corruption v Establishment of Code of Business Conduct
RERE I B < sr Al
Operation of anonymous whistle-blowing channels
REERBARE
Provision of anti-corruption training
R ERE
Social — Community Community Investment v Participation in volunteer services and
Mg — i@ HERBE collaboration with not-for-profit organizations

2hnE TR M ERIFRFIARA 1F

S FRI|IFTEEAEREERER QA 51
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CHAPTER 5 ENVIRONMENT FLE RIE

5.1 Emission Control and Waste Management 51 HIHESIREYNER

SFK operates mainly in the construction industry where
environmental impacts always receive a lot of attention. On this
ground, integrating environmental considerations into our operation
is of paramount importance. Remaining steadfast to cope with all
the challenges in protecting the environment, the Group is
committed to the following guiding principles to mitigate
environmental impacts arising from emission of air pollutants &
greenhouse gases; noise emanation; wastewater discharge into
water bodies and land; and disposal of non-hazardous and
hazardous waste:

5.1.1 Environmental Policy

SFK includes the five guiding principles below in its
Environmental Policy:

(1) Foresighted Management and Resources Planning

° Ensure that environmental protection is given the
highest practicable priority in all aspects of the
works when discharging the contractual
obligations.

o Provide sufficient resources for the implementation
of pollution abatement, waste management and
ecological mitigation.

(2)  Rigorous Regulatory Compliance

o Comply with the relevant environmental legislation
and contractual environmental requirements.

o Obtain and renew the necessary environment-
related licences, permits and registrations for our
works and services.

(8)  Proactive Communication and Education

° Communicate the environmental policy to all
levels of persons involved in the works including
our employees and subcontractors.

o Educate and train all persons involved in the

works to meet the legal, contractual and other
environmental requirements.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

BHRFEATENFRER  MEEXRHRE
VHE-BEBXEL - F $SREZERER
BARMNERLEETEHWEE - HHRE
REH — BB - AEERETE - BAONE
& T 2045 51 IR R PARR AR T 51) 5 18 R B AE A
FE ERSRLBERBYN BT AKX
BREHesKEER: REZERGEEYRE

B -

511 BEBE

BB REBRBEATAAESR

A

(1) At EEREERAES

. EIRETHAAFERR
BiTaNEKH - BRES
R -

. BEWSE RSN - BEY
é@&i_&m%whfﬁ
RHER
2 EBRIEMEEEHR

« RTEBAEDERRAD
SESEEE

. FRENEENENERER
BARRAR - FF AT RE MR A
T TR RIRHIRT -

B BELEEEBRNE

. %%%ﬂ”1i%lﬁ%%
BLBAE BEEERD
B e

. HENMEIFMBELEIEMN
ABUEEEE  AOR

HREER ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

(4)  Diligent Enforcement

° Promote and implement environmental
management including waste management and
greenhouse gas emission control to mitigate
environmental impacts.

o Prevent environmental pollution, reduce
environmental nuisances and minimise waste
especially construction and demolition waste.

(5)  Continuous Monitoring and Improvement

o Review the environmental policy and
environmental objectives periodically for
continuous improvement in response to changes
in the management procedures, nature of the
works and environmental legislation.

5.1.2 Relevant Environmental Legislation

SFK strictly observed the relevant environmental legislation to
ensure the environmental impacts arising from its operation
were managed and mitigated in a responsible manner. The
relevant pieces of legislation mainly include:

o Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311);

° Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400);

° Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358);
° Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354);

o Dumping at Sea Ordinance (Cap. 466);

° Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap.
499).

In the reporting period, the Group complied with the relevant
laws and regulations governing emission of air pollutants &
greenhouse gases; noise emanation; wastewater discharge
into water bodies and land; and disposal of non-hazardous
and hazardous waste in all material aspects.

5.1.3 Air Pollutant Emission

The nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur oxides (SO,) and
particulate matters significantly decreased because SFK
reduced the use of vehicles in 2021, including private cars
and goods vehicles (Table 5.1).
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Table 5.1 Annual Emission Data from Vehicles REAEHNTFHREE
2021 2020
Pollutants Vep 3] —E-—F —E-EE
Annual Intensity Annual Intensity
amount (g/million amount (g/million
(9) HKS$) @) HKS)
FEHE (= FEHE (=
(%) BEBT) (%) \B&EBT)
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) E1bA (NOy 306,996 104.21 472,585 165.51
Sulphur oxides (SO,) A8 (SO, 2,510 0.85 3,223 1.13
Particulate matters R F 25,193 8.55 41,233 14.44
Notes: EE
1) The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance on 1) SENERE BB TR M IRIERAEN
Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. HErERRE S o
) Intensity = Annual amount (g) / Project turnover payment (million HK$). @ RE-FEHE(H) HEEYEBENR(EE
HBIT) ©
5.1.4 Greenhouse Gas Emission 5.1.4 BERBEHEM
The scope 2 energy indirect emission was lower in 2021 than —E - —FREE 28R EEERER
in 2020 mainly because the emission factors (kgCO.e/kWh) —E-FTF . TERREERES(FR—
decreased (Table 5.2). The scope 1 direct emission increased SibiixE & TEE) FE(X52) &
because SFK made more use of powered mechanical E1EESERIEN R ESFER
equipment for carrying out more construction works. The FLMYREETELEETIE - KE)
powered mechanical equipment consumed diesel and REERELH WHER &b HiEAE
emitted CO, as scope 1 direct emission. 1ERBE
Table 5.2 Total Greenhouse Gas Emission RE2BERBEHEE
2021 2020
Emission scope B EiE —E_—F ZE-TF
Annual Intensity Annual Intensity
amount (tCO.-eq/ amount (tCOz-eq/
(tCO2-eq) million HK$) (tCOs-eq) milion HK$)
FEHE (Z&Eitm FEHE (Z&8kiR
(=Z&1k EE (Z&1t &=
EEN) /EEBT) WmMEEW) A&EET)
Scope 1 direct emission FE1EZEEN 5,074 1.72 3,847 1.35
Scope 2 energy indirect #E 2 g REETENR
emission 1,002 0.34 1,346 0.47
Total st 6,076 2.06 5,194 1.82
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Notes: B EE -

(1) The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance on M STETDER BB RS MEIREHRE N
Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, 2006 EIRREES - —FEXNFIPCCHFEZER
IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, IPCC Fifth BEBEEIEE - IPCCE ALK #HE - NAE
Assessment Report, latest grid emission factors published by utilities ERAIFMHENRNE@BHMA T -
companies.

©) tCO2-eq denotes unit tonne for comparing the radiative forcing of a @ —EAbiRE MEREREBENRN A
greenhouse gas to CO.. HORGT R ) BE AL A RK -

3) Intensity = Annual amount (tCO2-eq) / Project turnover payment (million @) DE=FEHE(ZAtHEEWE) BRE
HK$). ¥BEAREEBT) -

5.1.5 Emission Reduction Targets and Mitigation Measures 5.1.5 HHEBERERIEHE

A 1% reduction in emissions in terms of intensity (per million ERE(BEE88TEBEERMNTG

dollars project turnover payment) compared with the previous H fA S BENTFRAR

year was set as the emission reduction targets for nitrogen RESERREETHNEREERARE

oxides, sulphur oxides, particulate matters and greenhouse FRA1% - ELANO,) * EAEHE(SO,)

gases respectively on construction sites. The nitrogen oxides NFREBE2EREEBER(EN)ES

(NO,), sulphur oxides (SO,), particulate matters and scope 2 BHEEZ . 2 RIE A 37.0% - 24.6%

energy indirect emission (electricity) achieved the reduction 40.8% K 27.6% c EREEZLH - WE

targets because they decreased by 37.0%, 24.6%, 40.8% K PNEFRBEFRF) N IRIFER

and 27.6% respectively. The air quality parameter, the dust LMEZEER  BRETZBBITHY

level (1-hour TSP), was also monitored under the IKERGBRKFE e Z—HH EAEE

Environmental Monitoring & Audit Programme to ensure it did [BE L - B EaREREBYNR

not exceed the action and limit levels. On the other hand, at IFERBBEREER - REAZ SR

the Group level, SFK took the greenhouse gas emission level PEROKTE o SRR E B i 1 51| 4% AR 1 b LA

in recent years as an emission baseline so that the emission EROR D ZE R R FORE RN

level may be reduced gradually in the long run. SFK BiZ:

implemented the following mitigation measures to achieve the
targets for reduction of air pollutant & greenhouse gas

emission:

(1) Keep dusty areas wet by water spraying or cover them (1) BREKRSEZERZERELD
with tarpaulin sheets, e.g. exposed areas and haul KA Blanan % Bl I B E e
roads;

(2)  Keep dusty stockpiled material wet by water spraying (@ EREKRSEEMERESEL
or cover it with tarpaulin sheets or similar fabric; Bk S B AL

(3) Properly wash vehicles manually or with a vehicle (@) AEBETHAIAAFSIAEREL
washing facility before leaving the site; EIBEE

(4)  Keep the public road/area around the site entrance free @) RETHAOFERZHQR AHE
of earth, mud, debris and dusty material; EELT  E5E - BRERES

EERMIR

(5)  Limit vehicle speed to 8 km/h or below on site; (6) IHIANEHERRET RSB
T

(6)  Spray water while loading and unloading dusty material; (6) HHSEERNYRRRENK

TECFR|IFEREEREEBER QA 55
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(7)  Provide dust enclosures/dust screens for or water the
area where the dust-generating activities take place,
e.g. demolition, grouting, breaking, drilling, cutting and
polishing;

(8) Cover the dusty load on the vehicle with mechanical
covers or tarpaulin sheets;

(9) Cover entirely every stock of more than 20 bags of
cement or dry pulverized fuel ash by impervious
sheeting or place them in an area sheltered on the top
and the three sides;

(10) Prohibit using a compressed air jet for clearing dust
from any object;

(11) Use non-road mobile machinery with an approval label/
exemption label;

(12) Power off the idling vehicle/powered mechanical
equipment (PME);

(13) Maintain PME in good condition to prevent dark smoke
emission;

(14) Use manual or solar equipment to reduce emissions
from vehicles and PME;

(15) Use ultra-low-sulphur diesel or B5 diesel as a fuel of
PME to reduce SO, emission;

(16) Use FSC-certified timber for temporary works to reduce
CO, emission;

(17) Use metal as an alternative to hardwood for site
hoardings, formworks and scaffoldings to reduce CO,
emission.

The Group implemented various best practices in the
construction industry to minimise air pollutant emission at
source. These practices included utilising ultra-low-sulphur
diesel in our non-road mobile machinery and other powered
mechanical equipment and ensuring all non-road mobile
machinery possessed approval labels or exemption labels. To
further sustainable development, B5 diesel was also utilised
in applicable cases. Furthermore, regular laboratory tests
were also conducted to ensure the fuel used complied with
the contractual requirements. These measures led to lower
emission of air pollutants and greenhouse gases.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

(7)) TETAIELERNEH(WHF
Br oo B TR - HBIL - DI R
HOB o REHEES THEAE
K

@) FABWMESHKNAEESERE LS
FERNED

© TR EWAORKEMERE
BRNEKRMEERNELTARM
—EHERMMIT

(10) ZE1Lf FAER MR 2= SUIE 5T 238 FR (T
VI8 L HOREE

(1) ERBERERE FHeRBgmnE
BB ;

(12) FARAZ= e E &, 8) R PME) Ky

TR

(13) REFHEENREEN R ATAREE - B Lk
BEEE:

(14) EAFDHRABEREALEAE
HEBY 2818 0 B

(15) {2 F B (KB 5 5k B5 580 1F A 1
RABEVREL - TOR D —SE TR B
)i

(16) FEREF TH2{F AL FSCRFRIARM
LUR A &L BRBERR

(17) ERELBREEARERTHER -
AR AR - PAR A — AL BB
)i

AEECEESRRIFNZEZNEE -
ERBERDERITRMPN - %FHE
EREEIFERB M L E M IR
I FABIERT SO - X RERAT A FEB I
BBHRRARRESEIRLER - B
E-TRENHEER  RATEER
HYIE L T A BE S © b - RPITRSE
HBETTERERON - LAERPT RIRE
BERHNRE - ZFHEEEETZRSR
VA EREOINE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE g MEARSE

Good day-to-day operation practices were also implemented
by our site staff, such as minimising fugitive dust emission by
covering exposed works areas with tarpaulin sheets,
suppressing fugitive dust emitted by moving vehicles and
machinery with a sensor-equipped water sprinkler system on
the construction sites. These measures minimised fugitive
dust on construction sites and in their vicinity.

5.1.6 Waste Management

Air pollutant emission is only one of the significant
environmental aspects. Responsible waste management is
another significant environmental aspect. The Group made
use of the waste quantities in recent years as a baseline so
that the quantity of waste generated may be reduced
progressively. Many good practices were therefore put in
place to responsibly manage the generation and disposal of
waste. With a goal to keep the waste to the lowest feasible
level, the Group had clear directives in the Project
Environmental Policy to minimize construction and demolition
waste. To exemplify, environmentally-friendly construction
methods were adopted by project teams to carefully select
construction materials. The construction sites also adopted
reusable and modular site offices and fences that could be
used on different construction sites. These measures led to
disposal of less waste, and reuse & recycling of more
construction & demolition material.

The amount of non-hazardous waste significantly decreased
because a construction site at Diamond Hill disposed of a
much smaller amount of excavated soil in 2021 than in 2020
(Table 5.3). The amount of hazardous waste significantly
decreased because the construction site at Diamond Hill did
not generate spent lubrication oil (waste engine oil) and fewer
construction sites generated chemical waste in 2021.

5.1.6
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Table 5.3 Total Waste Produced REIBYBRELEE
2021 2020
Waste Category BEYIE R —E-— —E-FF
Annual Intensity Annual Intensity
amount (tonne/ amount (tonne/
(tonne) million HK$) (tonne)  million HK$)
T uE
FEHE (mg, FEHE (Wg,”
(Wg) BEERT) (Wg) ‘BEBT)
Non-hazardous waste mEREY) 156,308.23 53.06 632,456.49 221.49
Hazardous waste BEEY 0.36 0.0001 2.00 0.0007
Note: GE

(1)

Intensity = Annual amount (tonne) / Project turnover payment (million
HKS).

= —

=

—FHR (| FEEEREEBR QA

BE=FEHE (W) B EERERE
BRI

(1)
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5.1.7 Waste Reduction Targets and Mitigation Measures

A 1% reduction in waste in terms of intensity (per million
dollars project turnover payment) compared with the previous
year was set as the waste reduction target for the total of the
non-hazardous & hazardous waste on construction sites. The
non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste achieved the
reduction targets in 2021 because they decreased by 76.0%
and 82.5% respectively.

The Group strived to explore opportunities to enable
inevitable waste to be subsequently utilised as a resource.
Recyclable waste was carefully segregated from general
waste, for example, scrap metal and waste paper were
collected both in the head office and on construction sites for
recycling. The non-recyclable waste was then handled and
disposed of in a responsible and lawful manner. Special care
was taken when handling chemical waste and other
hazardous wastes. These wastes were properly stored in
designated areas to minimise chances of spillage, and were
collected by licensed chemical waste collectors for disposal
and treatment in the licensed treatment facilities.

SFK implemented the following mitigation measures to
achieve the target for reduction of hazardous & non-
hazardous waste:

Non-hazardous Waste

1

Segregate different categories of construction &
demolition wastes on site and store them in different
containers;

Reuse excavated soil for backfilling on site and off site;

Transform excavated rock into aggregates and reuse

them on site;

Reuse and recycle construction & demolition wastes
where possible;

Deliver waste paper and metal waste to recycling
companies;

Replace timber with metal for site hoardings, formworks
and scaffoldings;

Use standard formwork or pre-fabrication as far as
practicable in order to minimize waste;

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021
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Hazardous Waste

(8) Reuse decontaminated soil for backfilling on site and off
site;

(9) Properly store chemicals and chemical waste in a
designated container/bunded storage area to minimise
generation of hazardous waste on site;

(10) Place the generator or other oily powered mechanical
equipment in a drip tray to avoid soil contamination on
site;

(11) Use solar-powered products (e.g. solar lights) to avoid
spent batteries;

(12) Employ a licensed chemical waste collector to collect
and dispose of chemical waste.

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

In the long run, decoupling business development from resource
depletion is crucial for the lasting good of humans. SFK’s resources
conservation strategy encompasses every aspects of resources
consumption, including energy, water and raw materials. The
Group operates under the environmental management system and
the energy management system that are certified in compliance
with the ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 standards respectively.

5.2.1 Effective Use of Energy

The density of electricity consumption was the same in 2021
as in 2020, 880 kWh per million HK$ project turnover
payment (Table 5.4). The liquid fuel consumption increased
mainly because SFK made more use of powered mechanical
equipment for carrying out more construction works and the
powered mechanical equipment consumed diesel.

Table 5.4 Energy Consumption in Different Categories

BRI e kEa®mE

BEEY
B8 EBRSHEIZBREIHAINLHE
17

© MEERRCBEYMZEFHNE
ERR/REFHE - URERMD
ETHELRZEY

(10) REEHIEMARTHEBRE
BMERKE B RRISHN LIRS

2

(1) EAKEERESHER (KB
TRER) - DA R REE D

(12) ERFECEEDKER  NKRE
N BRI EBREY) ©

52 EZRER

REME @ BEBEREEREBHNENRA
*ﬂﬁ%t&ﬂ*zﬁﬁig c FBABERELIR
R ERER  KEEMES T ENERBEFE -
AEBEREEERBANEREEERETE
ﬁ 28 5 B A1SO 14001 #11SO 50001

REEIRLE -

521 ZRER

TR —FHREREER_T-FFIF
Fl BEBBTIHEEEEBENR %880
TFEEE(K5.4)  ASHREDEEZ I -
EHRIBEEREZHIR ﬁ‘aﬁﬁ;‘ﬁ
ZRETIZ  MEBEEHERELEH -

®5.4 T E B RERH #E

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
Annual Intensity Annual Intensity
amount (1000 kWh/ amount (1000 kWh/
Energy Category BRI (1000 kWh) million HK$) (1000 kwh)  million HK$)
BE wE

FEHE (kRE/ FEHE KRR/
(kEE) BEERT) (kEEF) ABAEET)

Electricity B 2,579.51 0.88 2,524.86 0.88
Liquid fuel (e.g. petrol TR BERRRE (2R 0m J
and diesel) SEd) 18,999.53 6.45 14,426.38 5.05
Total Rt 21,579.04 7.33 16,951.24 5.93
Note: B EE -
(1) Intensity = Annual amount (1000 kWh) / Project turnover payment (million 1) BE-FEHECKRE) TEBLEEMNK
HK3). (EEHT) -
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5.2.2 Energy Efficiency Targets and Energy Conservation
Measures

A 1% reduction in energy consumption in terms of intensity
(per million dollars project turnover payment) compared with
the previous year was set as the energy efficiency target on

construction sites.

The energy consumption in recent years served as an energy
efficiency reference for the Group to curb the consumption
level below that level. SFK encouraged construction sites to
utilise renewable energy equipment. For example, solar water
heaters, solar fans and solar barricade warning lights were
used on two construction sites. To reduce the consumption
of electricity, SFK also installed temporary lightings coupled
with timers or motion sensors on the sites of building
projects. On the construction sites, the Group also had
directives in place to prioritise the use of electrical appliances
with Grade 1 energy efficiency labels with an aim to maximise
energy efficiency. In the head office, SFK also encouraged
energy conservation practices in accordance with the
Group’s energy guidelines and the practices recommended
by the Energy Efficiency Office of the Electrical and

Mechanical Services Department.

5.2.3 Effective Use of Water

The water consumption decreased because the sites carried
out less bored-piling works in 2021 which need much water

5.2.2 BERME BB K H R

BET R ERMAE BRG] REERIAER
EE(BEEBTHEAEXENFORL
—FERD 1% °

MERMEREREESARER I iGE
TREFEK IR EEBKFE A TR

WBzmBE - b BEET AR
BAEREIREE - flun - MEREETHE
ARG RERIKE: - KGR kA 6

BEIEERBEL AR - BR BB
BB IMEESEIEE TR R RER L
TRERFRNBERERS BRERS
RS G AEBREETHIC T
ERABAFEREBIRERIEERER
VER c HRMERE - MEATBER
EEMERESI RRETEBE RIS
EIRERIERE - SE BRI o

5.2.3 B¥MAK

FKERDY  TAR T - —F Ik
THREANERKNBILITHEIRRD (R

(Table 5.5). 5.5) o
Table 5.5 Total Water Consumption RE55HAKE
2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-THF
Annual Intensity Annual Intensity
amount (m%/million amount (m®/million
Parameter 2% (m?) HK$) (m°) HK$)
BE i
FEHE MK FEHE (UHKS
(ZFK) HBEER) ((Z7K)  B&EBT)
Water consumption AKE 101,399 34.42 103,371.00 36.20
Note: fer -
(1) Intensity = Annual amount (m?) / Project turnover payment (million HKS). 1) RE=FEHRE(ZIHXK) BEEEBEMNR
(B8ETT) -
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5.2.4 Water Efficiency Targets and Water Conservation
Measures

A 1% reduction in water consumption in terms of intensity
(per million dollars project turnover payment) compared with
the previous year was set as the water efficiency target on
construction sites. The water consumption achieved the
reduction target in 2021 because it decreased by 4.9%.

Besides energy conservation, in response to the concern of
the availability of freshwater influenced by climate change,
SFK also focused on reducing its water footprint. The water
consumption in recent years was taken as the water
efficiency baseline for SFK to limit consumption level below
that level. To exemplify, efficient sprinkler nozzles were utilised
in the sprinkler system to minimise water consumption while
suppressing fugitive dust emission. The Group also
encouraged recollection, reuse and recycling of greywater on
construction sites to minimise freshwater consumption. For
instance, muddy water generated from bored piling works
and vehicle washing activities was reused to wet dusty
exposed site areas after being treated through sedimentation
and flocculation in the wastewater treatment system.

A sustainable future could not be attained on our own, we
also strived to influence our stakeholders to engage in
resources conservation practices. When commissioned to
conduct plumbing works, we recommended our clients to
install water-efficient facilities and appliances registered under
the Water Efficiency Labelling Scheme (WELS). Such water-
efficient practices were also in line with the requirements
stipulated in Building Environmental Assessment Method
(BEAM) Plus certification. These measures led to a reduction
in water consumption in both the construction phase and the
operation phase, and the Group faced no difficulty in sourcing
water that was fit for the construction process.

5.3 The Environment and Natural Resources 5.3

In a world that increasingly emphasises ESG issues, it is our moral
obligation to see beyond the economic aspect and to take a
preventive approach to mitigate adverse impacts on the natural
environment. SFK’s environmental management system and energy
management system were reviewed and audited by an external
third-party to ensure that our management systems complied with
the requirements of international standards and addressed material
concerns in our operations that impacted the environment and
natural resources.
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Our Project Environmental Policy encompasses considerations in
pollution abatement, waste management, resources conservation
and ecological mitigation. Each project site complied with the
requirements stipulated in environment-related permits/licences
and manuals, and followed the established environmental
management plan. Procedures were stipulated to guide project
staff and subcontractors to implement environmental management
measures. Additionally, the Group’s Energy Policy and Purchase
Policy demonstrate the Group’s commitment to energy
conservation and the support to the implementation of energy
efficient technologies. The Group also actively contributed to the
sustainable development of Hong Kong’s building environment by
applying local and international standards to construction sites.

Climate Change

Global climate change is an important environmental issue of
worldwide concern. In order to minimize the impact on global
warming, SFK provided resources and implemented measures to
protect natural resources and achieve the goal of sustainability.

5.4.1 Impacts of Climate Change

SFK operated primarily in Hong Kong. Among all the
phenomena of climate change affecting Hong Kong,
rainstorms, floods, heatwaves, high temperature and severe
typhoons had adverse impacts on SFK'’s operation practices.

(1) Rainstorms

Frequent and severe rainstorms, such as black
rainstorm signal, had adverse impacts on the execution
of works and extended the construction duration.

(2)  Floods

Rainstorms and rising sea levels flooded the sites in
low-lying areas and affected the execution of works.

(3)  Heatwaves

Heatwaves made site workers more liable to suffer from
heat strokes. Site workers made more use of electric
fans and air conditioners and so consumed more
electricity.

(4)  Rise in Mean Sea Levels

Global warming heightened the mean sea levels. The
global mean sea level will continue to rise at current or
accelerated rates. The execution of marine works on
pier construction sites were affected as most of the port
works were required to be carried out during the low-
tide period.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

5.4

AR BEYER  MEERRERRER
BN IRBERRERRNZEREE - SEE
TRIMAARFBEAIE R RF M
HRELERAENREE RS BUERF
NEBIHAABRD BRAERREEIREE
UESh - AEE R LRI MR B BOR R PG
RETT E YR GE RN SR B S 1T BN BE AT MY 32
¥ o ARBIERETIR T HEBAM RER
R BIEREERBRERENARHEER

Riz&1{

ERRBRECEEERAINEERGHE -
RREEHRCNTZE  FRBRH‘ERLE
MEEEAREBRER  EZR T HEERNAE

-

541 RIFE{LHNTE
FRBETBERELEES - EMAY
BEEBOREEERRS - F/F AKX
R - @A MR R EFEENEEE
BiER IR E -

(1 £H

BEMBEENER  WREHERE
EET - FEETTIRER TN
g2 WERETER -

2 K

KEMLBTHERE LTEREE
) THh » RFETIZETT -

@) AR

BRETHTAERSTE - Tit
TAERZEREARRER  ©
MREAESES -

@ FHEFEEEL
HE(SFHFEREAR -
TR R N E
BRIRE T MAAHH O TR
BEEERPRT BERELY
S TRIBTEIIVE -



()

Severe Typhoons

The frequency and intensity of severe typhoons are
expected to change as a result of climate change and
extreme wind speeds are expected to increase.

In response to these changes, SFK continued to refine
the operation practices in hot weather, such as
providing resting kiosks, mobile cooling fans and other
facilities for workers. At the same time, training was also
provided for workers to promote their awareness of
prevention of heat stroke. Moreover, in order to brace
for more frequent extreme weather events, we
continued to strengthen our emergency preparedness
and various good practices to sufficiently secure
materials and temporary structures to prevent losses
and incidents.

5.4.2 Mitigation Measures for Climate Change Impacts

The core elements of climate-related financial disclosures
include governance, strategy, risk management, and metrics
& targets.

(1)

Governance

In order to minimize climate change, SFK implemented
the following measures:

o Improve energy efficiency, e.g., replace
fluorescent tubes with LED lights.

° Reduce energy consumption, e.g., switch off air-
conditioners, lights, computers, printers and
photocopiers when leaving the office.

o Use solar products, e.g., use solar fans, solar
water heaters and solar barricade warning lights.

° Use low-carbon construction methods and
construction materials, e.g., recycle timber, metal
and aggregates from construction wastes; and
replace tropical hardwood with metal for site
hoardings, formworks & scaffoldings.

o Increase vegetation areas on site, e.g. increase
hydroseeding areas and plant more trees.
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o Develop innovations for sustainable buildings
together with clients and subcontractors, e.g.
meet the performance criteria of BEAM Plus for a
wide range of sustainability issues.

Strategy

The Environmental Management Plan (EMP) and the
Safety Plan (SP) included the mitigation measures for
adverse impacts arising from extreme weather events,
e.g., rainstorms, floods, heatwaves, rise in mean sea
levels and severe typhoons. SFK implemented the EMP
and SP, and periodically reviewed them to mitigate the
adverse impact of climate change on operation
practices.

Risk Management

With reference to the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD),
SFK managed the climate-related risks on its
businesses in a systematic and proactive approach and
mitigated the impacts of climate change.

The Environmental Management Plan and the Safety
Plan included some of the risks related to climate
change, e.g., rainstorms, floods, heatwaves, high
temperature and severe typhoons. SFK managed the
risks related to physical climate events by training,
regular health examination, distribution of heat stroke
related materials and emergency drills, etc. SFK strived
to have a deeper understanding of the climate change
impacts, integrate them into the overall risk
identification, assessment and management, and
disclose more information about them in the future ESG
Reports.

Metrics and Targets

SFK tried its best to reduce emission of CO, and other
greenhouse gases during the construction, operation
and maintenance. SFK consumed a large amount of
natural resources for operations, and so strived to
reduce carbon emission and increase waste recycle
percentage year by year as the targets. SFK will review
the targets periodically for continuous improvement in
response to changes in the management procedures,
nature of the works, business development and relevant
environmental legislation.
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CHAPTER 6 PEOPLE
6.1 Employment and Respect for Labour Rights

The Group is devoted to providing a fair and sound working
atmosphere to our employees with an aim to improve the
cohesiveness of our staff and our long-term competitiveness in the
market.

SFK attaches great importance to ethical and fair employment
practice and equal opportunities by rigorously complying with the
relevant legislations including:

° Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)

° Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282)
° Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480)

° Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486)

° Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487)

It is one of the Group’s commitments to build a harmonious
workplace in the absence of any form of discrimination in our
operations. Throughout the recruitment and promotion process,
SFK treats all employees and job applicants equally. Candidates
are assessed in regard to their qualifications and work experiences,
whereas irrelevant factors such as ethnicity, gender, disability,
family status, religion and political stance do not have any influence
on the process. The Group wholly respects the religious belief,
political stance, race, disability, gender, marital status, age and
sexual orientation of our employees as well as job applicants.

The Group is committed to providing our employees with
competitive remuneration packages, reasonable working hours and
rest periods to build a pleasing environment and to achieve work-
life balance. A range of allowances and bonuses, including year-
end bonus, overtime allowances, first-aider or emergency
attendance allowance are also offered to our employees.

We also extend our care to the family members of our employees
by implementing many family-friendly employment practices such
as marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
compassionate leave to empower our employees to balance their
work and their family affairs. Moreover, to fulfil the needs of
breastfeeding employees and their new-born, the Group has also
implemented Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace Policy.
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As in every ethically-sound corporation, forced labour, child labour
and illegal workers are prohibited in the Group. The Group has
established comprehensive procedures to regularly scrutinise
employment practices and eliminate undesirable practices if
discovered. Prudent due diligence, such as requiring job applicants
to provide personal identity documents for verification of Hong
Kong Permanent Resident Status or valid Permit for Employment in
Hong Kong, is undertaken by the Group in the recruitment process.
Employment contracts which explain and detail the rights and
responsibilities of both parties are always duly signed between the
Group and the employees. Under no circumstance will we tolerate
labour exploitation, forced labour and child labour. No such
malpractice was discovered in the reporting period.

In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare, as well as prevention
of child labour and forced labour in all material respects.

Table 6.1 Total Work Force (Hong Kong) as at the end of the
reporting period

AEEBRERBET FLWASY BETR
RGBT - AEBECREIYZHER - AEHE
ER|ERBEALYENETR(ABER) -
AEFRTEEERESRETETERERRAS -
BIRERIER A BRRMEA S 10 E A XX A
BEREBKANERENDHBRNEAAE
& —HNMR  AREEERHIARERR
B MERFAETOENREET - RAR
ERABATRBIERRLEHHE - wELP R
BT RREPALEHRBBRBITS -

RBEMA - AEERZTEZEMETHAS

BEERTZENRBEERER  PRHEM - 7
BB B IERE RY FEH

g Zolb - AR A KR B A A8 A8 FA K
P71bE Tataab 58 -

ROINRBERRNESAB(FR)

Construction Housing Services Total
= BFR% #at
Gender MBI
Male B 916 294 1,210
Female egi 236 125 361
Employment Type EEER
Full-time a3 1,122 325 1,447
Part-time R 30 94 124
Age Group FEe4a 5l
18-30 18-30 328 2 330
31-45 31-45 3083 21 324
46-60 46-60 459 180 639
> 61 > 61 62 216 278
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Table 6.2 Employee (Hong Kong) Monthly Average Turnover

R g kEARRE

R6.2{ES (FHB) ARKLE

Rate
Construction Housing Services
=4 BEF R
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-THF —B-—F —T-TF
Gender 4 51
Male B 3.7% 3.2% 2.5% 6.3%
Female e 2.5% 2.5% 8.1% 5.2%
Age Group F#p4a Bl
18-30 18-30 1.8% 1.4% 0.0% 45.4%
31-45 31-45 4.5% 4.8% 5.0% 9.8%
46-60 46-60 3.6% 3.2% 4.0% 6.1%
> 60 >60 4.4% 2.4% 4.4% 4.7%
Note: Due to the small total workforce in the 18-30 year-old age group in the housing MisE : BAREFIRS AP 18-30 5 F k48 R M0 1R 8 A
services sector, the turnover rate of which is more volatile from year to year 4 EEMBARNESLEUEL - HEFMNRALLE
compared to other categories. EENEK ©
Safety and Health 6.2 ZEREE
Hong Kong is a fast-paced city, and the construction industry faces AR —EE AR T - MEBREEEZE
higher risks of occupational safety and health than other industries. BEZ2RRERREMITEES - NEEE
As a major construction business organization, the Group’s REEEEEXEE  BELIRERERE
occupational safety and health is the top priority of all works, and FABEIRMER & - WEEESTATEARE
rigorously complying with all relevant legislations, including: 78
e Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Chapter 59) o FHOE(TIMR R TEKE KA
e Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509) . F 509 B HE L 2 RIEEED)
The Group’s safety and health policy requires all levels of REENZEREREBREERSTREEREER
management and supervision to actively participate in all feasible EPIER S B E—AI TA T I - AR &
methods to provide and maintain a safe working environment and HR/LT 2N ITIERE - WEERTAEEL 2
monitor the implementation of relevant safety systems as well. In B - AEFRMNEIFTERLS  KMEBEES
response to our stakeholders’ high valuation of safety, we continue RRENLZEEERS - LWAEIRKHENH
to maintain a high standard of safety management systems to BYEHEIE - BM8 % 2 RIERBUERT™ME#EA
respond to their expectations. Not only is our safety and health MMEE - MIERERMOS B -
policy applicable to our employees, it also extends to our
subcontractors.
—ECFR|FEEREREEBR A A 67
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The Group relies on the Safety and Environmental Committee and
Site Safety and Environmental Committee to oversee and steer the
occupational health and safety management in our business
operations. Not only do these committees actively engage with our
employees, but also cooperate with our subcontractors to actively
implement the Group’s safety directives and protocols. Regular
safety meetings are held between project management, safety
officers, subcontractors’ representatives and workers’
representatives to share the latest information and best practices
related to occupational health and safety. Regular safety meetings
have also formed a platform for the various interested parties to
express their opinions on safety issues.

In addition to comprehensive directives and interactive
engagement, regular dissemination and trainings are also the
essential components of our safety management systems. We
publish quarterly safety bulletins along with occupational health and
safety news and events information internally to sustain the
momentum of safety awareness. Courses that were frequently
provided include safety training in confined spaces operation and
safety supervisors courses, etc. In response to the training needs,
the Group regularly commissions our Safety Training Centre as well
as external training institutions to carry out safety training courses
for our workers and employees.

Furthermore, we also established internal safety requirements and
targets as below:

o Zero fatal occupational accidents; and

° Less than 0.25 reportable accidents per 100,000 man-hours;
or

o Less than 9 reportable accidents per 1,000 workers.

Our continuous effort in improving occupational safety was widely
recognised in the community. SFK have won many awards from
Development Bureau, Construction Industry Council, Occupational
Safety and Health Council and The Hong Kong Housing Authority.
Please refer to the details in “Chapter 9 — Awards and Recognition
Highlights” in this report.

In the reporting period, the accident rate of the Group was 0.22
reportable accident per 100,000 man-hours. While this number
was lower than the accident frequency rate objective set by
Development Bureau, we would continue to improve our
performance in occupational health and safety.
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In the reporting period, the Group was fined for a total sum of
HK$97,000 in respect of convictions related to 2 incidents in
violation of the regulations under the Factories and Industrial
Undertaking Ordinance (Cap. 59) on two sites. These two accidents
were considered to be independent and isolated incidents.

Save as disclosed above or otherwise in this annual report, the
Group has in all material respects complied with all applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong in relation to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Table 6.3 Total Work-related Fatality and Work Injury

12 E

tEREA®RE

TREHERN - AEERELEREBRSE —
T%Eﬁ(ﬁﬁﬁ&L&%SQﬁ(Iﬂi&I%%ﬁa{
BIYEAT 8033 6l 15 £ 58 - 597,000 7T
M RERERABE T RERIEH -

B EXHAFRAIEEEN  ARERERE
EEEEEHETERLE TRRELRER
BRXRBECENMAEREERIESR -

R6ITEHEBANSHE THEAERH

2021 2020 2019
=B —T-TF —TNF
Work-related Fatality TEHEBNE K
Total Number of Fatality FLT- 4R SR 0 0 1
Rate (Number of Fatality per 1,000 LER (1,000 8 2 Bz
Fulltime-equivalent T AT A
Construction Workers) 0 0 0.25%
Lost Man-Day due to Work Injury REI{EREXLXIH
Total =t 2,312 2,870 8,810

Note:

Number of full-time-equivalent construction workers is determined by dividing total
man-hours by 10 workhours per day, and then further divided by 294 workdays per
annum (workdays are approximated based on a 6-day workweek in 365 calendar
days, less 12 days of statuary holidays and 7 days of paid vacation days).
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Exhibit: Enhancement Prevention Measure against COVID-19

In term of wastewater treatment, the WHO added, “So far, there is
no evidence that the COVID-19 virus has been transmitted through
the sewage treatment system regardless of whether the wastewater
is treated or not.” The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
stated that sewage treatment plants do deal with viruses and other
pathogens, and that this virus is “especially easy to be disinfected.”
The Water Environment Federation (WEF) stated that for employees
involved in wastewater management operations, specific protection
measures for COVID-19 are not recommended. Workers should
follow normal practices and prevent contact with wastewater.

Nevertheless, in order to make employees working on the site of
the sewage treatment plants healthier, we have added and
enhanced preventive measures against COVID-19, and set up the
closed automatic disinfection facilities at the access of specific
workplace. Its functions and facilities are as follows:

° Automatic Disinfection Facilities and Access Control;
o Provision of metal shelter;
° Provision of enclosed plastic enclosure;

o Provision of disinfection facilities with infrared sensor, its
coverage distance is 10m?.

The procedures of the disinfection include: step 1 — body
temperature check by self-stand thermometer; step 2 — atomizer
will turn on automatically when the sensor detects that any person
enters the detector area and the disinfection procedure will
commence. The atomizer will generate harmless disinfection mist
(Hypochlorous acid) and carry out the disinfection procedures
which will last for 5 seconds. The system will inform the person
promptly until the disinfection procedures are completed; step 3 —
the person leaves from disinfection zone.

Hypochlorous acid is found naturally in white blood cells of
mammeals, including the human body. It is non-toxic and has been
used as a safe wound care solution for many years. When
dissolved in water, hypochlorous acid water has been found to
have strong disinfection properties. Given this and its non-toxicity, it
has been identified as a useful cleaning agent and sanitizer. It has
been identified by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency as a
disinfectant effective against COVID-19, backed by clinical studies.
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The installation of this closed automatic disinfection facilities by
SFK, has promoted the enhancement of disinfection procedure and
reduced the opportunities of infection towards workers, their
families and the public. Automatic machine and procedure reduce
the man-power for operation and the opportunities for human and
human contact.

MERACLKREMBMAAABESRE  fR(E
MBEHFIEF  WRETA ERARARE
FERAREORE A BRI RERF B
BRIEMATARABAKBOK S

Education, Training and Career Development 6.3 HE - - EZIRBERE
Education is the foundation of development. With an intention to lay HERERNER - BT ENRSEREEER
down a concrete groundwork for SFK’s sustainable development in WA RBEEEE TR EMNER  BMBOXZH
the construction business, we are committed to supporting the BTWHE MF -
education and training of our staff.
To cultivate the professional knowledge and technical capability of RIEBEEENIEFME LEMEE N - AEEE
our employees, the Group provides extensive staff development HEZHE THERE - SRS - i
and training, including on-the-job trainings, seminars, workshops, S IEY B ERREEMRBZENE
site visits and formal training schemes approved by professional AIFEHE c EARNABEIRMASHX
institutes. Devoted to offering adequate support to our staff, SFK BFORHAETHEERE E2BHUREHAR
offers paid study leave, subsidies for tuition, as well as examination B UEARREMIRSKE -
leave to maximise the fruitful result.
Adhering to social distancing measures amid the COVID-19 fECOVID-19 R i 1T B - BR 45 FRHR AT 22 BB
pandemic, some of the planned training workshops were HHE - — L E R B IE TIES AR g
conducted in the form of webinars instead of physical attendance. R RETT - MIEREHE -
Below is the percentage of employees of the training and the LTAREFENSEEINEILIIRESH
average training hours per employee during the reporting year. 8 TH)FIE IR o
Table 6.4 Full-time Employees Trained *642RTIEER
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
Gender 4 Bl
Male B 13.9% 8.8%
Female egi 6.6% 2.2%
Employee Category EEER
Senior Management SREE 75.0% 6.4%
Middle Management R EIEE 22.9% 9.2%
Junior Level MR 3.6% 4.7%
TECFHRI|IFTREEREEBERAA 71
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Table 6.5 Average Training Hours Completed Per Full-time R65FE2REERTHZIN IR
Employee
2021 2020
B —ETHF
Gender 5l
Male B 1.2 0.7
Female peqis 0.4 0.2
Employee Category EEER
Senior Management SRERE 1.9 0.6
Middle Management FRERE 24 0.9
Junior Level AR 0.2 0.4
CHAPTER 7 OPERATING PRACTICES BgLtE BERMG
7.1 Quality and Compliance Management 71 EEHAGHRER
It is the Group’s commitment to materialise our work at its finest. AEEMESRUSHNEZRERRMANT

72

SFK has established and implemented a recognised quality
management system in compliance with ISO 9001 international
standard, which assures quality deliverables to our clients by
ensuring that:

o The services and works we deliver to our customers meet the
specifications and requirements of our customers and the
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements;

° The sites under our management and operation follow the
policies and procedures defined in the quality management
system at all stages with the relevant records produced to
substantiate compliance with the requirements;

o We continuously review and seize opportunities to improve
our products and services and the effectiveness of the quality
management system to enhance customers’ satisfaction; and

° The quality management is given the highest practicable
priority in discharging our contractual obligations.

The quality and compliance of all project sites are safeguarded by
our Project Quality Policy and systematic control process under the
Group’s quality management system. For each project, a project-
specific Quality Assurance Plan shall be prepared, implemented
and regularly reviewed for the quality and compliance management.
It integrates the company quality management system with the
contract requirements of the project. The plan shall (i) define the
organization and resources to be employed, (i) identify the project
documents showing the quality and compliance, (iii) set out quality
control processes on workmanship, (iv) set out the quality control
processes on materials and (v) set out quality control processes on
design works.
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Inspection and Test Plans (ITP) shall be prepared in accordance
with contract specification, to define the sequence and stages at
which inspections and tests are to be performed, the acceptance
criteria, the certification or records required for the inspection and/
or test activities to be carried out during the execution of the
Works. The ITP plans are project specific. The works undergo our
inspection process to detect non-compliance, and any
noncompliance is then subject to rectification and re-inspection till
the quality specification is fulfilled. Additionally, we value comments
from all our stakeholders so as to further improve the quality of our
deliverables and, if applicable, timely and effectively process them
in accordance with our complaint handling system to resolve
complaints.

The Group has paid full respect to proprietary intellectual property
and shall refrain from using any ideas, products and goods without
proper authorisation. We have also formulated and established
procedures to protect intellectual property rights. All our installed
operating systems and softwares are sourced from authorised
suppliers or copyright holders to respect the integrity of intellectual
property rights. The unauthorized use of or tampering with the
Group’s computers, programs and data will be regarded as criminal
activities and reportable to relevant law enforcement authorities.

We set up our internal administration system in a way that
information and data about our clients are always under secure
protection. We are also committed to protecting the privacy of our
employees, subcontractors and clients in accordance with our
code of practice and the relevant regulations, including the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486). All employees are reminded of
the need to maintain all information related to the Group on a
strictly confidential basis and shall not during or after their
employment make unauthorized copies, use, take, remove or
disclose to any person or company, confidential information,
materials, documents, precedents and/or data in any form which
belong to the Group or any client of the Group.

The Group will only collect those personal data that is necessary to
fulfil the relevant functions and activities. Where the person from
whom personal data is or will be collected, he or she will be
informed of the details and the purposes of the collection on or
before the data is being collected. He or she will also have the right
of access and correction with respect to the data provided.

In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable rules and regulations governing health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to works and
services provided and methods of redress in all material respects.
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7.2
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Table 7.1 Non-compliance and Complaints RTI1EREFERRKRF
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Total completed works subject to HZz2 RigEREHEG D
recalls for safety and health EHTHITIREH
reasons 0 0
Number of complaints received at ERATIEMEEMLTER
the corporate level relating to AR FE AR RO 1% 5 X X
works and services 0 0

Supply Chain Management

Only by joining hands with a team of partners can we attain our
sustainability pledges. It is crucial for us to maintain active
communication and engagement with our suppliers and
subcontractors so as to effectively manage environmental and
social risks along the supply chain. The typical environmental and
social issues associated with our operations include environmental
pollution, hazards to occupational health and safety, impacts on
communities and compliance with the environmental-related and
social-related laws and regulations.

The Group implements comprehensive review and monitoring
procedures to ensure our supply chain is suitable and capable for
our works and able to pursue our policies on environmental and
social management. SFK maintains a list of qualified suppliers and
subcontractors based on factors including requirements under the
main contracts with our client, previous collaboration experience
and our evaluation of their performance. Addition of new suppliers
or subcontractors has to go through our internal approval process
in which the financial stability, adequacy of resources, past
performance and ability to meet requirements on schedule, quality,
environmental, safety are assessed.

Our suppliers and subcontractors range from sole proprietorships
with several employees to sizeable companies registered under the
List of Approved Contractors for Public Works and/or the Specialist
List of the Development Bureau, and many of which have
collaborated with us for over ten years. With mutual trust, we can
comprehensively evaluate our subcontractors and ensure the
consistent quality of our works. Every year, we assess the
performance in terms of quality, safety, environment, financial
stability and resource availability of all active suppliers and
subcontractors.

Along with compliance assessment and performance review, we
also hold trainings to suppliers and subcontractors to refresh and
update their knowledge of the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements as well as the specific project requirements.
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The Site Safety and Environmental Committee of each project
oversees and steers the management of safety and environmental
risks of the project including the subcontractors. These committees
actively engage with our subcontractors to effectively implement
the Group’s directives to properly manage the risks. Whenever
applicable, safety officers and environmental officers will be
appointed in project sites to assess and monitor subcontractor’s
safety and environmental risks onsite and to ensure these risks are
properly managed and reduced to an acceptable level.

As part of our daily operations, we collect and review information of
our suppliers regarding their compliance and performance to
ensure their consistent attainments of the Group’s relevant
standards. The Group is committed to reducing the environmental
footprint of our supply chain. We encourage and support sourcing
from local, responsible, and ethical suppliers. Priority is given to
suppliers who value and act according to the principles of
sustainable development.

We proactively procure environmental-benign products for our
construction projects. Standardized precast products were
adopted to reduce wastage. Recycling and reuse of moulds for the
precast modules at the prefabrication yard can also lead to
reduction of cost and material wastage. To avoid consumption and
disposal of conventional timber and bamboo material, we also
purchase durable steel mould and steel scaffold which are reusable
in our construction works. Some of our construction plant also use
B5 biodiesel, which complies with EN 14078:2003. Other green
products such as solar water heaters, solar lamps, LED lights, T5
fluorescent tubes and motion sensors for lighting control were also
purchased for deployment on project sites. Our active procurement
of environmental-friendly products catalyses our supply chain to
advance into a progressively environmental-benign one.

R g kEARRE
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Table 7.2 Number of suppliers as at the end of the reporting RTI2AREBRWHEREE
period
Region & Number
£ 4=
Hong Kong ) 423
Southeast Asia and South Asia ENE RS 2
Table 7.3 Number of sub-contractors as at the end of the RISRBEH RN EEFHA
reporting period
Region & Number
£ =]
Hong Kong & 352
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7.3 Moral Integrity and Anti-corruption

76

Morality is the keystone of all long-lasting business. The Group
attaches great importance to moral integrity and anti-corruption by
unwaveringly adhering to relevant laws and regulations such as
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201). SFK is committed to
upholding the highest ethical standard of business conduct.

SFK’s internal Code of Business Conduct related to anti-bribery
and unethical and illegal behaviours governs all our employees.
Bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering are not tolerated in
SFK. The Code is communicated to our directors and employees
and supplemented with an ICAC anti-corruption video training
prepared by the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against
Corruption, (“ICAC”) to ensure their understanding of and
compliance with all the requirements. We also require our
employees to declare any conflict of interest at least annually.
During the festive seasons, we also issue notices to our
subcontractors and suppliers to remind them of SFK’s anti-
corruption policy.

Moreover, we also regularly invite speakers from ICAC to conduct
anti-corruption training to give seminars to our directors,
management and our staff on the comprehensive and effective
approach to anti-corruption. In the reporting period, we invited
ICAC to deliver a total of four seminars tailored for construction
industry. Over 75 of our members (including our Directors)
participated in the seminars to refresh themselves with the latest
anti-corruption information.

SFK has established effective procedures and confidential whistle-
blowing channels to guarantee thorough investigation of all
allegations of corruption and ethical impropriety. All complaints
received by the Managing Director via confidential fax or letter are
promptly processed and investigated. Any employee in violation of
our company policies or applicable laws and regulations will be
reported to the ICAC and wherever appropriate, shall be subject to
disciplinary action.

In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable rules and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering in all material respects. No concluded legal
case concerned with corrupt practices was brought against SFK or
any of our employees in the reporting period.
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Table 7.4 Total Number of Corrupt Practices

BRI e kEa®mE

RTAEBRITHABE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF

RIS BT A
Aﬁi%ﬁi
G BB R LR

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting
period

%{ H

CHAPTER 8 COMMUNITY

8.1

8.2

Community Participation

SFK believes that true charity is the desire to be useful to others
with no thought of recompense. In order to express our support to
community, we offer sponsorships and donations to various not-
for-profit organisations, and also form collaboration with social
welfare organisations, charity groups and community organisations
to organise our staff to take part in voluntary and charity activities.

Through various channels including e-mails, company website and
annual report, the effectiveness of our community activities and
feedbacks from the community groups are evaluated by the
Group’s administration department and volunteer team organising
committee. Based on these feedbacks, the Group’s sustainability
objectives are regularly reviewed.

Community participation brings all-round benefits to SFK.
Externally, the community participation fosters a tighter relationship
with various community organisations. Internally, it also gathers
together our staff members from different departments and different
project sites, boosting our team spirit to contribute to the well-
being of the Group and the society.

Focus Areas of Contribution
8.2.1 Health

Health is the foundation for each and every success that
COVID-19 pandemic reminded us. The Group strives to
promote healthy lifestyles and shows our support to those in
need.

In response to the initiative of Construction Industry Council
during the local outbreak of COVID-19, the Group offered
near 7,300 boxes of mask for more than 2,400 frontline
construction workers.
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The Group also participated in the “Smoke-free Run” in April
2021. SFK staff members joined the virtual running event hold
by The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society Kowloon to promote
public awareness of the hazards of smoking and promote
smoke-free culture in Hong Kong.

8.2.2 Voluntary Services

The Group encourages involvement in voluntary services as
one of the many ways to contribute to community. SFK
volunteer team serves our communities through selfless
dedication to a wide variety of people in need, such as
elderly, children, as well as people with disability. So as to
extend our reach to those in need, we collaborate with
various social organisations, welfare organisations and charity
groups to organise events and activities for maximum benefits
and impacts.

Among all our voluntary services in the reporting period, we
collaborated with SAHK to co-organize a volunteer activity,
“Water World in Summer” in July 2021. Our volunteers spent
a wonderful weekend morning with 2 groups of children with
special needs between the ages of 5 and 11 at Parent’s
Resource Centre of SAHK in Shek Wai Kok. Through the
activity, volunteers can understand more about the children’s
need and raise the corresponding awareness in our society.

On top of serving children, our care also extended to social
grassroots. In September 2021, we partnered with Hephzibah
Serving Centre to carry out a meaningful event in the Mid-
Autumn Festival to share the festival heart-warming feeling to
the audience. Our partner Hephzibah Serving Centre
sponsored 350 gift packs including mooncakes donated by
Ginko House to our frontline workers. With joy and harmony,
the event promoted the well-being of the social grassroots
and served as recurring reminder of our traditional virtues.

The Group also participated in the “Care For Your Heart”
Charity Walk 2021 in December 2021. 80 SFK staff members
joined the event and raised funding for “Care For Your Heart”
to promote public awareness of heart health and to contribute
to the rehabilitation of heart disease patients.

SFK spares no expense in fostering the culture of
volunteering. In the reporting period, the Group contributed
over HK$15,000 of sponsorship or in-kind sponsorship to
voluntary services. At the same time, our volunteer team
devoted more than 180 man-hours to those in need. Not only
does the voluntary works contribute to the communities, it
also helps our employees discover and explore their potential
and capability.
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CHAPTER 9 AWARDS AND RECOGNITION ENE BREAREFHE

HIGHLIGHTS
Table 9.1 #*9.1

Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
RERRHAERE HEEE BRAH BREE
5 years+ Caring Company Logo The Hong Kong Council March 2021 Sun Fook Kong Holdings
BESFR I EEEARBRER of Social Service “T-—F=f Limited

B gREHE B ERER AR

QF Star Employer Education Bureau March 2021 Sun Fook Kong Housing
QFEfE=E HER —E-—%=f Services Limited

HREETREERAA

Wastewi$e Certificate — Basic Level Environmental Campaign Committee  June 2021 Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited
Project: CEDD Maintenance of Contract for REEHLES —E-—FXA HEB(EAR)ARAA
Pier (2017-2022)
REEE — [ BRI
BHE IATIEREERELBRESH
(Z2—+t5Z2-FT-_F)
27th Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme Development Bureau and August 2021 Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited
— Considerate Contractors Site Awards Construction Industry Council —E-—F)\A MRA(LAR)BRAT
— Public Works — RMAA Works — Merit Award B /5 - BiEE#E
Fo7EREM BRI — AR —
IHIR-#E RS SRRNETE -
BRER
27th Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme Development Bureau and August 2021 Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited
— Outstanding Environmental Management Construction Industry Council —E-—-FN\A s (AR BRAF
and Performance Awards BER BREXZRE
FoTEREMBEIE - RLIREEER
Good MPF Employer Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes ~ September 2021 SFK Construction Holdings
BorEE Authority —T--FNA Limited
wEEREHEERR R REREEERAA
Partner Employer Award 2021 — Certificate of The Hong Kong General Chamber of  November 2021 SFK Construction Holdings
Appreciation (Enterprise) Small and Medium Business - —F+—H Limited
[RERR]BFatE2021 — B EEAR  BARNECRERS FRAREREEERAA
Expansion of Hong Kong International Airport into Hong Kong International Airport November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
a Three-Runway System — Environmental BHBBE S ZZ=—%+—FR Limited

Recognition Award Certificate of Recognition
for Outstanding Environmental Performance in
Q83 2021

BREBRRESKAZRBERS — 2021 F
E-FEMLBARR AR TR
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Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
REJRHERE PEEE ¥ ER A=k BRKE
CEDD Construction Site Safety Award Civil Engineering and Development  November 2021 Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited
2020 — Silver Award Department —“Eo—F+—f HEEBE(ER)BRAF
IATRARZEI MR 2 AH2020 — R ITARIRIARE
22th Construction Safety Forum and Award Occupational Safety and Health November 2021 Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited
Presentation — Best Refurbishment and Council —E-—F+—f FRBEEAR)BRATE
Maintenance Contractor in Occupational Safety Bi¥Z 2 ER
and Health — Merit Award
F T EREELEHFTEEREAL
- RERTREBIREARE — BRE
22th Construction Safety Forum and Award Occupational Safety and Health November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Presentation — Best Safety Enhancement Council T —F+—H Limited
Programme for Lifting Operation BEZ2RER FRAEEERAR
— Bronze Award
FT_EREXREHETQERBMEE
- REREIERZNETE — %
Quality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority November 2021 Bestwise Envirotech Limited
Maintenance Awards 2021 — Water Supply & BEEEZEE —“E-—F+—F BERREHEBRAF
Fire Services Installation — Outstanding
Contractor (Maintenance & Improvement
Project)
BERAFEERERRERERE2021
— HREBR IR RERE — RERER
WETR A G ARRE
Quality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority ~ November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2021 — Outstanding AAEEZE® B Limited
Worker (District Term Contract) — Concrete FRALEERAR
Repairer (Spalling Concrete)
BERAAEERERRERE KN E2021
— RRLTEMICRRLIE)
- @#ETIR(DREHAL)
Quality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority ~ November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2021 — Outstanding EBEELREE —T—%1+—A Limited
Contractor’s Supervisor FRAEEERAR

(Maintenance & Improvement Project)
BERAAFEERERREHEBAE2021
- REKERNERE - REAEFHET
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Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
REJRHERE PEEE ¥ ER A=k BRKE
Quiality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2021 — Outstanding EBEELZEE —E-—F+—A Limited
Contractor (Maintenance & Improvement FRAEEERAR
Project) — Merit Award for Fighting Epidemic
(Works Contractor)
BEALFERERERRERHBRE2021
- REKERBEEE — REAER
- NEEER(ITREEER)
Quiality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority ~ November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2021 — New Works THAEEZE® B Limited
Projects — Outstanding Site Foremen FRALEERAR
BERAFERERERRERERE2021
— MI2EE - AEITHET
Quality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority ~ November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2021 — New Works TAEEZE® —E-—F1+—A Limited
Projects — Best Site Safety — Active Site Safety FRALEERAR
Improvement — Building
BELAAFERERRERIEAE2021
- ¥IRRER - RETHLE
— IR IhE 2 F (REE)
Quality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority  November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2021 — New Works BEAFEEZESG ZEF1+—-A Limited
Projects — Outstanding Workers — Plumber FRAEEERAR
BEAAFEERERRERHEAE2021
—HIRER - fHEIR — KKE
Quality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority ~ November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2021 — New Works BEAFEEZESG ZEF1+-A Limited
Projects — Outstanding Workers FRAEEERAR
— Lifting Supervisor
BEAAFEERERREHBAE2021
—HIRER - fHIR - REEEE
Quality Public Housing Construction and The Hong Kong Housing Authority November 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2021 — Useof BMat ~ BEEEZEE —E-—F1+—A Limited

Construction Stage (Main Contractor)
— Merit Award

BEAAEERERREHBAE2021
— BEESEREMERANE IR
(EEn) — BRE
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=
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Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
REJRHERE PEEE ¥ ER A=k BRKE
2020 Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Environmental Campaign Committee  December 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Excellence — Construction Industry RIEEHLES 2 -F+ZA Limited
— Merit Award FEBEEERAR
2020 BBRFEEHWALE — BiEk — BRE
Wastewi$e Certificate — Basic Level Environmental Campaign Committee  December 2021 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Project: Construction of Public Rental Housing ~ RIZEHZES —T-—%+=A Limited
Development Phases 182 and Subsidised Sale FRAEEERAR
Flats Development at Diamond Hill
Comprehensive Development Area
REEE — [ WA
BB BRLGAEREARBEIFEERIER
E-NE_BREPHEFRERTEIRE
IR
CHAPTER 10 LOOKING AHEAD FT+E REZ

Foresight is a critical adaptive strategy for times of high uncertainty.
Through proactive communication with various stakeholders including the
authority and our clients, we maintain vigilance of the latest development
of the industry and the expectations from our stakeholders, and strive to
create value for our stakeholders through prudent management of
material environmental and social aspects.

ESG has been increasingly valued by stakeholders. SFK will continue to
integrate ESG into our governance structure and disclose more ESG-
related information to enhance transparency in response to the latest
requirements and trend. SFK will explore cost-effective technologies and
methods to further improve our quality of works as well as achieving
better safety and environmental management. Our pioneering adoption of
digital technologies such as Digital Works Supervision System (DWSS)
and Building Information Modeling (BIM) in the project management and
volumetric prefabrication offers more opportunities to reduce uncertainty,
improve occupational safety, and minimise waste generation.

Progress is not automatic. Every step toward the goal requires

commitment, devotion and exertion; and it is our responsibility to get
ourselves ready for the challenges to come.
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APPENDIX THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG
REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX TABLE

HKSE ESG Reporting
Guide
BRXARIR HER

Description

ti:pu

Chapter

1]

Bisd BIXFIEE - M EREBHMEESI
RESEAIE

E /l:l iﬁd:?El '3'

A. Environmental

A IRE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : BEY

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'A1.1

FASAE IR IR A1

KPI'A1.2

FASAEIRIRAL.2

KPI'A1.3

FASAEIEIR AL

KPI'A1.4

FARERIERAL4

Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BHERIORERBHN - MKEIHEEDS - BER
BEBRRVNELSN
@ HE: R
b) BTFTHEHBETABERZENHBERZLRG
EE R} o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

HERUIE S AR BE B -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (FE1) ReRMEE (FE2) A= R g/ HJFBSZE
(AMEEHE) K (nEA) ZE (A SES 8N
BIERMERTE) ©

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FEABEREEYESE (CAMESE) & (ER)
FE(MASESEN - FHERHBITE)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FrEAEEEEYESE (CAMSE) & (ER)
FE(MASESEN - §HERHBITE)

—TE-—FIR | FREEE

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 BER ) K B ) & 12

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 ProUR bl R BB 12

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 ProiR bl R BB 12

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 BERIR I KR BEY) E 12

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 BERIR I R BEY) E 1R

REBEBRRQF
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BRXERE L8R Hut E=1:]
ERWMERES
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to 5.1 Emission Control and

84

BREMIEIRA1E

KPI'A1.6

RIS EIEIZA1.6

achieve them.
A L BEE B E R AE

25 L B R FTERERAY

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

HEEEEREEEEYNAE - R 8
BEEERAETEE B EMERNLSR

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EmA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

—fRINEE

KPI A2.1

BASRAE RUIEIR A2.1

KPI' A2.2

RRERIEIRA2.2

KPI'A2.3

PR AEMIEIRA2.3

KPI' A2.4

PR AE IR A2.4

SFK Construction

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BRERER K REAMRME) WK

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

WERE SN ERE RS EEER(INE =&5EE>
wiEe (UTETEREAE) REE (NEESEM
HIERMETE) o

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BREKERTE (WAGESEN - BERMETHE)

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

HAPRET L MEERE AR AR R RE
PREREREY 2288

FELRIR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

i SR EGE AR KR ERT BE A R - A K PRET S
K AR R AERE L B R ERI Y 58 -

Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

Waste Management

5.1 BEpuE s R EWE R

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 BERuE s R EWE R

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52EAER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52E5AER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52E5AER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52=AEIR

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52=AEIR
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BRFTRIE - B8R i i1
EalEE
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Not applicable
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced. Note: As the operation of the

Group generally does not
involve addition of
packaging material to the
finished products, this
indicator is considered
immaterial and is not
reported in this report.
BB IEIR A2.5 BRI MET R BEMEIRNRE (AMEETE) & (ER) A3 A
BEEBMGEE -

MiEE - AR AREBEREET T
KRR mIEMEEME
WL EEREEATEER
RIARER 2],

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEAS : IRERRKNER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on 5.3 The Environment and
the environment and natural resources. Natural Resources

— MR R BIRBEITAHRERRARERERKEATENBR BIRFERAAER

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 5.3 The Environment and

environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

BB E BUEIE AS.1 B EBEHHIRRERRAERNEATER
EERIEIEE B BMITE o

Aspect A4: Climate Change

B A4 - RIREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

Natural Resources

53RFRRAEIR

5.4 Climate Change

— BB B REYDERAREEHHITAEEVENEARE  S4RRE(L
HEAEE AR o
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which 5.4 Climate Change

have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BB IE RHEIR A4 BB RAIGEGHETAEEATENERRIR
HEEE - REHTH -

—E—FRI|FEEEXEEBFR A A

5.4 RIEE1L
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BRXERE L8R Hut i1
oDk GECE]
B.  Social
B. #®&

Employment and Labour Practices

BERSITER

Aspect B1: Employment

BB : &BE

General Disclosure Information on: 6.1 Employment and Respect for

(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

—MRIXER ERATINRRE  BREREA  TERE - B T5
e Zal  REGSAREMEFSRERN
@ BoK: &
(b) ETHEITABERZENEBERKAR
B E R} o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type

(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

FASAE ISR B1.1 RIER - BEEE (N2 REERE) - FHRAR &
Hm B D H B B AR -
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Labour Rights

6.1 Employment and Respect for
Labour Rights

Note: As the operation and
employees of the Group is
predominantly in Hong
Kong, the segregation by
geographical region is
considered immaterial and
is not reported in the
report.

BIERBMEES IR

et aRARENZERER
I%%¢F%% &&%
EE DD ERERTE
ZHARNBER2HR
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BRFTRIE - B8R i i1
EalEE
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 6.1 Employment and Respect for

geographical region. Labour Rights

Note: As the operation and
employees of the Group is
predominantly in Hong
Kong, the segregation by
geographical region is
considered immaterial and
is not reported in this
report.

RABRERIEIEB1.2 RUER - FRARKMREDNEERKLE - 61 EBRESES Bk

izt - AR AEENEERES
FTEEPREE - LM
BB D H o EESE AN E
ZEERNARERERH -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

HB2 : @i

General Dlsclosure Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

6.2 Safety and Health

—MRIKER ERRUZ2TERERREEEMECBENLREN 6.2% % RIEE
@ HE: R
(b) ETHEITABERZENEBRERKAN
BEE -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 6.2 Safety and Health

each of the past three years including the reporting
year.
R AR B2.1

KPI B2.2
FABARIEIR B2.2

BEZF (BRERFE)SFHETEREMILTH
ABREEE -

Lost days due to work injury.

AISELITIEBE -

6.2% % MR

6.2 Safety and Health
6.2% % RIEE

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 6.2 Safety and Health
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
RARREIEIRB2.3 FEIRPTER AN B R R R 2 28 06 - LA RABRARIT X 6.2% % RIEE

ERITE-

—TE-—FIR | FREEE

REBEBRRQF
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide

BERATIRIR - B8R i -}
EalEE

Aspect B3: Developing and Training
[BHE B3 : R &IE

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B3.1

PR AR ISR B3

KPI B3.2

FASAENIRR B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

ERRAEEBITIIERE O AB R EEMNER -
REEE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

RUERREEEN(WRRERE  FREERES)
EPXIEERD °

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

BRI EBENE D - BREETRIIIN TR -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

B B4 : 45 T %8|
General Disclosure

— R EE

KPI B4.1

RSB RIS 1R B4

KPI B4.2

PRSI 1R B4.2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B IEE T k58 Hl% TH) -

@ B

b) EFEHBITABERZENEBERZNAD
EVE RS o

Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.
R RIE B OIS e AR 2 E T KaEslS T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

R B IRE BUIE ERR B BB AT ERER Y 5 88
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6.3 Education, Training and
Career Development

6.3HA - HillRBEER

6.3 Education, Training and
Career Development

6.3HA - HillRBEER

6.3 Education, Training and
Career Development

6.3HE - Wl RBEER

6.1 Employment and Respect for
Labour Rights

61 EEBREESSEa

6.1 Employment and Respect for
Labour Rights
6.1 EBRES LB kR

6.1 Employment and Respect for
Labour Rights
BIERBMEES ISR
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description
Guide

BRFTRIE - B8R i
EalEE

Chapter

Operating Practices

BB

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
MBS : HEHEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

—R R BB IRE R G RMECE o

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RSB RIS 1R BS.A i@ S MHEERHE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

BB AE WIEIR BE.2 AR R HEERNIED - MERITEBELN
HEBHEE  ARBREFNRITRERTE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

B A RIERB5.3 A R AR e B EIR AT IR IR A @ R 1B 6 -

AT REER A

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B A BUIEIE B5.4 BRI R R (2 2 2 IR IR EE n RIS 018 71 -

AN ABBIIT RERTTE -

7.2 Supply Chain Management

72 EEE R

7.2 Supply Chain Management
72 ERER

7.2 Supply Chain Management

72 EGEE IR

7.2 Supply Chain Management

7.2 EGEE IR

7.2 Supply Chain Management

72 EEETE

SEC AR FEERREEARAT
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HKSE ESG Reporting
Guide
BERFTIRIR - HER
ERWmEREL

Description

i pud

Chapter

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EMB6: EmEE
General Disclosure

—fRIEE

KPI B6.1

FASR AR IS5 B6.1

KPI B6.2

FASAE IR 1R B6.2

KPI B6.3

RS IE1R B6.3

KPI B6.4

PR AR 1R B6.4

KPI B6.5

FASAENIEIRB6.5

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
BHREERNRBEHNEREZ S BE  RER
LB EE AR AN
@ BX:K
(b) BETHEITABERZENERERKARD
B E R} o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.
E%&Eitﬁmﬁﬁ¢ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
[EIEE GO ERa

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BREBNERMREHRFERE AR ELETE -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

fii it ER A AR [B AN EEE B RAEVIE DI -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

S E5E B2 MEmBIER -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

HUE B E ERHRIE RALBBR - AREERNITR
BEER L o
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7.1 Quality and
Compliance Management

N
=
fin
pai
op>
&
il
e

7.1 Quality and
Compliance Management
TIEEERARER

7.1 Quality and
Compliance Management
TIEERARER

7.1 Quality and
Compliance Management
TIEEHRAHRER

7.1 Quality and
Compliance Management
TIEEERARER

7.1 Quality and
Compliance Management
TIEERARER
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description
Guide

BRFTRIE - B8R i
EalEE

Chapter

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EEB7 : REE
General Disclosure Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— R EE BRAW IR 9% - MEFRLRED
@ B K
b) EFEHBEITABERZENEBERZNAD
EE RS o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

BB A BUIEIE BT 1 RERANEETASEEEREYEELENER
FARRUREE RFAER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
S ERUEIEBT.2 TR By S b MR RZF - URMBERIT RER X -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
BB B IEIRBT.3 HimEE R E TREORETE

Community

Zan

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : (@&

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

— R B RBER T R BEM R T EMER
HEEBETHEERMRMZRALEER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
BB 4E HE1E B8 1 EIER®E(HE  RREFEH BTHFFR - EF-

Xt - 8F) e

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

R ERIERB8.2 EEIBEMPAER (NS EKERH)

7.3 Moral Integrity and Anti-
corruption

7.3 Moral Integrity and Anti-
corruption

7.3ERMEERER

7.3 Moral Integrity and Anti-
corruption

EEPEHERER

7.3 Moral Integrity and Anti-
corruption
TI3BEBEERER

8.1 Community Participation

8.1tEm&aE

8.2 Focus Areas of Contribution

8.2 BRI T € [E

8.2 Focus Areas of Contribution

8.2 BRI EE

—E—FRI|FEEEXEEBFR A A
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises that corporate governance practices are crucial to
the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and its
ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve its
corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has adopted the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The references to the code provisions in this report has
been updated with reference to the amended CG Code effective on 1
January 2022. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions, except for the deviation
from provision C.2.1 and D.2.5 of the CG Code during the Year.

According to provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not have a chief executive
officer and such role has been assumed by the managing director of the
Company. Mr. Chan Ki Chun is the chairman and the managing director
of the Company. In the view that Mr. Chan has been assuming day-to-
day responsibilities in operating and managing the Group since 1999, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Chan taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances.

According to code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company should
have an internal audit function. The Company does not establish a
standalone internal audit department, however, the Board has put in
place adequate measures to perform the internal audit function in relation
to different aspects of the Group. In 2021, the Company appointed an
external internal control adviser to perform periodic review of our internal
control system to evaluate the effectiveness and formulate plans and
recommendations for improvement of our internal control measures and
policies. It is intended to review the effectiveness of the Group’s material
internal controls so as to provide assurance that key internal control
measures are carried out appropriately and are functioning as intended.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group’s operations and
sufficient checks and balances are in place. The Board will continue to
review its corporate governance practices in order to enhance its
corporate governance standard, to comply with regulatory requirements
and to meet the growing expectations of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and investors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which include (a) to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management of the
Group; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to the employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to
review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant
disclosures in the corporate governance report as set out in the annual
report of the Company.

The Board is performing the abovementioned corporate governance
functions throughout the Year.

THE BOARD

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
The Board has established three Board committees (the “Board
Committees”), being the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising three executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”).
As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. YUNG Kim Man

Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William

INEDs

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun

Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon

A NE
TEERMS

EREIRR

EFEQRARTEEEATAEA21IGAELEE
ARE - B @ BIE MR AR R EEERNBEK
RER: BRI REEAEEEERSREEAR
BB EFEEXER O REEARRRNK
EREREENAERLEERE  HE - f&h
REEBBERRAKEREREENTATIEAR
B FMIE)  ROBRIARRALETEEE
JATRIRR AR R FRABDEEARENEBR

==

B

EReNBEFEANET LACKERRE

EEE

EEERNARBENBEARNRER - EFARE
BY —HEHRRNARERRNKENRTE &
FERV=FEFZES(EFZBE]) AHE
BARREHEER  HRAERZER((EXRE
Bgl) REZBEE((RE2ZEgDAFHEZES

([HMEE=]) -

EEEEK

E=eRANREREN BR=ZRUTESFE=
FEGFATER((FUIFRTES]) - RARS
HE - EEamUTESEMK

HTES
BREIE 56 A (B B A2
BRI S
BB

BYFHITES
MREELE
EREE
BRI 52 A4

TECFR|IFEREEREEBER QA 93



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N
TEEBMS

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and
experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. The biographies of the Directors (and
their relationships, if any) are set out in the “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report, which
demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
Save as disclosed therein, there are no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service agreement with
the Company for a further fixed term of three years with effect from 10
December 2021, unless terminated by the respective Director or the
Company in accordance with the terms of the service agreement. Each
of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
which shall last for a period of three years with effect from 10 December
2021, subject to early termination by the INED or the Company in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.

Throughout the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The three INEDs represent more than one-third of the Board, the
proportion of which is higher than what is required by Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby INEDs of a listed issuer must represent at least
one-third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the interest of the
Shareholders.

Independence of the INEDs

The role of the INEDs is to provide independent and objective opinions to
the Board, giving adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the Shareholders and the Group. They serve
actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide their
independent and objective views. All the INEDs are free from any
business or other relationships with the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence
from each INED in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
INEDs are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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Board Diversity and Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Company’s board of directors. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of diversity of the Board members to enhance the quality of
its performance. While all Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. The nominations were made in
accordance with the nomination policy of the Group and selection of
candidates will be based on a range of objective criteria with due regard
for the benefit of diversity of the Board including, but not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.

The Company currently has six male Directors. As at 31 December 2021,
the gender ratio (male to female) in the workforce (including senior
management) of the Company is around 9:3. The Company recognises
the important of gender diversity and endeavours to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company (including the
Board). In order to further promote gender diversity within the Group, the
Company endeavours to ensure that there is gender diversity during the
recruitment of staff members at mid to senior level and provide training
and long-term development opportunities to its female staff members,
hence there will be a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successors to our Board. The Nomination Committee will use its best
endeavours to identify and recommend at least one suitable female
candidate to the Board for its consideration on appointment of a Director
by 31 December 2024.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination Policy setting out the selection
criteria, principles and procedures which the Board adopts for the
nomination and selection of directors, including the appointment of
additional directors, replacement of directors and re-election of directors
for Director to ensure that the board possess a balance of skill set,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives enhances decision-
making capability and the overall effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall make reference to the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy to selecting the suitable candidates to
the Board. The Board shall take into account the benefits of a diversified
Board and the potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board when selecting Board candidates.
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The Board will from time to time review the Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Policy and monitor its implementation, as appropriate, to
ensure its continued effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice. Details of the
nomination criteria and nomination procedures are set out on pages 103
to 104 of this annual report.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of
the Group, setting objectives and business development plans, assuming
responsibility of corporate governance and monitoring the performance
of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the managing director of the
Company, is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Group’s operations to the
Board on a regular basis to ensure effective performance of the Board’s
responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s
senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice
can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at
the Group’s expense upon their request. In accordance with code
provision D.1.2 of the CG Code, all the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial position
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

Continuing Professional Development

In compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, training,
briefing and updates on the latest development of the Listing Rules in
connection with the environmental, social and governance reporting,
internal control and risk management and other applicable regulatory
requirements have been provided to each Director during the Year to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. All the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in these respects, and have submitted their training records to the
Company. Continuing briefings and professional development for the
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.
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The individual training record of each Director during the Year is

summarised below:
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FA - BEFERIOHEABICEEMMAT

Attending training course(s)/

reading materials

Name of Director BEfSE SEEIIRE HMEER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun PBRELE A4 vV
Mr. CHAN Chor Tung PR R AL v

(Resigned on 10 December 2021) (R=—F=——F+=F+HEHT)

Mr. YUNG Kim Man ABIEAE v
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William BRE LA v
INEDs BAIFHITES

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun MRERAE v
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick BB L vV
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon BeR ) 2t o A vV

Board attendance

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least 4 regular

EEEHERR

EEERTZTAKRXECSIERE  8FEX

Board meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of a majority of the Directors, either in
person or through other electronic means of communication. Accordingly,
the Board will schedule to have at least four regular meetings in a year.

Other board meetings will be held if necessary.

During the Year, a total of 4 Board meetings and one annual general
meeting (the “2021 AGM”) of the Company were held and the attendance
records of the respective Directors at the Board meetings and the 2021

AGM are set out below:

BHEFERRELARNAEHNESTSSH A%
BEZTWBRIRNEBEMEFEBAT NG EREE
g [t EFERTHESFELBRNAERE
EoMALE  ATTAREMEZEEEE -

FRARFRERTTHOAESEEE LXK
REFAe((ZZ-_—FREAFAE]) BH=E
HHEESee SR S FRERFAESND
BREFIAT

Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year

FRHERE BREHRE

Board Meetings 2021 AGM
—B-—F
Name of Director BEENR EExeeE BRRBFERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Ki Chun PR = S A 4/4 11
Mr. CHAN Chor Tung PR 2R ST A 3/4 11
(Resigned on 10 December 2021) (R—ZEFEZ—F+=ZH+HEHT)
Mr. YUNG Kim Man ARSI E 4/4 11
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William BRE LA 4/4 11
INEDs BAIFHTES
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun ME &SRS 4/4 11
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick EEEAE 4/4 11
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon R ) 2 52 A 4/4 11
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on the
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions that may
be taken against the Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Group’s affairs and assist the Board in the execution of its
responsibilities. Each of these committees has specific written terms of
reference which clearly outline the committee’s authority and duties, and
which require the committee to report its decisions or recommendations
to the Board. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or professional
advice if considered necessary.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 19 November
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Jim Fun Kwong,
Frederick, Mr. Lam Leung Tsun and Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon. Mr. Jim
Fun Kwong, Frederick has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and is the INED with the appropriate professional
qualifications.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to
assist the Board by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of
the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, to monitor relationship with external auditor of the
Group, to review the Group’s financial information, to oversee the audit
process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.
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The members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year.

_LI_\//\-/-\-\

P EERME

ERZEEREEBFELHEMR - FR EKE

During the Year, the Audit Committee has held 3 meetings. The EWE”F%?J REeH BHEZEZEEKELRE
attendance records of the respective members of the Audit Committee at ~ :ZAIRCEREZI 0T -
its meetings are set out below:
Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year
FRHRERE, BHEIRY
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick (Chairman) 3/3
EEEE(EE)
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun 3/3
MR ERA
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon 3/3
FeR ) 5 A
A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during the Yearis BZZEBERFERETHTEREZEIIWOT ¢
set out as follows:
i reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the . RHASERE T -_TF+_A=+—AH1t
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Previous Year”) and for the 6 FE(L—FEDREEZZZ_—F A=+
months ended 30 June 2021; AL E A B4R S g

ii. reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group during the Previous Year;

. reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement of the deed of
non-competition executed by the controlling shareholders of the
Company in favour of the Group in the Previous Year;

iv.  recommended the Board on the re-appointment of external auditor
at the 2021 annual general meeting; and

V. reviewed the external auditor’s statutory audit scope for 2021 and

their independence of the external auditor and approved its
engagement.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 19
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Hung, Simon and Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick and one executive
director, namely Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William. Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon
has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among other
things, to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and make
recommendations on remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration paid to the Directors and the
five highest paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9, respectively, to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the Year are set out below:

FyMEES

ARBARZF-RF+-A+NHKIFHMERS
WARE £ T AR A 28 3.25 16k e b 3 BVA ST AILZ 57 AR
NHFEAIGAT L EEARERE - FHEZESHmA
BN TERRAELALERER L EER—BH
TERHEBELLMAK - R EEEZR TR
ZEEXIRF -

FHZEENEIBRAR (AT EB) FIELRIE
ERERERENTFHRERES ITHEERS
RERBNFMNFERIEZR -EERABESH
BRENFMHBD BIBNAFREA M ERKRM TS
K9

FARRERBKENFIEEFSHINWT

Number of individual

Remuneration band (HK$’000) HNEEE (T8T) AR
0-1,000 0% 1,000 4
1,000-2,000 1,000 £ 2,000 4
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The members of the Remuneration Committee should meet at least once
a year. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting.
The attendance records of the respective members of the Remuneration
Committee at its meetings are set out below:

/\_LI_\I/\-/-\-\

PTEERMSE

FHEZEEKEBREFELHE R FR - HMZ
BeCAR—XREH - AUKBLFEFNEZESS

KRG

AR ESIT

Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year

FRHBERE BHREHIE

Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon (Chairman)
BRI ST (F/E)

Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick

L b ivta

Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William
BB L

A summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the directors’ fees and made recommendation to the
Board for approval;

ii. reviewed the directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
package and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages; and

ii. assessed performance of executive directors and approved the
terms of all directors’ service agreements, with recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 19
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists of
one executive director, namely Mr. Chan Ki Chun and two INEDs, namely
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun and Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon. Mr. Chan Ki Chun
has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among other
things, to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at
least annually and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.
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The members of the Nomination Committee can call for a meeting

REZEGHREARVERBREHEHE - F/1 - 1

anytime when it is necessary. During the Year, the Nomination Committee #ZZB8€C BB —A@H - BHUKEHFERELZEE
held 1 meeting. The attendance records of the respective members of @& R AT
the Nomination Committee at its meetings are set out below:
Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year
FRHRERY BREIRE
Mr. CHAN Ki Chun (Chairman) 11
FREUZ SR A (L)
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun 11
MR E LA
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon 1/1
PR I 2 A
A summary of work performed by the Nomination Committee during the 22 & 8 @ N FRETH TIEMEZSH T -

Year is set out as follows:
i reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;

ii. assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company; and

. recommended the retiring Directors who offered themselves for re-
election at the 2021 annual general meeting for shareholders’
approval.
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Nomination Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for the directorship, a number
of criteria should be considered, including:

skills, knowledge, experience and professional expertise which are
relevant to the operations of the Group;

diversity aspects under the board diversity policy of the Group;
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the
Company;

character and integrity;

for INEDs, whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing

Rules; and

any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the
Board.

Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination
procedures:

Appointment of director

M

(i)

If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate, including internal
promotion, referral from directors, shareholders, management,
advisors of the Company and external executive search firms.

The Nomination Committee may propose to the Board a candidate
recommended or offered for nomination by a shareholder of the
Company as a nominee for election to the Board and the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors is subject to the approval of the Board.
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@iy~ On making recommendation, the Nomination Committee may
submit the candidate’s personal profile and a proposal to the Board
for consideration. In order to be a valid proposal, the proposal must
clearly indicate the nominating intention and the candidate’s
consent to be nominated and the personal profile must incorporate
and/or be accompanied by the full particulars of the candidate that
are required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, including the
information and/or confirmation required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules. If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
INED, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance
with the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to
any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from
time to time.

(iv)  The Board shall observe the Board Diversity Policy and shall,
subject to merit and suitability, continue in its endeavours to
introduce more diversity into the Board, taking into account
professional experience and qualifications, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and any other factors that the Board
might consider relevant and applicable from time to time towards
achieving board diversity.

Re-election of director

(i) When a retiring director, being eligible, offers himself for re-election,
the Board shall consider and, if consider appropriate, recommend
such retiring director to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
A circular containing the requisite information on such retiring
director will be sent to the shareholders of the Company prior to a
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(i) If an INED is subject to the re-election, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board will also assess and consider whether the INED
will continue to satisfy the independence requirements as set out in
the Listing Rules.

(i)  Each proposed appointment or re-election of a Director shall be
assessed and/or considered against the criteria and qualifications
set out in the Nomination Policy by the Nomination Committee
which shall recommend its views to the Board and/or the
Shareholders for consideration and determination.

The Board will from time to time review the nomination policy and monitor
its implementation, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness
and compliance with regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practice.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors,
each of the Directors confirmed that he has complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule B.13 of the Model Code, the Directors have also
requested any employee of the Company or director or employee of a
subsidiary of the Company who, because of his office or employment in
the Company or a subsidiary, is likely to possess inside information in
relation to the securities of the Company, not to deal in securities of the
Company when he would be prohibited from dealing by the Model Code
as if he were a Director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity is the company secretary of the Company.
Please refer to the section “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for her biographical information. All
Directors have access to the company secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the Year, Ms. Tang has completed not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by attending the continuing professional development programmes
as well as seminars covering regulatory updates and professional
knowledge about company secretary duties organised by professional
bodies.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows and in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and principles and
the disclosure requirements under applicable laws and regulations in
Hong Kong. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year, the Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates. The Board considers that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to any events or conditions which may affect the business of the Group
or cast doubts over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the ongoing concern
basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the external auditor of the Company, with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S 471 58 43 B 6 % 43 B 6 7 A
REMUNERATION

KPMG, certified public accountants (the “Auditor”) has been appointed ¥ &=t E SR &A= AT ([ 8E ) BEE(E
as the external auditor of the Company. During the Year, the fees paid/ AR TINEBHZENET o S - FhAZENET AL 1R M
payable to the Auditor in respect of its services provided to the Group is  EVRRIGEED T TEMEREH ST ¢

set out as follows:

Fees paid/payable

during the Year

FREM

EAER

(approximate

HK$’000)

(BEHFHIT)

Audit of annual financial statements EFEMBRE 1,660
Review of internal control 2 B B 90

1,750

The amount of fees charged by the Auditor generally depends on the ZERIFTUE R —RizZEMN TEHERITIES
scope and volume of the Auditor’s work. FTE

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee F R EFCHEZEZE R TE RZEINBZRH
on the selection and appointment of the external Auditor during the Year. A if &5 o
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT A BB R K R b B

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and $’m‘>¥”@ BEAEENRBREE R AIEHER
internal control systems and overseeing the management of the Group in I B £ 72N £ [ & 12 [ 4 2 b 5 18 Ko 70 30 422 ) B2 & 1
its design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and axEJF CHITREER o

internal control systems.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and & EZ@ a8 & NETAREFERFEI B IEMES
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic ~ EMWE[G S MI2E @ WHERANEBE R LG
objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains AFEAEMNEBREEN ANEHER -EEFE A
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. & "N i ] 2N 42 B B & F2 K A 2045 1 88 2 a9 3
The Board is also responsible for reviewing from time to time the ®EERTERENE  ETEFENKER  HiEE R AL
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control ~ EIRJ&@EHTEE - AEBE N B 7508 R AL

system, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and

experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,

internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different levels of AEBEEREEBRHEESH AEEEEETESER
management within the Group. Management of the Group is responsible & * SITT R EREMREIE M NIIEFHER - WEaF#H
for designing, implementing and monitoring risk management and internal Bl ~ 24T EB T R ELIEFHEF - LitEEe
control systems, and is responsible for identifying, analysing and #—5$%&E  WHEREEETANRKE R MEH
prioritising risk for further consideration by the Board, and ensuring that B2 X EXEE R HNITAR S E1TH -

the risk monitoring and control system are working effectively and risk

mitigation actions are implemented within business units.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit department, — ZxA AN 8 3R 37 0B N EPEZEFT - A - BEF &0
however, the Board has put in place adequate measures to perform the — EiEiE & ﬁ)‘iﬁ  BITEIAR S BN (R JE E AR B B A B
internal audit function in relation to different aspects of the Group. In BB - R —F - KA RIDE(EIMNERERE
2021, the Company appointed an external internal control adviser to %\JEEF'EJ;EH,%A uTWﬁBT FIRGE - A REP ISR AR
perform periodic review of our internal control system to evaluate the E’Uﬁxﬁ(l«(&ﬂm%ﬁéﬂ/}k’ TSR E A BB il FE
effectiveness and formulate plans and recommendations for improvement & & BUSE o P96 i A2 B &= 2 P9 2450 I 89 AR
of our internal control measures and policies. It is intended to review the — LAURE *X BSR4 i L E81T R B TE/ER -
effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls so as to provide

assurance that key internal control measures are carried out appropriately

and are functioning as intended.

Delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the internal control  BHZE @R EEZRFEEHIINEN D EEERE
report prepared by the external internal control adviser once a year. F#H&— /A%W‘E%*?ﬁi g%AaﬁiﬂM PN

Review has been conducted on the effectiveness of the internal control BRI R EABEIEEXCREMTE  CER
and risk management systems of the Group, covering all material 532 %71 & & ai@ﬂmbﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁg& )2

controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk 2 « 1R N &I 51 4 % %%’V&%ﬁi%@%
management functions on an ongoing basis. Based on the result of the 7<= & X 28 4% & & BERBEMERE

:|
E &8

ap o

o

review in respect of the Year, the Board and the audit committee are
satisfied that the internal control and risk management systems of the

Group are effective and adequate.

—E—FRI|FEEEXEEBFR A A 107



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ﬁ:\%g/m #&%

The Group has established a set of risk management and internal control
policies and measures covering various aspects of its operations
including, but not limited to: (a) revenue and receipts; (b) capital
expenditure management; (c) purchases, expenses and payments; (d)
human resources and payroll; (e) treasury management; and (f) financial
reporting. These policies and measures are to ensure that proper
accounting records are kept so that reliable financial reporting can be
provided, effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and safeguarding of
assets can be maintained.

The Board is also of the view that safety, as part of loss control
management, is a vital part of the construction business worldwide, and
if not managed properly, it can be extremely costly not only in human
terms, but also in monetary terms. Therefore, safety is treated as the
highest priority during the delivery of our services with emphasis on
hazard management and risk assessment.

The Group has established safety manuals and project safety plans to
ensure that all workers at our construction sites are well aware of all our
stipulated safety requirements. In addition, qualified safety officers and
safety supervisors, all of them registered under Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (safety officers and safety supervisors) Regulations and
approved by the Labour Department in Hong Kong, are engaged to
monitor and implement our safety system in each construction project.
The Company has been accredited and continuously re-accredited with
ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 certifications in respect of our environmental
management system and occupational safety and health management
system. As a result, the Board is satisfied that these measures are
adequate and effective to promote a safer and healthier environment for
the workers at our construction sites.

For the handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information and, where required, communicate with the Group’s
stakeholders in a timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable all
the Shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in an
informed manner and allow all the Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company. The Company endeavors to maintain effective
communication platforms with the Shareholders, in particular, through
annual general meetings or other general meetings, and encourage their
participation. The Company is also committed to maintaining a high level
of transparency, including open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its Shareholders and the public. The Company provides
updates on its latest business developments and financial performance
through the publication of its annual and interim reports and/or circulars,
notices and other announcements.

Under the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal procedures of the
Company, the Shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting (the
“SGM”).

Convening of SGM and Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

Pursuant to bye-law no. 58 of the Bye-Laws, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, call SGMs. Any one or more of the Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a SGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may convene a meeting in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All such
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

Procedures for Nomination of Director

Any Shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to stand for election
as a director at a general meeting of the Company shall validly serve the
following documents on the company secretary of the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong (7/F, High Fashion
Centre, 1-11 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong)
or to the branch share registrar of the Company (Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong), provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such documents are given, shall be at
least seven days and that (if such documents are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodgement of such documents shall commence
on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for election of director and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting:

(i) notice in writing signed by the Shareholder of his/her intention to
propose such person for election as a director (the “Nominated
Candidate”);

letter of consent signed by the Nominated Candidate of his/her
willingness to be elected as a director; and

the biographical details of the Nominated Candidate as required
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for publication by the
Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy of the Company conducted during
the year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year. The Memorandum of Association of the Company and
the Bye-Laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ki Chun (formerly known as Chan Kin Chung), aged 65, was
appointed as a director of the Company and chairman of the Board on
24 October 2007 and has been an executive director since then. Mr.
Chan is also the managing director of the Group and a director of various
of our subsidiaries. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and
planning the business strategies and the overall management of the
Group. Mr. Chan has over 42 years of experience in the construction
industry and has participated in various foundation, substructures,
building works, drainage and bridge works. Mr. Chan joined the Group in
March 1989 and was appointed as a director of Sun Fook Kong (Civil)
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) in January
1993 and Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) in January 1995. He has participated in
various significant projects of the Group including the Central
Reclamation Phase I, the West Kowloon Corridor and the Hong Kong
Disneyland Resort project. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan joined
OVE ARUP & Partners Hong Kong Limited, a company which provides
consulting services in building design, civil engineering and industrial
construction where he was primarily responsible for civil engineering
related works, from June 1979 to February 1989.

Mr. Chan is also a director and (in the case of PRC-established
companies) the legal representative of most of the subsidiaries of Sun
Fook Kong Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chan is a registered professional engineer in civil and geotechnical
engineering by Hong Kong Engineers Registration Board and a member
of the Institution of Civil Engineers in the United Kingdom and the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is father of Mr.
Chan Yau Ming, a member of the senior management of the Company.
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Mr. Yung Kim Man, aged 60, was appointed as a director of the
Company on 1 July 2014 and has been an executive director since then.
He is an executive director of our construction and civil division since
January 2017 where he is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring
and management of projects in the construction and civil division of the
Group. In July 2018, Mr. Yung was appointed as director of Sun Fook
Kong Construction Limited and Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited (both being
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company).He is also a
managing director of Chit Cheung Construction Company Limited (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) since 1 June 2011
where he is responsible for its overall management and a director of
various of our subsidiaries. Mr. Yung has over 37 years of experience in
the construction management and civil engineering industry. Mr. Yung
joined the Group in October 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung
worked with Cheng Kwan Construction Co., Ltd from June 1984 to
October 1990, where his last position was a site agent and he was
primarily responsible for tendering, budgeting, subletting, subcontractors
liaison, cost control and claim submissions.

Mr. Yung is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Mr.
Yung holds a diploma in civil engineering from the Hong Kong Baptist
College (now known as the Hong Kong Baptist University), a bachelor’s
degree in building engineering (construction engineering and
management) from the City University of Hong Kong and a master’s
degree of science in construction project management from the City
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William, aged 60, was appointed as a director of
the Company on 1 January 2015 and has been an executive director
since then. He is the chief financial officer of the Group since June 2007 .
He is also a director of SFK Housing Services (China) Limited, High Horse
Holdings Limited and Consent Consultants Limited (all being indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company). He joined our Group in
November 1993 and since then he is primarily responsible for our overall
financial and accounting management of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yeung served as an accountant of Kwan, Wong, Tan and
Fong BDO (now known as Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu), Certified Public
Accountants, from July 1987 to November 1993 where he specialised in
their audit practice. Mr. Yeung holds a professional diploma in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University).

112 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

BRNEE 605 R_T—NFEA-BEZE
RARREE 25 HEFHTESF KE-F
—tF-ARRBRMERRLIAMBORITES =
ZEEARERRNTAMARNEREEETIE
R-ZF-N\FtH BRLEEZEIRETARBEER
EMBARMBAEEERERARARMER(EX)E
RARMNES - WA _T——FRA-HERR
AEHZEEENBARBERERARATANESE
KE - BEBRBERE  TRERMZEMBRRNE
F-REABERTFREEENEIARTIZITEL
B REER—NNEF+AMAKREE - IIAKRE
B AELEE-HANTIFARAE-ANTETA
ERBZEFRORIER - REBOERE T2

BEuiR  FAE 28 DBRBK  KAEHIRR
B o

RAERBEIRMNSZEEE  HEFEREEMR
(BRBBREARB)NLIAIREXE  EBETA
BNEETRE(RETRERER) BT EUREER
MAEMEEIR R ERIESBE LB

BEBEELE 60 R_T— LA - HEZE
RARAES  E5-EETHTES - RA_TF
TtFERNAERARENBRE  TREEHEAET
R (FE)ERRAF - KEERERARLEER
BMERAR(ZFRRAR/AARHEE2ENBEAR)
MEE - WR—NAN=FT—-ANALEE  GitE
ZREAEENERMBEREHEE - MALXEE
Al BEREB-NWNEFELAZE-AN=F1+—A
FEREMEsta SRy 51T CRIERE) « WER
HEENT) BEEFE - BEFEERRER - 55t
EREEAEIZR (RRBESEIARB)NEFTE
ES @l



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Leung Tsun, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2015. Mr. Lam was
previously appointed as our independent non-executive director in
January 2008 in anticipation of the proposed listing of the Company and
he subsequently resigned in July 2008 as the proposed listing did not
proceed due to the volatile market conditions at that time. Mr. Lam has
over 35 years of management experience. He is presently the sales
director of Niche-Tech (Hong Kong) Limited, an advanced materials
supplier for the semiconductor and microelectronics industries.
Previously, Mr. Lam worked as the general manager of Atmel Asia
Limited, a subsidiary of Atmel Corporation (Nasdaq: ATML), a company
listed on the NASDAQ Stock Exchange, which is principally engaged in
the design and manufacture of Semiconductor solutions, where he was
responsible for overseeing the operations of the company.

Mr. Lam received a higher diploma in production and industrial
engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in Hong Kong (now known
as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1978.

Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick, aged 74, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 19 November
2015. Mr. Jim is an experienced agent of a local securities company from
May 2007 until his retirement. Mr. Jim joined such company in
September 1996 and he is primarily responsible for dealing in securities
and future contracts. Mr. Jim has over 40 years of experience in the
financial services industry. Prior to joining such company, he served as
an investment consultant in Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited, a stock
brokerage company from August 1977 to September 1996, where he
was primarily responsible for retail sales of securities and related products
in the marketing department. He served as a staff accountant of Arthur
Andersen & Co., an international audit firm where he was primarily
responsible for providing services in auditing from November 1973 to
April 1975.

Mr. Jim is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a higher diploma in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Technical College (subsequently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic, now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University).
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Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 19 November
2015. Mr. Chan has retired since April 2006. Mr. Chan has over 25 years
of experience in treasury and capital markets and had served various
trading and managerial roles in Hong Kong and Singapore. He joined the
Royal Bank of Scotland plc., (“RBS”) Hong Kong branch as a dealer in
June 1981, and since then he began his 25 years of progressive career
advancement within RBS’s treasury and capital markets/financial markets
business in both Hong Kong branch and Singapore branch. Mr. Chan
last held the position of Head of Treasury and Capital Markets, Hong
Kong, prior to the relocation to the Singapore branch in October 1998.
Subsequent to transferring to the Singapore branch, Mr. Chan was the
treasurer of Treasury and Capital Markets, Singapore in 1999, assuming
full responsibility for the Singapore branch’s treasury and capital market
operations. Mr. Chan last held the position of the Head of Front Office
Infrastructure prior to his retirement from RBS and returning to Hong
Kong in May 2006.

Mr. Chan holds a master’s degree in business administration majored in
investment and finance offered in Singapore and validated by the
University of Hull in the United Kingdom.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Wai Ki, Davie, aged 61, is a director of our quantity surveying
division and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and
management of quantity surveying, contractual disputes and litigation
matters in our construction division. He is also a director of Build.it
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). Mr. Lam
has over 42 years of experience in the building and construction industry.
Mr. Lam joined the Group in January 1988.

Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in the United Kingdom. Mr. Lam
holds a bachelor’s degree in quantity surveying from the University of
Reading in the United Kingdom, which was taught in conjunction with the
College of Estate Management in the United Kingdom.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Szeto Chi Wing, aged 55, is a director of our quantity surveying
division and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and
management of quantity surveying, contractual disputes and litigation
matters in our civil division. He is also a director of Bestwise Envirotech
Limited, BML Engineering Limited and Chit Cheung Construction
Company Limited (all being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company). Mr. Szeto has over 37 years of experience in the civil
engineering industry and he joined the Group in July 1989.

Mr. Szeto is a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (East Asia
Branch) and a professional member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors in the United Kingdom. Mr. Szeto holds a bachelor’s degree in
quantity surveying from Edinburgh Napier University in the United
Kingdom and a master’s degree in arbitration and dispute resolution from
the City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Yau Ming, aged 37, is a director of our estimating division
and is primarily responsible for the overall management of our estimating
division. He is also a director of several of our subsidiaries. Mr. Chan
joined our Group in August 2008 and has over 13 years of experience in
the civil engineering and building construction industry.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Institution and a Chartered Civil Engineer in
the United Kingdom and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Engineers.
He holds a bachelor’s degree of science in civil engineering from The
University of Alberta in Canada and a master’s degree of science in civil
infrastructural engineering and management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Ki Chun, the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. Ho Su Cheng, aged 54, is a director of our construction division. He
is responsible for the overall monitoring and management of projects in
our building maintenance, housing services and property management.
Mr. Ho re-joined the Group in April 1998 and has over 29 years
experience in the construction industry. He has previously worked for us
as quality officer from August 1992 to September 1993 and as assistant
quality manager from October 1993 to March 1995.

Mr. Ho is a member of The Chartered Institute of Building of the United
Kingdom and Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) with a bachelor’s degree of science in
building technology and management in October 1992 and subsequently
obtained a master’s degree of arts in arbitration and dispute resolution
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2001 and a master’s
degree of science in real estate from the University of Hong Kong in
November 2008.
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Mr. Kong Chuck Yui Howard, aged 63, is a director of our civil division
and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and management of
projects in our civil division. He is also a director of Media Engineering
Company Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company).
Mr. Kong joined the Group in April 2002 and has over 40 years of
experience in the civil engineering industry. He is a member of American
Society of Civil Engineers and Association of Professional Engineers of
Ontario, Canada. Mr. Kong holds a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering
from Technical University of Nova Scotia in Canada.

Mr. Lee Yat Wah, aged 63, is a director of our civil division and is
primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and management of
project in civil division. He was also appointed as safety director and is a
director of Bestwise Envirotech Limited, BML Engineering Limited and
BML Engineering (Macao) Limited (all being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company). Mr. Lee joined the Group in March 1991
and has over 30 years of experience in civil engineering industry. He is a
Member of American Society of Civil Engineers, a Member of The
Institutions of Engineers Australia, a Registrant in National Engineering
Register, Australia and a Member of The Chinese Institution of Engineers.
Mr. Lee holds a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from National
Taiwan University in Taiwan and Postgraduate Diploma in Civil
Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Shum Shu Shing, aged 63, is a director of our construction division
and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and management of
project of building works in our building division. He joined the Group in
June 1990 and has over 40 years of experience in building industry. Mr.
Shum is a Member of Hong Kong Institute of Clerks of Works.

Ms. Lee Yeuk Lui, Rosa, aged 49, is the senior financial manager of the
Group and is primarily responsible for the financial management and
accounting of the Group. Ms. Lee has over 27 years of experience in
accounting. Ms. Lee joined the Group in August 2007.

Ms. Lee is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. She is also a certified internal auditor by the
Institute of Internal Auditors. Ms. Lee holds a bachelor’s degree in
business administration (honours) from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity, aged 63, is a director of administration
division and company secretary of the Group and is primarily responsible
for the personnel, office administration, company secretarial and
insurance matters of the Group. Ms. Tang has over 25 years of
experience in business administration, human resources and company
secretarial matters and she joined the Group in January 1995.

Ms. Tang is an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom and an associate member of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Tang holds a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
University in Australia and a master’s degree in professional accounting
and information systems from the City University of Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity is our company secretary for the purposes of
Rule 8.17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. For details of her background, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” under the section headed “Biographical
details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWRE

The Directors hereby present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group are general building, civil engineering and the
provision of other services, which mainly comprise housing and property
management services, electrical and mechanical engineering services
and BIM services. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at 7/F, High
Fashion Centre, 1-11 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 141 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which aims to provide
reasonably stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders. When
considering the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia, our results of operation, the working capital
requirements, cash flow and financial position, liquidity position, debt to
equity ratio, general economic environments and other factors the Board
considers appropriate. The Company will generally propose dividends
semi-annually or annually.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda. Any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders’ approval.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and, if consider
appropriate, may modify, amend and change the dividend policy at any
time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0
cents per ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”) for the Year (2020:
HK8.0 cents per Share), amounting to HK$12 million (2020: HK$32
million). Such payment of dividends will be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, 26 May 2022 (the “2022 AGM”) and if approved,
will be payable to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 8
June 2022. It is expected that the proposed final dividend will be paid on
or about Wednesday, 22 June 2022.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 23
May 2022 to Thursday, 26 May 2022 (both dates inclusive), during which
no transfer of the Shares will be registered. Shareholders of the Company
are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 20 May 2022.

In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 7 June
2022 to Wednesday, 8 June 2022 (both dates inclusive), during which no
transfer of the Shares of the Company will be registered. Shareholders of
the Company are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6 June 2022.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five years is set out on page 224 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statement.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donations during the
Year (2020: HK$39,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 144
of this annual report and the details of reserves attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was
HK$23 million (2020: HK$53 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company during the Year are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
movements during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum public float under the Listing Rules during the Year
and at any time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
written resolutions of the Company’s then sole shareholder passed on 19
November 2015. As of the date of this report, no option has been
granted, agreed to be granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme.

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to motivate the participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract
and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with
the eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the following
persons:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including the INEDs) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and joint operations; and

(i)  any advisers, consultants, agents, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will
contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and joint operations.
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Shares available for issuance

The maximum number of the Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes of
the Company (excluding, for this purpose, shares which would have been
issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme or any other share option scheme of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose
Shares which would have been issuable pursuant to options which have
lapsed in accordance the terms of the Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company). The Company may, subject to the issue of a
circular, the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, refresh this limit at
any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the Shareholders’
approval and/or grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible
participants specifically identified by the Board. The above is subject to
the condition that the maximum number of the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. No options shall be granted under any schemes of the
Company (including the Scheme) if it will result in the 30% limit being
exceeded.

As at the date of this report, the outstanding number of share options
available for grant under the Scheme is 40,000,000 share options to
subscribe for the Shares, representing approximately 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to the issue of a circular, the approval of the
Shareholders in a general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules.
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Time for exercising option and duration of the Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted
and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The
period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of approval of the Scheme. Subject to
earlier termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the Board,
the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the
date of its adoption.

Payment on acceptance of the option

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance or payment in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the
Company on or before the relevant acceptance date.

To the extent that the offer to grant an option is not accepted by any
prescribed acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably
declined.

Basis of determining exercise price of the option

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price must be at least
the higher of:

(i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business

days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i)  the nominal value of a share.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun
(Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. CHAN Chor Tung (resigned on 10 December 2021)
Mr. YUNG Kim Man
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 111 to 117 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with bye-law no. 84 of the Bye-Laws, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company, provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation every year shall include (so far
as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by rotation)
any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-election.
Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the other Directors
subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by
lot.

Mr. Chan Ki Chun, Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William and Mr. Chan Kim Hung,
Simon will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the 2022 AGM pursuant to bye-law no. 84 of the Bye-Laws.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the
date of this report, the Board considered them independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company which shall be for fixed term of three years, unless
terminated by either the Company or the respective Director in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement.

Each of the INED has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company which shall last for a period of three years, subject to early
termination by the INED or the Company in accordance with the terms of
the letter of appointment.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the 2022 AGM has or is proposed to have a service contract with any
member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to enable smooth
operation within the Group, the Group offered competitive remuneration
packages (with reference to market conditions and individual qualification,
position, seniority and experience) and various in-house training courses.
Share options may also be granted to eligible employees. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular basis.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management remuneration, having regard to market
competitiveness, individual performance and achievement. The Company
has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors and the relevant
eligible participants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any
emolument during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the
Director or an entity connected the Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Interests in the Company

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company has any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Interests in associated corporations of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company’s associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

R B AEBA B A S

BEZZ-_—F+-A=+—H FRADEFIK
SITBRABRARBIEER (E&EESF BB K
1§IJ%XV*|§)E’JHX{’7} TRER O & B ‘?()%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁé
EH LB GRGIFEXVEE7 R8N BAMEAR
ﬁﬁxﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁg SEOK R (BIERIER %&Hﬁfﬂlﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ
BIEXIREFRER/ERNOERIORE)  R(EE
RIBES RGP 362 RAE TN & RPTR B
HHEME SRR K (i) ERRBEETARMER
NE MBS SOR BT

Number of  Approximate

Name of Shares (long percentage of

Name of Director associated corporation Capacity position)  shareholding
ROEE BARR

Y LR SR B4 (F#8) BO

Mr. Chan Ki Chun Sun Fook Kong Group Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 97,599 3.54%

PRIZ S A (the “SFK Group”) (Note 1)

MEAEEAERAR] RyEEERER (1)
(IFrieBsm])

Note 1: Mr. Chan Ki Chun beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Growth Asset MisE1: R B % %% 4 E % ¥ A Growth Asset Holdings Limited
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited ([Growth Asset| - fE R BHR KBS EMK L BER AR
liability (“Growth Asset”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan Ki Chun is deemed to be 2EBBITRAN « IRBFES KBGO - BREDZ X EWR
interested in the 97,599 shares of SFK Group held by Growth Asset. 3P Growth Asset PIT #5378 7 5 (811 97,699 IR ix 1 R HE

TR
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors ~ ff E XTI EEN  BE T -_—F T+ A=+ —

nor chief executive of the Company has registered any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be naotified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2021, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company)

had or deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the {53

Shares, the underlying Shares or the debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO:

Name of shareholder

B

ﬁm>

Nature of interest

BES RGNS

s HKR

51 1155 336 1R7ATF B 2

Number of Shares
(long position)

EEHE

FERRRAELFIRG HRKGREE
ENEERAE

BEEAN BHE-_T-—F+-A=+—H8 WUT
AL (BERAQAERITHRABRIN RAQFR
CHEERNDIERBPHREIR AL EEEER
EXVERSE 2 & 30 BRESUZA T 55
SIBRLE AN A BB R 28 5 I A
ZrfayEzs

&/Wu\

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

RGHE BAER
BREEEB EmME (#8) Bak
SFK Group Beneficial owner (Note 1) 300,000,000 75%
MRARE Emia A1)
Good Target Limited Interest of controlled corporations 300,000,000 75%
(“Good Target”) (Notes 1 and 2)
REEEER (M1 &R2)
Ocean Asset Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
(“Ocean Asset”) (Notes 1 and 2)
A ERER (M1 k2)
Mr. Lo Kai Shui (“Mr. Lo”) Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 300,000,000 75%
BRORSEAE(TEEED R AR (HE2)
Mr. Hu Liang Ming Raymond Beneficial owner 12,000,000 3%
ibEL Pt EmBEAA
Mr. Hu Liang Ming Raymond Beneficiary of a trust 10,000,000 2.5%
tAsm AR A& BErEXmA
Note 1: SFK Group, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, M1 A EEAE A BARREIMA YN ER AT ' B
is owned as to approximately 71.39% by Good Target, 18.94% by Ocean Asset, Good Target * Ocean Asset * Growth Asset * Chief Champion
3.54% by Growth Asset, 1.94% by Chief Champion Limited, 1.46% by Jemrick Limited + Jemrick Holdings Limited + KSL Management
Holdings Limited, 1.06% by KSL Management Limited, 0.83% by LHS Management Limited + LHS Management Limited + Worldrich Enterprises
Limited, 0.46% by Worldrich Enterprises Limited, 0.22% by Easespeed Limited and Limited + #£ %2 5 BR A &) & Global Trinity Limited 2 31l # & 49
0.16% by Global Trinity Limited. 71.39% ~ 18.94% ~ 3.54% ~ 1.94% ~ 1.46% ~ 1.06% ~
0.83% ~ 0.46% ~ 0.22% 52.0.16% °
Note 2: Good Target, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, Mi3E 2 : Good Target%{{ﬁé%”&fﬁ?ﬁ BaEMAIHMERAR > HE
is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Lo. Ocean Asset, a company incorporated in S EREEWR - Ocean Asset B £ B # R R B S
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. YHBRAR HRAEERDEES - BIEZARBEK
Lo. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lo is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Bl BEERABRTBEEERBORNDPESEZ -
SFK Group.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors were B F X EZEEN B2 T _—F+_A=1+—

not aware of any other persons who had or deemed or taken to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
required to be recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

Save as disclosed herein, apart from transactions carried out in the
normal course of business, there were no contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts of any significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The deed of non-competition dated 19 November 2015 has been
entered into by SFK Group, Good Target and Mr. Lo, the controlling
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules
(collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of the Company
regarding certain non-competition undertakings given by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company. The details of the deed of non-
competition have been disclosed in the section headed “Relationship
with our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has given an annual declaration to
the Company confirming that he/it has complied with the non-compete
undertakings provided to the Company under the said deed of non-
competition. The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and
enforcement of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all the
undertakings thereunder have been complied for the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s top five customers (where various
departments of the Hong Kong Government were considered
individually), all of which are based in Hong Kong, collectively accounted
for approximately 89.3% (2020: 83.3%) of the Group’s total revenue for
the Year. The largest customer accounted for approximately 54.1% of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year (2020: 49.2%).

During the Year, purchases from the Group’s top five suppliers, all of
which are based in Hong Kong and are independent third parties,
collectively accounted for approximately 17.6% (2020: 18.9%) of the
Group’s total purchase costs for the Year. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 4.5% of the Group’s total purchase costs for the Year
(2020: 6.5%).

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had any interest in any of the Group’s top five
customers or suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or in existence during the Year.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Part of the material related party transactions set out in note 23(a) to the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the remuneration of the
Directors constitute connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements did not fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case may
be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there was no connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules which is required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the Year was there any permitted indemnity provisions
(whether made by the Company or otherwise) being in force for the
benefit of any Directors of the Company, or of its associated company.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is included in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report on pages 5
to 33. Such business review forms part of this Report of the Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWRE

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and so far as the Directors are aware, no litigation or claim of
material importance is pending or threatened by or against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that
has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report on
pages 92 to 110.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
KPMG, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the 2022 AGM. A resolution for their re-appointment as
the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Ki Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

# The English names are translations from their Chinese names. If there is any
inconsistency, the Chinese names shall prevail.

132 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

EXERFR

REEGEY REMERFRNEE - ML EEH
o AEBETVEEM MR T AU E LN ERF

ASKREENK -

BEM®RER

REFERHM — B —F+-A=+—HEEXR
BERMYEBERAETRENERESR -

tRER
ARAREERFBINANFRERE110EH [T
EEamEs] -5

54 L
EEHETMELHEERFREAUERE &
BR-BE-_—FRFBFASRETITAERBERE
T - BREBREARRARZEMHRZEEN -

T CFRRBEFAERER -

RERE=S

ES
PR B
EBE T -_F=RA=-+AH

# RXAWREABRED XL 2 BE - WA EMESE
AR S



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
SFK Construction Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SFK
Construction Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 140 to 223, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
& N % BAD RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Contract accounting estimates

BREEHEE

MEEER 2

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i) to the consolidated

financial statements.

LR AR RRN T3 RAFEHFRRMZE10) R 100 F a2 B -

The Key Audit Matter
HRESSHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNAEEZSE

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of general building and
civil engineering totalling HK$3,396 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE"
&iﬁlﬁéim%@%ﬁ%&waﬁéﬁmo

SEBGREA—REE

Contract revenue is recognised over time using the output method,
based on direct measurements of the value of services delivered or
surveys of work performed and the estimated total revenue for the
contracts entered into by the Group. Contract costs are recognised
when work is performed, together with any provisions for expected
contract losses.

BHREEREEFEERXNREXEFRIRIENEENL &
SEPTRI A KM AT AR SR A E HOABER R o A QAR
TILVERHER - ERTEME BB EMRE -

The recognition of revenue and profit/loss relies on management’s
estimate of the final outcome of each contract which involves the
exercise of significant management judgement, particularly in
forecasting the costs to complete a contract, in valuing contract
variations, claims and liquidated damages, in estimating the amount of
expected losses and in assessing the ability of the Group to deliver
services according to the agreed timetable.

Waskoafl/ BENERAGENEEBHSHANNRRERNM
it BRPRITREEREEEAME - LHERERATRE HHKA
FHEEHMEE BRLENRES  AENERSEULFE &
SEREHENEEREHERRBOENTE -
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Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting
estimates included the following:

BAFFEEOE

n“"‘&u‘l—m%v*ir ?EJ//(TXIE

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the contract revenue recognition processes;
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discussing with the Group management and
project directors the performance of the major
contracts in progress during the year and
challenging the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in the forecast of contract revenue and
contract costs, including estimated costs to
completion, the recognition of variation orders,
the adequacy of contingency provisions and their
assessment of potential liquidated damages for
contracts which are behind schedule, by
obtaining and assessing information in
connection with the assumptions adopted,
including contract agreements and sub-
contracts, confirmations from and
correspondence with customers regarding
contract variations and claims and by considering
historical outcomes for similar contracts;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

& N % BAD ¥ &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) MBETER )

Contract accounting estimates

BRERHEE

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i) to the consolidated

financial statements.

BB A BRR N T 3 RAFE M TFRARMT10) R0 F a2 BE -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HRESSBHE BANESMAREZSEE

We identified contract accounting estimates as a key audit matter e
because the estimations of the total revenue and total costs to
complete contracts are inherently subjective and require significant
management judgements and estimations and because errors in the
forecast of contract revenue and contract costs could result in a
material variance in the amount of profit or loss recognised from
contracts to date and, therefore, in the current period.
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=

obtaining a detailed breakdown of the total
estimated costs to completion for major
contracts in progress during the year and
comparing, on a sample basis, actual costs
incurred to-date and cost estimates to
agreements, certifications or correspondence
with subcontractors and suppliers and other
documentation referred to by management in its
assessment of the estimated costs to
completion;

BFEANEEETHEIEZEHMTHR M EK
Zliﬁﬁfiiﬁﬂifﬂ ]IJ«MM%EittFE’%\EEE’U
ERKAMMGEEER - Eo 68 & HEEE
Wk - R RE SR IA R E R E AT TR AT
7S By B At 0 EL A S A

comparing the contract revenue recognised for
the major contracts in progress during the year
with reference to the certifications from the
professionals appointed by the customers;
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ks

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to
observe the progress of individual contracts and
discussing with site personnel the status of each
project and evaluating whether the project
progress was consistent with the agreed
timetable and the Group’s financial accounting
records;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Contract accounting estimates

BREEHEE

MEEER 2

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i) to the consolidated

financial statements.
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The Key Audit Matter
HRESSBHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNAEEZSE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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performing a retrospective review for contracts
completed during the current year by comparing
the final outcome of the contracts to previous
estimates made for those contracts to assess
the reliability of the management’s forecasting
process; and
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BEEZ  AFGEEERRAIRIZA A S
K

inspecting a sample of contract agreements with
customers and subcontractors to identify key
terms and conditions, including contracting
parties, contract period, contract sum, scope of
work, liquidated damages and evaluating
whether these key terms and conditions had
been appropriately reflected in the total estimated
revenue and costs to complete under the
forecasts of contract.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

138

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yeung Yuk Fan.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e W &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2021 2020
Note $000 $ 000
B sE F Tt
Revenue g 3 3,624,511 3,772,118
Direct costs BERA (3,538,798) (3,812,035)
Gross profit/(loss) EX,(E8) 85,713 (39,917)
Other revenue Hh gzt 4 3,643 95,847
Other net gain/(loss) Hib gl (BE) 5 1,373 (7,433)
Administrative expenses THAX (65,437) (78,168)
Profit/(loss) from operations BERAN,(EE) 25,292 (29,671)
Finance costs BB A AR 6(a) (2,406) (12,052)
Share of results of a joint venture DhEEDTEEE (2,298) 1,343
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBLADER(B5E) 6 20,588 (40,380)
Income tax Frig#i 7(a) (2,587) 21,406
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEBAN(FHE) 18,001 (18,974)
Attributable to: FE4E -
Equity shareholders of the Company PN/NSIE 25 s 17,426 (19,027)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR RS 575 53
Profit/(loss) for the year FERAN (&) 18,001 (18,974)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF(&HE)
— Basic/Diluted — B 10 4.4 cents Bl (4.8) cents Bl

The notes on pages 147 to 223 form part of these consolidated financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year are set out in note 20(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_T-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2021 2020
=B —F —ECTEF
$’°000 $°000
Ft T+
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERN(F5E) 18,001 (18,974)
Other comprehensive income FEHMZEWKE (BRBER)
for the year (after tax)
Item that are or may be reclassified subsequently H{#F sl B 7 HEZEm I HEE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation REEREINE R BT IEREN
of financial statements of subsidiaries PE N E%R
outside Hong Kong 8 390
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHMWRHALE 18,009 (18,584)
Attributable to: 1L -
Equity shareholders of the Company RAT SRR 17,432 (18,649)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 577 65
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZAWZEAE 18,009 (18,584)
The notes on pages 147 to 223 form part of these consolidated financial 5 147 &= 223 B i sH Bk xS 47 8 B HRER — 385 »

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARA B AR O R

at 31 December 2021
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
(LAETT2751)

2021 2020
—F=—F ZETF
Note $’°000 $’000
B 5T T T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MR E 11 57,306 95,670
Goodwill =S 1,209 1,209
Deferred tax assets BETIEEE 7(c)(i) 57,445 60,448
115,960 157,327
Current assets RBEE
Contract assets BREE 14 1,033,739 1,115,690
Trade receivables, other receivables JEULE FBRFN - H b fEUERIE N
and prepayments TEfT IR 15 387,563 400,389
Amount due from a joint venture JEI A & FEFIE 13(a) 2,996 4,107
Current tax recoverable Al U [l BN AR 18 7(0)(i) 3,514 4,726
Pledged deposits BERFR 20,113 20,113
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIFSEEY 16(a) 236,837 449,827
1,684,762 1,994,852
Current liabilities REBAE
Interest in a joint venture REEDPERER 13(a) 20,419 18,121
Contract liabilities GHBE 14 160,533 189,103
Trade and other payables FET B 5 BR 3k N o 4th B~ 30718 17 1,120,943 1,267,470
Bank loans RITEN 18 82,121 200,417
Lease liabilities HEBE 19 13,887 27,306
Derivatives financial instruments PTESRTAE 21(e) 2,805 6,167
Current tax payable JE{ BN ERRE 1A 7(0)(i) 1,139 1,853
1,401,847 1,710,437
Net current assets REBEESE 282,915 284,415
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 398,875 441,742
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 20,595 40,057
Deferred tax liabilities EEFTEA G 7(c)(i) 2,686 4,100
23,281 44 157
NET ASSETS BEERE 375,594 397,585
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR A B AR R R

at 31 December 2021 R-Z-—F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2021 2020
=B —F —ECTEF
Note $’°000 $'000
BaE Ft T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital A% A 20(c) 40,000 40,000
Reserves HE 335,091 357,659
Total equity attributable to equity RAFEZRREN
shareholders of the Company R 375,091 397,659
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 503 (74)
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 375,594 397,585
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March &K EFEERN T -—_F=A =T H B RFEE
2022. 5o
Chan Ki Chun Yeung Cho Yin, William
BR = BEE
Director Director
£ EE

The notes on pages 147 to 223 form part of these consolidated financial %147 £ 223 B K ZE G AP RE—Z D -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e A KES BB X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTT251)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRERRREN
Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

i3 BA RIDEE AEARE ELRE  REEN st FEREE SRR
$:000 $:000 $:000 $:000 $:000 $/000 $:000 $000
T T i T i T Tt T

At 1 January 2020 R-Z-B%-f—-H 40,000 82,867 81 (343) 325,703 448,308 (139) 448,169

Changes in equity for 2020: —B-TEEXEH

Loss for the year FEER - - - - (19,027)  (19,027) 53 (18,974)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2k - - - 378 - 378 12 390
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - 378 (19,027) (18,649 65  (18,584)
Dividends approved in respect  BLAT—EE# RIS

of the previous year 20(b)(i) - - - - (16,0000 (16,000) - (16,000)
Dividends declared inrespect  FAFE S IREIRE

of the current year 20(o)() - - - - (160000  (16,000) - (16,000
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-%%

+=-A=+-8 40,000 82,867 81 35 274,676 397,659 (74) 397,585

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAREREEL
Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange Retained controlling Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

ik BE  ROEE BERERE EXGHE  REEN Bt FERER EEAE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T Tr T Tr T Tr Tr

At 1 January 2021 R-B--%-8—-H 40,000 82,867 81 35 274,676 397,659 (74) 397,585

Changes in equity for 2021: —Z-—FEXSH

Profit for the year ERRF - - - - 17426 1742 575 18,001
Other comprehensive income H 2 - - - 6 - 6 2 8
Total comprehensive income 2ENEER - - - 6 17,426 17,432 577 18,009
Dividends approved in respect  BLAT—EE#ERIR S

of the previous year 20(o)(i) - - - - (32,000)  (32,000) - (32,000)
Dividends declared in respect ~ BAFEE T REILE

of the current year 20(0)()) - - - - (8,000) (8,000) - (8,000)
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F

+=RA=t+-H 40,000 82,867 81 4 252,102 375,091 503 375,594

The notes on pages 147 to 223 form part of these consolidated financial % 147 £ 223 B BRZFLRE MK —HH -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

\Z\: E
,\\/ \ EE/ i /}”J E %
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—F+-A=1T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2021 2020
—B--F —T-%F
Note $°000 $°000
B = Fr T
Operating activities REEH
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATRF,(E18) 20,588 (40,380)
Adjustments for: BT BIBEHRAE
— Interest income — FLSMA 4 (112) (1,687)
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — HE—FHNB AR 5 (1,944) -
— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, — HEWE  BERZEN
plant and equipment B8/ () 548 5 533 (488)
— Net fair value (gain)/loss on —THEERIARTE
derivative financial instruments W),/ BEFEE 5 (79) 7,734
— Finance costs — BERA 6(a) 2,406 12,052
— Depreciation - FE 6(c) 42,241 40,217
— Share of results of a joint venture — DIEEETEEE 2,208 (1,343)
— Net foreign exchange gain — SMEREFRE (137) (207)
Changes in working capital: BEESEE:
— Decrease in contract assets —BHNEERD 81,951 306,803
— Decrease in trade receivables, — BB SR EfER
other receivables and prepayments FRIE R IEN SRR 11,081 113,504
— Decrease in pledged deposits — BERERRL - 5,012
— (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities — AHaBCRD) (28,570) 70,912
— Decrease in trade and other payables — ERNEFEI R
B & B IE R A 16(0) (144,781) (9,092)
— Decrease in derivatives financial instruments —{TESRITARD (3,283) (1,284)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations & (frR) /i8R E (17,808) 501,753
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid, net BERNEENGE  FE (500) (8,648)
Net cash (used in)/generated from TSR (FTR) FTSREFE
operating activities (18,308) 493,105
Investing activities RETE
Payment for the purchase of property, BEDE  BEMRENT
plant and equipment (11,732) (2,358)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « WE KEREEHIE
plant and equipment 1,777 515
Repayment from a joint venture REAEDENER 10,779 9,920
Advances to a joint venture e EPERR (9,668) (11,017)
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBRARMERE
net of cash acquired (KR ERS) 1,945 -
Interest received BUFILE 112 1,918
Net cash used in investing activities rEZHAREF8| 6,787  (1,022)
TR FHRI|IFTREEREEBRAF 145



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
cEREEMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2021 2020
—B--F —E-TF
Note $°000 $°000
M Fr T
Financing activities MEEH
Proceeds from bank loans RITERFEHRIE 16(b) & 16(c) 390,000 809,436
Repayment of bank loans BEIEITER 16(c) (508,296) (1,048,181)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEMEAB R 16(c) (27,337) (23,516)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEEMNFEER 16(c) (1,604) (1,727)
Interest paid BEfFE 16(c) (802) (10,325)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders AN Bl 2 B BR A BV %S
of the Company 20(b) (40,000) (32,000
Net cash used in financing activities mEZBHAREF® (188,039 (306,313)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash 5&%&*&%%1’ L]
and cash equivalents W),/ EinEEE (213,134) 185,770
Cash and cash equivalents FINEERASEEY
at the beginning of the year 16(a) 449,827 263,505
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXguHye
changes 144 552
Cash and cash equivalents FRONBERRESEEY
at the end of the year 16(a) 236,837 449,827

The notes on pages 147 to 223 form part of these consolidated financial 2147 £ 223 BT K Z S 54 M BHRE —E5H o
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

General information

SFK Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in construction and maintenance projects
in Hong Kong, construction projects in Macau, housing and
property management services in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and electrical and
mechanical engineering services in Hong Kong. The
Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 October 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The
Company’s shares were listed on The Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 10 December 2015.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 1(d) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

IRAA

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

148

B 7% ¥R & M &

(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interest in a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments (see note 1(h)) are stated at
their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

IRAA

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
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(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in a joint venture (see note 1(f)(i)) or an
associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(K)(iii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Joint arrangements

(i)

Joint venture

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the joint venture that forms part of the Group’s
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(k)(iii). At each
reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with any other long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture (after applying the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) model to such other long-term interests where
applicable (see note 1(k(i)).

— = -

=

,_\_|
l\‘/T\

B MWK Wt

(BmHEAN - UWETZ)

1 EEEHBE @

— R | FREE

&

SELELS AR Bt AEH
HAbRT 477 B B K RE S Z %
B REZRHNEEFEFTHE
) o

RE S ERISE AR ERER
EMBHREAR - BEEXE %
BERENSERANE  HEA
SEEAMEEIRE AR FRBIEE
SFERKE B BN AFEBRIEE
A S EE (B ) EH A - 8E
RABERERE  WEREEERE
1A EL A A AN DA R S R B AN S L AR
BIRE - EEENENERE
BIRE - Hig  ZBERERAEE
BRI BN EEFENEZE
BEFBENEMREBERIKER
Hy & E#ﬁJ@%EW&uxmw
NEHREBE  AEEFGER
Eﬂ%ﬁ;#%mhéaﬁﬁ Uz
BHHATEBBRANTMWE
B AEBAEHIRE R RIRUE
B HBRTBR R E R RFNRER
BREARERAER  mMALER
g E N Rl b 2 E AR A UK
BrrkRTrRER IRGEE2EK
ﬁ:I:L%E W{I‘EE@

ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ‘é%ﬁ%%%
& RIS B S KRG E
I BT BRERE— *%E*ﬁ$%
BBEZEYEERBACRKERE
RAAFIARNBISN o phbtTF -
REBME TS ETE R
BREE NERBEBEERE
(MTEHEEERD R EARERH
Em%%%WﬁiW£HW
BREMEMEREEDEE LR
RALEREEREFREN &

7 e

REBEBRRQF 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Joint arrangements (Continued)

(i)

(i1)

Joint venture (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

Joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the
particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARA B IS HRAR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Joint arrangements (Continued)

(i)

Joint operations (Continued)

When a group entity sells or contributes assets to a

joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator,

the Group is considered to be selling or contributing
assets to the other parties to the joint operation, and
gains and losses resulting from the sale or contribution
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint
operation.

When a group entity purchases assets from a joint
operation in which a group entity is a joint operator, the
Group does not recognise its share of the gains and
losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

(9) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

M

(i)

the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses (see note 1(k)):

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner

of the property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and

equipment (see note 1())).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or

loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

— Properties leased for own use

— Machinery and equipment

— Motor vehicles

— Furniture and fixtures

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)]

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised
cost and interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(i) and 1(k)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)]

Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is accounted
for separately from the right-of-use assets in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to investments in debt
securities carried at amortised cost (see note 1(k)(i)). Any
difference between the initial fair value and the nominal value
of the deposits is accounted for as additional lease payments
made and is included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is
not originally provided for in the lease contract that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment” and presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

@i

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the
following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and contract assets); and

—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note

10

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated by grouping together customers with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessing
them for the risk or probability that a credit loss will
occur based on external credit ratings.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% %A 58351

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(t)
(iii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the asset becomes 90
days past due or when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised at
fair value, which is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or to
interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders would
have charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the carrying amount in respect of the
guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in
the risk of default of the specified debtor since the
issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will
default has increased significantly since the guarantee
is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in note

1(K)(i) apply.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). A
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (for example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
the allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(K)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

(m)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(t)) before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)(i) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see note 1(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 1(t). A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note
1(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(1)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price.
Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
and including an allowance for credit losses (see note 1(K)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(K)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables
are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amount.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purpose, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arises from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARA B IS HRAR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

(i

(1)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the construction contracts or the provision of services in

the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and

is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as
a construction contract when the contract relates to
work on assets under the control of the customer and
therefore the Group’s construction activities create or

enhance an asset under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised over time using the output method, i.e.
based on direct measurements of the value of services
delivered or surveys of work performed and the
estimated total revenue for the contracts entered into

by the Group.

The likelihood of contract variations, claims and
liquidated damages are taken into account in making
these estimates, such that revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue

recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are expected to

be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(s)(ii).
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1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Provision of services

Revenue arising from the provision of services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1(k)())).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Related parties

(1)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

U)

(i
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vil)

(viil

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)()) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in these financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATE

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgement:

Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As explained in policy note 1(t), revenue from construction contracts
are recognised over time using the output method. Such revenue
and profit recognition on uncompleted projects is dependent on
estimating the total outcome of the contract, as well as the work
done to date. Based on the Group’s recent experience and the
nature of the construction activities undertaken by the Group, the
Group has made estimates of the point at which it considered the
work was sufficiently advanced such that the outcome of the
contract can be reasonably measured. Until this point is reached
the related contract assets disclosed in note 14 do not include
profit which the Group might eventually realise from the work done
to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total cost or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+E8A51 - LABTZ51)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are general building, civil
engineering and the provision of other services. Further
details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed
in note 3(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 by major

kakaBiERE
(@ W=

AEENEIBEHA—MKETF  £AT
BRREHAMRE BRAASEEIEX
TEHYE — T RHB BRI RE (o) ©

(i) WwEPE

BEMEMEERE1REBER
RIBRBEBISNEPANN

service lines is as follows: =T
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
$’000 $000
Tr Tt

Disaggregated by major service lines 12 F ERBIBR &5

— General building — —REF 2,787,277 2,908,809
— Civil engineering — EARITHE 608,970 648,803
— Housing management services — EEERRG 65,997 81,604
— Others — Hih 162,267 132,902
3,624,511 3,772,118

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount of
revenue expected to be recognised in the future related
to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied at the reporting date is
$4,274,327,000 (2020: $4,362,943,000). This analysis
is solely for compliance with HKFRS 15 disclosure
requirement in respect of transaction price allocated to
the remaining performance obligations. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as
the work is completed, which is expected to occur over
the next 48 months (2020: next 60 months).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date (Continued)

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose the amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with an original
expected duration of one year or less. In addition,
contracts that include a promise to perform an
undefined quantity of tasks at a fixed contractual rate
per unit, with no contractual minimums that would
make some or all of the consideration fixed, are not
included as the possible transaction prices and the
ultimate consideration for those contracts will depend
on the occurrence or non-occurrence of future
customer usage.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by segments, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments.

— General building :  this segment provides engineering
services of substructure or
superstructure of building structures
and maintenance, repairs, alterations
services and additions to building
structures

— Civil engineering : this segment provides engineering
services of infrastructure facilities and
maintenance, repairs, alterations
services to infrastructure facilities

— Others : this segment mainly provides housing
management services, fresh water
and flush water maintenance
services, sewage water sampling
services, electrical and mechanical
engineering services and consultancy
services
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of deferred tax assets,
current tax recoverable and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors, accruals,
lease liabilities and other current and non-current
liabilities attributable to the business activities of the
individual segments.

Segment result includes revenue and expenses that are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation of assets attributable to those
segments.

In addition, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, share of results of a
joint venture, depreciation, additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their
operations and share of net liabilities in a joint venture.
Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external price for similar orders.

— = -

=

,_\_|
l\‘/T\

B MWK Wt

(BmHEAN - UWETZ)

3 WBIRSBE/E (&)
(b) 2EEHE (&)

@

— R | FREE

THEE BEERER

REEDHRBEREDBESEE
B ARBNREeTHERERN
TEEEREZREDDEERZE
mBEERAE:

DEEEBRIEMBEEREERRH
BE - MERENIBEEE - AIREIED
HATIIE R Bt R B B ER AN o 5B
BEBREER S XL RS EG
BHRENRIE  EHER - HEA
BEREMRE MIERBERE -

DEFEBRE2RZENMAEL
HEBRMZEDHMELXZED
MEGEENTEEENAX DR
ERHRED ARG R

AN - B B E A LISZE :
HRERERE  E - DR
RERFTAMNERE DA EERE
EAEREECENBEFEND
BER - DEFEHEE S ZRBAUET
B FTURERS NI (B AR E(E

,Iﬂi )

REBEBRRQF 179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

IRAA

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B 7% ¥R & M &

(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 WekRaBEE 2
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DHBEE)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) )y »PBxE BEEREGEE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments HE "S- — 4K T -FTHF+—
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive A=+—BIEE&KE  AAEH
management for the purposes of resource allocation ERTREEERFRAROIEER
and assessment of segment performance for each of BRI ED RN AEF I RE D
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is set HEBEREI T -
out below.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—FT-——FF+—HA=+—HIF
FZ
General Civil
building engineering Others Total
—REF IARIE Hitr @t
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
(note)
(Ci:3)
Reportable segment revenue AIRED UG (BEFERER)

(recognised over time) 2,787,277 608,970 228,264 3,624,511
Reportable segment prof A& D A 49,053 8,024 21,151 84,228
Other revenue and other netincome  E ft1 iz & 2L 1 E 4T A 3,495
Depreciation e (13,275)
Finance costs BEKK (1,821)
Unallocated head office and AABABRDAFX

corporate expenses (52,039)
Consolidated profit before taxation ~ BF% A4 & & 7l 20,588
Share of results of a joint venture  DMAAENEESE (2,298) - - (2,298)
Depreciation for the year FRITE 24,048 2,999 1,919 28,966
Reportable segment assets RENDEE 975,705 439,028 36,387 1,451,120
Deferred tax assets BEEHEEE 57,445
Current tax recoverable EEEE 3,514
Unallocated head office and AORBBRNREE

corporate assets 288,643
Consolidated total assets HEEERE 1,800,722
Additions to non-current segment  FRAREIERB D HLEE

assets during the year 16,438 1,808 1,300 19,546
Reportable segment liabilties ARESDAG(BER

(including interest in a joint venture) & &b £ #HEz) 915,458 325,338 18,082 1,258,878
Current tax payable FE T BIEAR: 18 1,139
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEERE 2,686
Unallocated head office and GRS UNINEY

corporate liabilities 162,425
Consolidated total liabilities GRaERE 1,425,128
Share of net liabilities in a joint venture M A S E B EFE 20,419 - - 20,419
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

A M BRERNE

(BmHEAN - UWETZ)

W@k SEBEwE (&)
(b) 2EEHE (&)

() HEE BEEREGEE)
BE—FFFT_A=1—HIIFE

General Civil

building engineering Others Total
—REF TARIRE it et
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T

(note)

(H3zE)

Reportable segment revenue AHRE DR (RS REER)

(recognised over time) 2,908,809 648,803 214,506 3,772,118
Reportable segment profit/loss)  AISREH R/ (B8B) 100,123 (71,966) 21,637 49,794
Other revenue and other netincome  E {125 & EL E YA (777)
Depreciation e (13,302)
Finance costs BEKK (11,475)
Unallocated head office and AARBBRLART

corporate expenses (64,620)
Consolidated loss before taxation — BFiAT4EA i 7l (40,380)
Share of results of a joint venture  DMEAENEEE 1,343 - - 1,343
Depreciation for the year FRITE 21,062 3,326 2527 26,915
Reportable segment assets HREDDEE 1,127,119 376,451 57,208 1,560,778
Deferred tax assets ERHEEE 60,448
Current tax recoverable AU E AR TR 4,726
Unallocated head office and AORRLRAREE

corporate assets 526,227
Consolidated total assets HRAREERE 2,152,179
Additions to non-current segment  FRAFEIEREHBEE

assets during the year 22,774 273 1,218 24,265
Reportable segment liabilities ARESBAR(BER

(including interest in a joint venture) & &> ¥ K1) 1,104,361 310,745 15,801 1,430,907
Current tax payable FERT BN EARE I8 1,853
Deferred tax liabilties ﬁu}‘élﬁﬁ & 4,100
Unallocated head office and AABRBELAREE

corporate liabilities 317,734
Consolidated total liabilities HABERE 1,754,594
Share of net liabilities in a joint venture D5 & S P £ & B 548 18,121 - - 18,121

Note:

Others included revenue from fresh water and flush water

maintenance services and sewage water sampling services with
a sum of $102,539,000 (2020: $56,002,000) and the relevant
segment profit of $21,420,000 (2020: $6,457,000).

—TE-—FIR | FREEE

MRk« B B3R R K RIBKIR Z AR TS BA K&
FOKE KRB W E B H
102,539,000 JL( = T = T 4F ¢
56,002,000 7% 7T ) J Af B 5 2 i F
21,420,000 t( = T = T F:
6,457,000787T) °
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 WRRotHmE &)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DTW/EE)
(ii) Geographic information (i) HEEHEHR
No geographic information has been presented as most ARAEERE D EEEHERSE
of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in FE - WK 25 HEE R
Hong Kong.
(iii) Information about major customers (i) BEFXEEZFMNEHR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the RASEEERE10%BHENE
total revenue of the Group is as follows: Pl mT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
$°000 $000
FT Tz
Customer A ZEA 1,960,784 1,854,206
Customer B ZFEB 645,439 671,715
Notes: B sE
©) Revenue from customer A is generated from provision of (1) REBEFPARNERRE—RIETF
general building, housing management services and consultancy R - BEERRE RERRGE
services. &
@) Revenue from customer B is generated from provision of ) KE TP B G BRE—RIEF
general building. BRISEXE ©
OTHER REVENUE 4 Hugs
2021 2020
=B —F —E_TF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Bank interest income RITHIBUA 112 1,687
Government grants (note) BT e B (BT 5E) - 91,983
Others Hib 3,531 2177
3,643 95,847

Note: The amount in 2020 substantially represented the funding support from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“‘HKSAR”). The
purpose of the funding was to provide financial support to enterprises to retain
their employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of
the grant, the Group was required not to make redundancies during the
subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+E8A51 - LABTZ51)

OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS) 5 HMKE (ER)PE
2021 2020
——f —E-FHF
$’°000 $'000
F T
Net foreign exchange loss [ 5 1855 (117) (44)
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) H ‘JYEHHE """"" AR R R
on interest rate swap a2k, (E18) F758 79 (7,734)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BENEREN (E8),/
plant and equipment Wk F 58 (533) 488
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHNBATNKE 1,944 -
Others EHh = (143)
1,373 (7,433)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6 MREEH (&5H8)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRE SR, (BE) TR (GTA) U T&IA
B
2021 2020
$°000 $ 000
Ft Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) RBERAX
Interest on bank advances (note 16(c)) RITBFREH B (FE16(c)) 802 10,325
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(c)) HEAEMNE (M 16(c) 1,604 1,727
2,406 12,052
(b) Staff costs b) BEIRAK
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMEFR 457,055 588,573
Contributions to defined contribution RERTORIRGTE R
retirement plans 18,519 21,656
Less: Amount included in direct costs B EFABEBERANSEE (447,992) (567,023)
27,582 43,206
(c) Otheritems (c) HfbEHE
Depreciation charge (note 11) WEER(HE1)
— owned property, plant and equipment — BEYDE  BENEE 13,780 15,340
— right-of-use assets —(ERAREE 28,461 24,877
42,241 40,217
Less: Amount included in direct costs B FTARERANERE (26,629) (24,921)
15,612 15,296
Auditors’ remuneration % EREN BN & 1,660 1,800
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INCOME TAX 7 FRHR
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) FEWBFRAKBIEE !
represents:
2021 2020
=B —F —E_TF
$’°000 $°000
Tr Tt
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax B8 — HEFEBH
Provision for the year FREME 1,028 481
Over provision in respect of prior years BT EBEEE (30) (46)
998 435
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary TREENEEN
differences e el 1,589 (21,841)
2,587 (21,406)
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021 is ZE—FERBNESHEBIRZFE NG

B 7% ¥R & M &

(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
tiered Profits Tax rates regime. For this subsidiary, the first $2
million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was
calculated at the same basis in 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% %A 58351

INCOME TAX (Continued) 7 FBR#RE)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and (b)

(c)

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

- BT 25)

REAREENBIEMS (ER)
HEETRA(BE) WER

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E_TF
$’°000 $'000
F T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELATE R (E1E) 20,588 (40,380)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, FiAT K, (E18) B &I
calculated at the rates applicable to (F BB R AR AR
profits/losses in the jurisdictions wmA EENREAE
concerned 3,204 (6,341)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAENTIA N BT E (1,552) (16,678)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S MRS & 1,032 1,614
Tax effect of utilisation of previous years’ BB FE RERTIBEEL
unrecognised tax losses MBTE (67) -
Tax effect of current year’s tax losses RIERARFETIAE BN
not recognised M E = 45
Over provision in respect of prior years BAEERERE (30) (46)
Tax expense/(credit) REmAY(Ee) 2,587 (21,406)
Income tax in the consolidated statement of (c) HEMBRRERANWEEBE :
financial position:
() Current taxation in the consolidated statement of () HEMBWRRERAMNBHRIERS
financial position represents:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET_TF
$’°000 $'000
F Tt
Provision for Hong Kong Profits FREBNESHEE
Tax for the year 1,028 481
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT E SR SR (604) (77)
424 404
Balance of Profits Tax recoverable BREBEEE W ERE
relating to prior year, net Biaser 358 (2,799) (3,277)
(2,375) (2,873)
Representing: 15
Current tax recoverable AT U Bl BN ERFR 18 (3,514) (4,726)
Current tax payable FERTBNVERTR IR 1,139 1,853
(2,375) (2,873)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K ZA488A5) » LAETTE51)

7 INCOME TAX (Continued) 7 R E)
(c) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (c) HEMBMRARANWAMESR (&)
financial position: (Continued)
(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities: (i) EZEHREEEREE:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities BRERA ISR R R AR E!’JLL
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BIE(EE) " AENEKRDS
position and the movements during the year are as FRMEEHOT -
follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related
Deferred tax arising from: depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BHHR
REUTSEMELHE TENRERE HIEEE Httr @t
$000 $000 $000 $000
T Fr T Fr
At 1 January 2020 —2-%45-f-R 4,444 (39,049) 98 (34,507)
Credited to profit or loss Taﬁﬁﬂq A (442) (21,399) - (21,841)
At 31 December 2020 and E’L = ¢+ R=t+-A
1 January 2021 —2--4%-f-H 4,002 (60,448) 98 (56,34)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss Wﬁ!\ﬁﬁﬂq HA)/H% (1,414) 3,003 - 1,589
At 31 Decernber 2021 R=Z-—%+-A=+-H 2,568 (57,445) % (54,759)
2021 2020
=B —F ZETF
$’°000 $°000
Tr T
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE BB EA
in the consolidated statement TERAEER IR
of financial position BEFE (57,445) (60,448)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 4z /m\ AR ERA
in the consolidated statement RAVIEER IR
of financial position E{ R EE 2,686 4,100
(54,759) (56,348)
(d) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), (d) RIBEFOBTEE 1( )Fﬁ?ﬁﬁ’]/’\?rftﬁl” AR
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect EEMBREEEREEMES - TXA
of cumulative tax losses of $2,479,000 (2020: $2,886,000) as geE T A LHR%JEETEW*XHE%E?EW '
it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the Eﬂ$%liﬁ?ﬁ,\§+$%15)§§T§ 2,479,000
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax B (ZZTZZF 1 2,886,000/ 70) R
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses arising from Hong Kong FERIBEE - RIBRTHBHEL - &
operations do not expire under current tax legislation. B ETEFTE £ BIE BB A E T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+E8A51 - LABTZ51)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EFFM

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the BIEEB(CREEN)E383(1) kR A E (FE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EENGERROIZ 2R EMBRECEEH
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation BZAT -

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E_-Ft-A=t+-HLEE

Basic salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
BEXES - 2H
EEHe RENFE MERA  RIAGHEIMN st
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chan Ki Chun BEz A - 1,585 - 73 1,658
Mr. Chan Chor Tung’ B - 1,499 - 69 1,568
Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William BRELLE - 1,248 - 58 1,306
Mr. Yung Kim Man NIkt - 1,592 50 72 1,714
Independent non-executive B FHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon BRI %A 100 - - - 100
Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick ~ &Zh5t 54 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun MRERE 100 - - - 100
Total Bzt 300 5,924 50 272 6,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K ZA488A5) » LAETTE51)
8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EFHME

Year ended 31 December 2020
HEZS-ZFT-A=-+-HIEE

Basic salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
EAES 28
2 RENH= WEEL  RIRGHEIS 26
$000 $000 $000 $000 $ 000
T T T T T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan Ki Chun BEELE - 1,685 - 73 1,658
Mr. Chan Chor Tung? BREREES - 1,586 - 73 1,659
Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, Wiliam BRELE - 1,248 - 58 1,306
Mr. Yung Kim Man AL - 1,592 - 72 1,664
Independent non-executive ~ BIYEHITEES
directors
Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon [l e 120 - - - 120
Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick 25t 4 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun MRBLE 120 - - - 120
Total st 360 6,011 - 276 6,647
# Resigned on 10 December 2021. ! R-ZZ—F+=ATHEHE -
Notes Bt 5
0] No director received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join 0] FR - HEEEFAEEWIERES - EARN
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year ASMAREE 2N EESIEABRBRBEZST
(2020: $Nil). No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the ZEFE)c FN - MEEEHEIRBERER
year (2020: $Nil). e (ZE=FF : §) -
(ii) The Company did not grant any share options for the purchase of ordinary (ii) FR - ARV ERLTAERAEERAQRLR
shares in the Company during the year (2020: $Nil). RRHBERRIE (T F - )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% %A 58351

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three directors

9

A M BRERNE

- BT 25)

AL
BT ATH BZRAESR(ZZE=Z

(2020: three) whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The F:=4)" ?&%E’J%M\EFW%SEPEL% EE
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2020: HNRE(ZEZF - ME) ALHFMemEm
two) individuals are as follows: I
2021 2020
$°000 $ 000
Ft Tt
Basic salaries, allowances and EX%HE - EMK
benefits in kind B 2,835 2,919
Discretionary bonuses B IEAL - 108
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET B 5R 81 72
2,916 3,099
The emoluments of the two (2020: two) individuals with the highest SHOME(ZEZZF : MB)EEF AT
emoluments are within the following bands: BAAE LA T 6
2021 2020
=—f —EEF
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A AE
Nil to $1,000,000 Z % 1,000,0007% 7T - -
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 2 1

$1,500,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000

1,500,001 % 7T % 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 /7T & 2,500,000 7T

= 1

Note: No individual received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the
year (2020: $Ni).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $17,426,000 (2020: loss of $19,027,000) and
400,000,000 shares (2020: 400,000,000 shares) in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

There were no potential dilutive shares in existence during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

— = -

MizE . R BETAERNATRBRAEBRTMME -
YERMMA S AZRE B4 B SR S Ve R BB A (8
ZE-TF | o

10 SEREF (HER)

=

— R | FREE

(a) EREXEF(EHHE)

BRERAF,(EE) THREARA A
B h%ﬁﬁmﬂﬂ4%0%%mb‘
T—EE : [51819,027,00087T) U R E
T 21T % 17 400,000,000 8 (—E - F
£ 400,000,000 %) 5t & o

(b) EREBBRR (FE)

REE-ZT-_—R-Z-_TF+_-A
=t—RALFE  WEBEEEERND -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K ZA488A5) » LAETTE51)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 %X BEREME
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREIEMVEIER
Properties Machinery
leased for and Motor Furniture
own use equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
REEANNE  HERRE RE BRREE @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr T Fr T Fr
Cost: B
At 1 January 2021 WZEZ—%—Ff—H 79,798 41,561 81,021 11,222 213,602
Additions NE 29,699 1,896 6,263 4,669 42,527
Disposals HE (74,095) (1,245) (8,406) (7,603) (91,349)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+-A=1t-H 35,402 42,212 78,878 8,288 164,780
Accumulated depreciation:  RiHfE .
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—%—F—H 30,550 20,830 60,917 5,635 117,932
Charge for the year FRTHE 17,066 13,497 9,963 1,715 42,241
Written back on disposals i E B B[] (39,824) (1,139) (7,785) (3,957) (52,699)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—
+-A=1t-H 7,792 33,194 63,095 3,393 107,474
Net book value: REEE:
At 31 December 2021 RZZE-—F
+-A=+—H 27,610 9,018 15,783 4,895 57,306
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARA B IS HRAR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+E8A51 - LABTZ51)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 Y% - BER®EW (&)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued) (a) EREIEMEER(Z)
Properties Machinery
leased for and Motor Furniture
own use equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
MEERNME  BEREE nE BRREE ot
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZF—F[—H 82,139 22,582 88,467 11,411 204,599
Additions AE 2,368 21,751 999 - 25,618
Disposals HE (5,209) 2,772) (8,445) (189) (16,615)
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEF
+-A=+-H 79,798 41,561 81,021 11,222 213,602
Accumulated depreciation: ZHTE:
At 1 January 2020 R-E-S4-F—-A 17,450 14,533 58,486 3,834 94,303
Charge for the year FREE 18,309 9,069 10,849 1,990 40217
Written back on disposals HERAD (5,200) (2,772) (8,418) (189) (16,588)
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEF
+-A=+—-H 30,550 20,830 60,917 5,635 117,932
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF
+-A=t—H 49,248 20,731 20,104 5,587 95,670
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K ZA488A5) » LAETTE51)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 Y% - BER®EW (2

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets, BITERAVR ZAEREES HHFER
carried at depreciated cost, by class of underlying asset is as BEERMFENSTOT :
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
Note $°000 $°000
B aE Ft T
Properties leased for own use THIEBAMWE 0] 27,610 49,248
Machinery and equipment e YN ] (ii) 5,037 15,335
32,647 64,583
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised RERRRZHEMRBORZIEE M
in profit or loss is as follows: [N
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
$°000 $°000
FT FT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets &I EE D FENFREZED
by class of underlying asset: WEER:
Properties leased for own use HIEEB R 17,066 18,309
Machinery and equipment 28 Rk 11,395 6,568
28,461 24,877
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) HEBEHE (MHiEe@) 1,604 1,727
Expense relating to short-term leases B AR EEEMNAY 25,336 22,091
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARA B IS HRAR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions to right-
of-use assets were $30,795,000 (2020: $23,260,000). This
amount related to the capitalised lease payments payable
under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 16(d) and 19,
respectively.

@

(i)

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its head office and site offices through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 6 years.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the end of the contract term.
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such
extension options exercisable by the Group to provide
operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. If the Group is not
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options,
the future lease payments during the extension periods
are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities.

Other leases

The Group leases machinery and equipment under
leases expiring from 1 to 3 years. Some leases include
an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated.

— = -

=

(BmHEAN - UWETZ)

11 %  BEREME &)

(b)

— R | FREE

EREEE (&)

BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HILFE "
{5 FAREE EEIN30,795,000F T (=& =
T4F 1 23,260,000 70) © %5 IE TH AT
HEHRZBTEEENMENEMNEES
RERM -

FEHEReRLARLEEAEDY
BRE DM ZFF BT BB EE 16(d)
19 e

() HEFBEBRABWE

AEEFEEBEEHAESEMYE
B R RER @ = & T
RE - —RERT - ZFHEDS
HIR 1 E65F »

MAOMERREANMREREZE
SEUENRERE - EATHE
AT NEBE KB EAREE AT
VBT E B - URHEEER
1% o AEBREERKG BB GE
BRIERETEERERE - i
SETGEABEETTEERRE
% RIEEEE A ARREE RN
FAAHEREBEWRE

(i) HiHEE

AEEHERYM 1 EIFREHDN
Wes e - MOMERS —HA
REFNHEPTA KR ETHAER
1 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K ZA488A5) » LAETTE51)

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 HIREBAFRKRE
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries as at 31 TREFRZZEZ—FF+_A=+—HKHBXR
December 2021, all of which are private companies and the class A2 BREBABEEAIN - THMEHRBAR
of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. BHELERT AMFRO BN R EER

Percentage of ownership interest

FERERA DL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s Held Held
establishment paid-up capital/ effective by the bya
Name of company and business registered capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
EMEKL,/ KL BRTRBERA e 1| WE
DEER REEHY SMERFHE BEREE ALRES DARE TEER
Bestwise Envirotech Limited Hong Kong 200,578,047 shares 100% - 100%  Electrical and mechanical
engineering
BEEREEERAR A 200,578,047 i 100% - 100% HKETR
Bestwise — SFK Joint Venture® Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
BE— iR & TER 100% - 100% LTAIE
BML Engineering Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - 100%  Supply and installation
BXLTIRBRAA A 100/ 100% - 100% HEREE
BML Engineering (Macao) Limited" Macau 1 share of MOP25,000 100% - 100%  Supply and installation
XETROEF) —ABRRA) R 1kEE 100% - 100% fEREE
AP 25,000 TAIR 1
Build.it Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 80% - 80%  Consultancy services
BEERERBRAR 0 100K 80% - 80% EERERHG
Chit Cheung Construction Company Limited  Hong Kong 1,677,000 shares 100% - 100%  Construction and
civil engineering
REREERAT B0 1,577,000 100% - 100% RBERIATIRE
Consent Consultants Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Project consultancy services
FEERERAR )6 1k 100% - 100%  JHEBERS
ELM Keen Limited British Virgin Islands 100 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
G IN EBARRNS 100 & 100% - 100%  REEK
HE1ETHRG
Everfirst Profits Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Everfirst Profits Limited RBRRRES 1REREE 100% - 100%  #RERR
1ETHRN
High Horse Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RRERERATEE RBURRRES 10,000 R &R 100% - 100%  #RERR
HE1ETHRN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

,_\_|
\\/T\

B MWK Wt

(BmHEAN - UWETZ)

12 RIEBATRRE (&)

Percentage of ownership interest

FEREZA DL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s Held Held
establishment paid-up capital/ effective by the bya
Name of company and business registered capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
EMAYL/ BT BRTRBRRA/ rEE WS
NEER REXBH aMERFE BERER ALORERE DARE  TEXE
High Regard Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BRERERAT EBARRNS 1REME 1 E AR 100% - 100%  #HERR
Intercede International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Intercede Intemational Limited REEAREE 1REE ETHRG 100% - 100% HEER
Media Engineering Company Limited Hong Kong 8,500,000 shares 100% - 100%  Road construction works
PERBIRARAF & 8,500,000 100% - 100% BRREIR
Sun Fook Kong — Bestwise Joint Venture”  Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
Sun Fook Kong - Bestwise Joint Venture® &% TaA 100% - 100% LtAIE
Sun Fook Kong (Civi) Limited Hong Kong 13,000,000 shares 100% - 100%  Civil engineering and
maintenance
HiEA (IAR)ARAA 0 13,000,000 100% - 100% +tATIRRRE
Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited Hong Kong 4,440,000 shares 100% - 100%  Building construction and
maintenance
MEBRERR 6 4,440,000 i 100% - 100% BFRERRE
Sun Fook Kong Construction Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100%  Project management services
Management Limited
HEETRRHEERR, B 10,000 100% - 100% JEEERRHG
Sun Fook Kong E & M Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 4,700,000 shares 100% - 100%  Hiring out of plant and
machinery and undertaking
electrical installation work
HEAKIIRERAR B 4,700,000 100% - 100%  HHmE RESHER
AEERLETR
Sun Fook Kong Engineering Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 shares 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
MEAIREBRAA £ 2,000,000 i 100% - 100% AT
Sun Fook Kong Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 10,400 shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding and
US$1 each building construction
MEAERERAR EEERRES 10,400 R 5% 100% 100% - REBRRETRE
HE1ETHRG
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= A

IRAA

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12
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B 7% ¥R & M &

(BAEEBIN - LUBETTZ)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

12 REEATMRE (@)

Percentage of ownership interest

FERESAE DL

Place of Particulars of

incorporation/ issued and Group’s Held Held

establishment paid-up capital/ effective by the bya
Name of company and business registered capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities

EMAYL/ BT BERTRBRRA/ s 3] HE
NEER REXBH aMERFE EREE ALREE DARE  TEXE
Sun Fook Kong Housing Services Limited Hong Kong 75,200,000 shares 100% - 100%  Housing management services
FRAEFREARAR )6 75,200,000 i 100% - 100% RBEEERH
SFK Housing Services (China) Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
HREETRE (TE)BRAF B 10,000 100% - 100% ®ERR
Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture® Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Construction and

civil engineering
BN YN ) TER 100% - 100% RERTATRE
EMNEaREERRHERAT" The PRC Renminbi (‘RMB’) 80% - 80%  Consultancy services
300,000,000
BN SRR AR e ARE(TARE]) 80% - 80%  EERERHG
3,000,0007T
# These entities are unincorporated bodies. ' ZEER TR AL -
* These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises. - REERRBIEHERR
» These entities are not audited by KPMG. REABRERFHG TR FHAER -
ZEREETREAMEBMERZMEART

The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG
reflect total net assets and total revenue constituting approximately

0.3% and 0.05% respectively of the related consolidated totals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

e VB

iy 2% BT A

(BmHEAN - UWETZ)

13 INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND 13 REERINESREBEREELERR
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE |
(a) Interestin a joint venture and amount due from a (@) REELENRZREREELE
joint venture FIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Share of net liabilities (note (i) e FEE () (20,419) (18,121)
Amount due from a joint venture (note (i)  FEULE & 1b 2 FRIE (5T (i) 2,996 4,107
Notes: BT
(i) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has recognised its 0] KRB R -_FF+-_A=1+—
share of net liabilities in a joint venture as the Group has provided H NEEBCDHRERAELEELRTA
guarantees in respect of bank loans of the joint venture. G BERAKREBEDHRESESDENETE
FIRHAEIR o
(ii) The amount due from a joint venture is interest-free, unsecured and (ii) ERAEREREBE S - #EF N AR
recoverable on demand. TR -
Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is AEBREEDENEBSEARESEE
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated SEBEHRERYIEE - BN ¢

financial statements, are as follows:

Percentage of ownership interest

FEREREL
Form of Place of Group’s Held Held
business incorporation effective by the by a
Name of joint venture structure and business interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
il r&EE
RELELRE EBRER REXBH BERER ARARE WELRARE IEXY
Sun Fook Kong — Kun Fai Engineering Incorporated Macau 40% - 40%  Building construction and
and Construction Co., Ltd. public works
(“Sun Fook Fong — Kun Fa”)
MEE - RERETIRERLF RaliZAv iy 40% - 40% BTRERAHIR

([#ek — &=

Sun Fook Fong — Kun Fai, the only joint venture in which the

AEE2HENE-SELERBE — ﬁé

Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose BRIEmSmENIEETEEELS
quoted market price is not available.

TE_—FRI|FEEEREE
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e B R R M

IRAA

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K ZA488A5) » LAETTE51)

13
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INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND 13 REERIINESRERSELER
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) (%)
(@) Interestin a joint venture and amount due from a (@) REELENBEZREREELE
joint venture (Continued) MIE (&)
Summarised financial information of Sun Fook Kong — Kun s — EENMEEREE (B
Fai, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a FREFTBEER) BiRA B BHREE
reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated HEMEREENT
financial statements, are disclosed below:
2021 2020
$000 $ 000
Tr Tt
Gross amounts of the joint venture’'s &8 4%
Current assets mENEE 265,826 317,120
Non-current assets FEREEE 201 203
Current liabilities nEaE (307,291) (352,842)
Deficit B4t (41,264) (35,519)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: (A Lt EER & E -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMESEEY 716 2,289
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade & & ptBE (TEREENE S
and other payables and provisions) AR 3K B EL A JE A5 SR TE R ) (65,582) (10,118)
Revenue Wz 1,368,617 1,057,055
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive FR(EE),HF R
income for the year FHEW B (5,745) 3,358
Reconciled to the Group’s interestin BEXREEREE DY
the joint venture FEREER
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s BETEFEELTE
net liabilities (41,264) (85,519)
Group’s proportionate guarantee REE WL HIERE T (M)
obligation (note) 40% 40%
Group’s share of the joint venture’s net REBREE LD ERIERRE
liabilities arising from guarantees ERARMELGELEZFAE
provided to the joint venture’s obligation (16,506) (14,208)
Group’s additional guarantee obligation 7N B FEIMER T TS (K15E)
(note) (3,913) (3,913)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest N B A REE (20,419) (18,121)

Note: Notwithstanding the Group disposed of 10% of the interest in a joint
venture at a consideration of MOP10,000 in 2020, the Group continued
to provide guarantees in respect of bank loans of the joint venture
based on its original 50% ownership interest in the joint venture as
mentioned in note 22(b).
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13 INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND 13 REERIINESRERSELER

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) | (%)

(b) Interest in joint operations (b) REEEKNER
In addition to the joint venture as listed in note 13(a), the FRETEE13@) FToI & &5 - AEE T
Group has also established joint arrangements with outside BHEINAEBEMAKERZHE  Uad
contractors to undertake civil engineering in the form of joint EBME RN EE LARTRE - RIEHE -
operations. In accordance with the agreements, the decisions HZEEEHELTHERNARER=E
about relevant activities in these entities require unanimous BEGIENS T —BRRABBSAEER
consent of the parties sharing control and, therefore EmEEESERIRERESEEBAR -
management has accounted for the investments as joint
operations.
Details of the Group’s interest in the material joint operations, REERNEKREEEFBHREBRELES
all of which are accounted for using the line-by-line basis to REERGLEBHNERTER  HiEm
the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint operations, are EI=S NN
as follows:

Percentage of ownership interest

FERERAAL

Form of Place of Group’s Held Held

business incorporation effective by the bya
Name of joint operation structure and business interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities

A r58

REERER ERERE REEHH ERER AQRBE WEBLAANE IEER
CEC — CCC Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 40% - 40%  Civil engineering
ABETR - RER4NE \EAMA B 40% - 40%  TAIR
Fujita — Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 50% - 50%  Civil engineering
Fujita - Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture &5 NAL 5% 50% - 50%  tARIR
SFK — CEC Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 51% - 51%  Civil engineering
SFK - CEC Joint Venture &5 AL B 51% - 51% TARIE
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CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

14 aHRERSWAR

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
$°000 $'000
Ft Tt
Contract assets EHEE
Avrising from performance under EEITREEHNES
construction contracts 1,033,739 1,115,690
Contract liabilities EHEE
Construction contracts BEAHN
— Billings in advance of performance — BiTETR R IE 160,533 189,103
The Group’s construction contracts normally include payment AEBZEANBEBREENAME RS
schedules which require stage payments over the construction T ERE 5K 55&( ERRER) © Jﬂ:vﬁn

period once milestones are reached. These payment schedules
prevent the build-up of significant contract assets. The Group also
typically agrees to a one to two years retention period for 1% to
10% of the contract value. This amount is included in contract
assets until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the Group’s work
satisfactorily passing inspection.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the rights
are conditioned on the Group’s future performance. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The decrease in contract assets in 2021 was mainly
the result of the decrease in the provision of construction services
at the end of the year. The amount of contract assets that is
expected to be recovered after more than one year is $89,732,000
(2020: $87,727,000), all of which relates to retentions. All of the
other contracts assets are expected to be recovered within one
year.
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14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 14 E¥VEERSVARE)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group’s obligation to EHBETEAAEERNEFPERRBMNER
transfer services to customers for which the Group has received B AEEERRFWEFEMN R EER —F
advanced payments from the customers and will be recognised as NIERAHBA - FRERNFEVFTAGHAR
income within one year. The amount of revenue recognised during H UL %56 %8 4 188,398,000 7T (— T — T 4F -
the year that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning 150,425,000 7C) « BLEAR P HEFTNE —54)
of the year is $188,398,000 (2020: $150,425,000). The amount of BFEEFAGHNAEBERTBEBA—FRIK
retentions receivable included in contract liabilities on a net basis B/ FEUIR £ © 58 /571,009,0008 L (=F
for a single contract with the customer that is expected to be —EZ4F 42,887,000 ) - FEEIFT A H M A
recovered after more than one year is $71,009,000 (2020: HBEBEBR—FRRE -

15

$42,887,000). All of the other contract liabilities are expected to be
recovered within one year.

The amount of revenue recognised during the year from FA - BERBABRMDER (KB BDENK) E
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous Z’J f EHERH = £ % 466,510,000 T (=
periods is $66,510,000 (2020: $51,884,000), mainly due to the T -FF :51,884,0008L) TEZHRE
changes in estimate of the transaction price of certain construction TREENNZZERNMETEBA -
contracts.
TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BRBRSHER HEBKRZRRARETRAMS
AND PREPAYMENTS ®IE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
$°000 $000
FT Tz
Trade debtors FEUE SRR RN 351,135 373,590
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments E b fE I F8I8 ~ 154 N FE FRTE 36,155 23,312
Amounts due from a joint operation partner  FEIN A & B IE
(note (i) (HEEG) 273 3,487
387,563 400,389
Notes: Bt sE
0] The amounts due from a joint operation partner are interest-free, unsecured i) G EEBRHERIETE BERRTIRE
and recoverable on demand. SKU[E] o
(ii) Except for the amounts of $7,314,000 (2020: $8,209,000) which are expected (ii) $: 7,314,000 7 (= F = ZF : 8,209,000 JT.)
to be recovered after one year, all of the remaining balances of trade and other BRIETE AN — F KB - EIRE SRR
receivables are expected to be recovered within one year. HAth fEWGRIBFT A 82 T 488 TEER A — AUk al ©
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15 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BRBRSHER HEBRZRRAERAMS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) R\ (&)
Ageing analysis MRl A
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RGN - EREZEHE (SRR AH -
debtors (which are included in trade and other receivables), based NREEHE)NEWE SRR GIARKE S
on the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) is as BR X I EAth FE WK IE) BUBRER D AT ZA T
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECTF
$’000 $000
Ft T
Within 1 month 1B AR 335,253 361,461
1 to 2 months 1Z221EA 9,629 8,110
2 to 3 months 2Z31EA 2,973 856
Over 3 months but within 6 months F2im 318 AER 618 A A 3,280 3,163
351,135 373,590
Trade debtors are due within 14-45 days from the date of billing. EWE SR EREB MR 14245 RAE|H o
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising BFRAEEEEBREKRAEKVE SEREANE
from trade debtors are set out in note 21(a). ERAE —SHFERME21E)
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 16 BHERFeERYPEREMALTES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION #
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BEeRREEEBYWERE
2021 2020
=B —F T TF
$°000 $'000
F Tt
Deposits with banks within three months 78 A B =1 A 2 EREY
of maturity at acquisition IRITIF - 5,000
Cash at bank and on hand WITRFHERE 236,837 444,827
236,837 449,827
(b) Major non-cash transactions (b) FEFREXRS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no BE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HILFE
proceeds from bank loans (2020: $30,698,000) directly WEEFEBIRTERMGHIE(ZEZ
transferred to trade creditors to settle the trade balances. = 4F : 30,698,000/ 8 L) ZEE F K
These proceeds from bank loans had no cash flow impact to o LEEHE SR - ZERITERA
the Group. SHRBHAEEVERSREFE -
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 16 BeRBeSFEVREAMRERES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) #qE)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) METBFREEEENYER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from Ti% B MEETHMELEAEEAREN
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash (BIERERIREEE)FIE b
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are é EEMEABGEAEREMECKN
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will KRR REFRNAEENGEEEER
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement ERANBIEREEDMEARSRE
as cash flows from financing activities. HBafE -
Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
BITER HERE @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr
(Note 18) (Note 19)
(P& 18) (FEE19)
At 1 January 2021 W=ZB=-—-f—-H—-H 200,417 67,363 - _26_7,7_89 )
Changes from financing MERESRENEE
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank loans RITETMETIE 390,000 - 390,000
Repayment of bank loans EBERTER (508,296) - (508,296)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENAEHNERER - (27,337) (27,337)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEAfASNFIEZR - (1,604) (1,604)
Interest paid BRFE (802) = (802)
Total changes from financing BEFRETENET LS
cash flows (119,098) (28,941) (148,039)
Other changes Hith# g
Increase in lease liabilties from FREIUHMHEEHHEE
entering into new leases BEEM
during the year - 30,796 30,796
Written back of lease liabilities MEHEaE = (36,340) (36,340)
Finance costs (note 6(a)) BERAK (M5 6(a) 802 1,604 2,406
Total other changes Ei 5@ 82 (3,940 (3,138)
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-F+=-A=+-—H 82,121 34,482 116,603
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c)

16 BeRASERMRRAMRER
216 )

BMETHEERENYHRE)

mER

204

activities (Continued)

Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
RITER HEEE @it
$000 $000 $000
T T T
(Note 18) (Note 19)
(H15E18) (F35E19)
At 1 January 2020 W=-ZB-BFf-H—-H 408,464 67,619 476,083
Changes from financing MERESRENEE
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank loans REZEHE 809,436 - 809,436
Repayment of bank loans BRIBTER (1,048,181) - (1,048,181)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHESNENEER - (23,516) (23,516)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BERHESHFIERER - 1,727) (1,727)
Interest paid SRS, (10,325) - (10,325)
Total changes from financing RERENENEELEH
cash flows (249,070) (25,243) (274,313)
Other changes Hitt g
Increase in lease liabilties from FRFIUHHEEHHEE
entering into new leases BEEM
during the year - 23,260 23,260
Bank loans directly transferred to BREEZRNE SRR
trade creditors (note 16(0)) SRITEF (ML 16(0)) 30,698 - 30,698
Finance costs (note 6(a)) AR (M5E6(0) 10,325 1,727 12,052
Total other changes Hih & Ehes 41,023 24,987 66,010
At 31 December 2020 R-BE-_EE+-A=+-H 200,417 67,363 267,780

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement

(d) HERSRHAR
REEARSRERIIENAREBERR

for leases comprise the following: EEEATEE -
2021 2020
$°000 $ 000
T 7
Within operating cash flows (REIR S B NI 25,336 22,001
Within financing cash flows BER R ENRIEA 28,941 25,243
54,277 47,334
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17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

e BRI M R

(BmHEAN - UWETZ)

17 B RBERREHEMEFRET

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
$’000 $°000
Fx Tt
Trade creditors e E SRR 211,828 238,852
Accruals and other payables FERTE R R AR FRIE 535,998 652,627
Amounts due to joint operation partners B A B ESRHERA
(note (i) (BFEE () 1,062 1,062
Provision for construction works (note (i) SREE T R2RHE (IR (i) 34,332 34,594
Retentions payable FERHRFE S 337,723 340,335
1,120,943 1,267,470
Notes: BiaE -
0] The amounts due to joint operation partners are interest-free, unsecured and 0] A& EEBRERETGE  BERRARE
repayable on demand. iféi

(i

(i)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group recognises provision for
construction works when the unavoidable costs of meeting the performance
obligations under the construction contracts exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contracts. The amount of the provision is
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the net cost of continuing with the contract. The amount of
provision is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Except for the amounts of $164,914,000 (2020: $132,533,000), all of the
remaining balances of trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

(i) RZBZ—FRZF-FTF+-_A=+—RH " &
PITELESHBHEANTABERABRBAES
HTEES VS M E IR - AEBEASTEREE
TRER - BESERUKIEEHNTERR AR
%?Eﬁ HIEF AT E P ORIEENBRERT

c AEEGRHERBESE -

(i) [ 164,914,000 7T (= % = Z 4 : 132,533,000
PETT) BIFRIESN - B E B BR R R H At FE 5 FRIE
FIBE TEBRTEEREN —FR4EE -

RIEHR - ERERBHNENE SRR
FRECDMTAAT

2021 2020
—E-—F TE-FF
$’000 $°000
Fx T
Within 1 month 11EAR 137,348 139,171
1 to 2 months 1&221EA 41,304 76,651
2 to 3 months 2Z31EA 13,606 12,858
Over 3 months HBiE31E A 19,570 10,172
211,828 238,852
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18 BANK LOANS 18 ERITHER
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
$’000 $'000
FT T
Bank loans, repayable within 1 year WITER - —FARE
— Unsecured - %}RW 82,121 200,417
(@ As at 31 December 2021, the bank loans bear interest @) WN-T-——F+-A=+—7 $7&

206

ranging from 1.69% to 1.98% (2020: 1.63% to 1.69%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the banking facilities
(including bank loans and performance bonds) granted to the
Group, the Group’s joint operations and the Group’s joint
venture jointly were secured by:

(i) Assignment of project proceeds from certain
construction contracts of the Group and the Group’s
joint venture;

(i)  Pledged deposits of the Group of $20,113,000 (2020:
$20,113,000);

(iiy  Corporate guarantees provided by a subsidiary and the
joint venture partner, personal properties and pledged
deposits owned by the joint venture partner; and

(iv)  Corporate guarantees provided by the Company and
cross corporate guarantees provided by the Company
and certain subsidiaries.

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of certain covenants as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to
breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 21(b).
As at 31 December 2021, none of the covenants relating to
the drawn down facilities had been breached (2020: Nil).
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19 LEASE LIABILITIES 19 HEHEE
At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as R-B-_—E+-_AF=+—0 HEAEER
follows: THIERR AEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
$°000 $000
Tr Tt
Within 1 year —F R 13,887 27,306
After 1 year but within 2 years BE1EBER2ER 7.352 18,357
After 2 years but within 5 years BiE2FEBREER 10,743 21,700
After 5 years HBidsF 2,500 -
20,595 40,057
34,482 67,363

20

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movement in components of equity

20 #F - EmEERE
(a) HEZBIEH

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances A& B 4R /*W fE = E 0 &9 B K BR R 4
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set MREVEBRE N e R gk -
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual RAE BRI FEN R ERE
components of equity between the beginning and the end of FEESIET
the year are set out below:
The Company b /N
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
R& RRE RARE REBEF @5t
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
s T T T T T
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZTF—-A—H 40,000 82,867 81 17,774 140,722
Profit and total comprehensive FRaFREAREEE
income for the year - - - 67,229 67,229
Dividends approved in respect of  ShAT—EEHLERIE
the previous year 20(b)(ii) - - - (16,000) (16,000)
Dividends declared inrespect of ~ BEAREESIRAIRE
the current year 20(0)(i) - - - (16,000) (16,000)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-F=+—H 40,000 82,867 81 53,003 175,951
At 1 January 2021 NZZE-—%—Hf—H 40,000 82,867 81 53,003 175,951
Profit and total comprehensive FRaFREAREEE
income for the year - - - 9,790 9,790
Dividends approved in respect of  BhAT—EEHLERIE
the previous year 20(b)(ii) - - - (32,000) (32,000)
Dividends declared inrespect of ~ FEAREE SRR E
the current year 20(b)(i) - - - (8,000) (8,000)
At 31 December 2021 “B-%+-A=+-H 40,000 82,867 81 22,793 145,741
TR FHRI|IFTREEREEBRAF 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2= A & 5B 2 BT )
;2\\/ 3 Eﬁ % ¥ & |z J L
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K ZA488A5) » LAETTE51)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

20 BE - FEEREKR#)

(b) Dividends (b) KRE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the ) FRAEGZESEQATEZRRZ
Company attributable to the year B2
2021 2020
$°000 $ 000
Ft Tz
Interim dividend declared and paid of 2 &k RIER 2 # HIf% &,
2.0 cents (2020: 4.0 cents) H“ﬁ@HQZ 0
per ordinary share (Z2=ZZFF 1 4080 8,000 16,000
Final dividend proposed after the end of FA#R45 BA 7R 14 #IK {7 2 < EA
the reporting period of 3.0 cents Hx S tﬂx F3B I 8.0 811
(2020: 8.0 cents) per ordinary share ZEZF 8,081 12,000 32,000
20,000 48,000

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

(ii)

RS B R B ER T 2 REAAR B
ARBEBRERBEE -

FRRAERIRA ZA— B F G2
ENAATEERRZBE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
$°000 $000
F5 F7
Final dividend in respect of the previous FAEE A/ &I {2 B BT
financial year, approved and paid —HFEHRZ K
during the year, of 8.0 cents H" HiLS 0781l
(2020: 4.0 cents) per share ZEZFF 4.0l 32,000 16,000
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

l\‘/T\ =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

ERE R e

At
(FRBEIEHA - LABIT2)

20 BE - FEWERER#)

Share capital (c) B
2021 2020
—E--F —T-%F
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
BB EE +8 PiSnE ! %
$ $
B BT
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of $0.1 each ERAEABTZEER
At 1 January and 31 December W—A—-BE+=-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
Ordinary shares of $0.1 each BRAEIBTZERR
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—-BEk+=-A=1t—H 400,000,000 40,000,000 400,000,000 40,000,000
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LB A AR REIRARE -

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

@i

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company arose from the
Group’s reorganisation completed in January 2008.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of financial
statements of foreign operations.

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(u).
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

210

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access

to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital comprises all components
of equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.

During 2021, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2020, was to maintain its adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio not more than 55%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to

shareholders, issue new shares,

reduce debt.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+E8A51 - LABTZ51)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 20 BXx - REWEREKRE#E)

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December REBR-ZZ-Z—FR-_ZF-_TF+=A
2021 and 2020 was as follows: =T -BEMERRFEBHERLENT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFF
Note $’000 $'000
PiEE Tr FT
Bank loans RITER 18 82,121 200,417
Lease liabilities HERE 19 34,482 67,363
Total debt FEVEY 116,603 267,780
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIBESEEY 16(a) (236,837) (449,827)
Net cash FRE (120,234) (182,047)
Total equity attributable to equity 7~ A RIfE R ERE(L AR
shareholders of the Company 375,091 397,659
Net debt-to-capital ratio BEBHERLE N/ATREHA N/A T~
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to RN TN BRI B A &N AR SMNER 35 0
externally imposed capital requirements. BB 4B FEFABR o
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21

212

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and contract assets. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, which the group
considers to represent low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as set
out in note 22, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of this financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 22.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has established a credit risk management policy
under which individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 14 to 45
days from the date of biling. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Given
the customers of the Group are mainly reputable companies
and the Government of the HKSAR and its related
organisations and institutional bodies and the Group has not
experienced any significant credit losses in the past,
management considered that the exposure to credit risk is
insignificant. The Group assessed the expected credit loss
rate on trade receivables and contract assets is below 1%.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 42% (2020:
40%) and 88% (2020: 85%) of the total trade receivables and
contract assets was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
the expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding

from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

214

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting periods of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

At 31 December 2021

21

MERREEREMIALTFE®)

(b)

REBETER(E)

TRINTRMEARNEE T ES B
BEMMIESRABENBR TANIHIE
o DERAHORBARERE (B
BHONKR(METE @ BIRBEHRER
E’J?‘T'ﬁ)afiﬁ’ﬁﬂgﬁz”)&ﬂ&%EHBZ
ERMNFOEFE BB

R-B--%+ZA=+—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

EHRBEBRLRH
More than  More than
Within  1yearbut 2years but
1 year or less than less than Over Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
1A% 10 E 2P E
RERE B2FR B5FR BB5F st REE
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T
Trade and other payables B FET K
Hib R 783,220 - - - 783,220 783,220
Retentions payable ERRES 172,809 145,603 19,311 - 337,723 337,723
Bank loans RITER 82,391 - - - 82,391 82,121
Lease liabilities HEaE 14,577 7,777 11,309 2,527 36,190 34,482
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T A 2,621 178 - - 2,799 2,805
1,055,618 153,558 30,620 2,527 1,242,323 1,240,351
Financial guarantees issued B & 1B BIER
(note): (BFaE)
Maximum amount guaranteed SRS E (HiE22)
(note 22) 124,979 - - - 124,979 20,419
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2020

A M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+E8A51 - LABTZ51)

21 HMERKBEEREMIALATFEE)
(b) REBESEE)
R-ZE-_ZTHF+-A=+-—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AHRBERR LML

More than More than

Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Over Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
1FER 1 E 2F A F
REKIFF H2FR B5FA HRiR5F it REE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
i i T i i i
Trade and other payables ENE S TA&
HipERR 927,135 - - - 927,135 927,135
Retentions payable EfRES 207,802 19,966 112,567 - 340,335 340,335
Bank loans RITER 200,477 - - - 200,477 200,417
Lease liabilities HeaE 28,666 19,134 22,245 - 70,045 67,363
Derivative financial instruments 74 &gt T A 3,139 2,819 254 - 6,212 6,167
1,367,219 41,919 135,066 - 1,544,204 1,541,417
Financial guarantees issued T % H B I#ER
(note): (CEW
Maximum amount guaranteed &S 1ER S (M3t 22)
(note 22) 55,656 - - - 55,656 18,121
Note: The Group is exposed to liquidity risk that arises from guarantees in fizr : NEEEEASSOENEITREIZMHIE
respect of banking facilities of a joint venture. The guarantees are REFEENRBESRER - HEBSED

callable if the joint venture is unable to meet its obligations.
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g e
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

216

(c)

21 MERBREEREMIALTFE®)

Interest rate risk () F=mp
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash MERBA-—EHEMIENATAELK
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of IR @ 2 % B % ) 2 2 TR B
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to ERBER - AEBEFEFRIRITE
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank FBEEAFERERITRES T EERIR
borrowings, pledged deposits and cash at banks. Interest emEMEER - KMARBRBRITERD
rate risk on bank deposits is considered immaterial and FIERBITAEKX - B W EBEHA
therefore have been excluded from the sensitivity analysis ATEREEDN - WA RKEKEE -
below. If interest rate fluctuates significantly, appropriate PG REEZ SRR RER -
measures would be taken to manage interest risk exposure.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly AEENHEeRENERREEZEFR
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank FRARRITIERMEENEBRITR
Offered Rate arising from its variable-rate bank borrowings. EW/ERE o REBEF BRITEREF]
The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing EREBIGHAITE WK T 1855 o
bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.
() Interest rate risk profile (i) F=EER
The following table, as reported to the management of WA EEEEEMRE - TRF
the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the BN S B 0 R HA R A 1 SR A1 =
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period: BN
2021 2020
—B--F —E-TF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount  interest rate Amount
BRFIE Kok YRS Gk
% $°000 % $'000
Tr T
Fixed rate borrowings: ERNRER
Lease liabilities HEaE 25 34,482 2.5 67,363
Interest rate swap ) 2 4 1 1.74 200,000 1.74 200,000
234,482 267,363
Variable rate borrowings: SEFIZ{E
Bank loans RITER 1.81 82,121 1.66 200,417
Interest rate swap | 2 451 B 0.16 (200,000) 0.18 (200,000)
Net exposure [\ B 5 58 (117,879) 417
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points (2020: 100 basis
points) in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s
result after taxation and retained profits by
approximately $984,000 (2020: decreased/increased
the Group’s result after taxation and retained profits by
$3,000) in response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-rate
bank borrowings held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s result after
taxation and retained profits is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as 2020.

(d) Currency risk

The Group owns assets and conducts its business primarily
in Hong Kong with its cash flows substantially denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency
risk as substantially all the transactions are either
denominated in the functional currency of the entity or in
Unites States dollars, where Hong Kong dollars is pegged to
United States dollars, the resulting currency risk is considered
insignificant.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

218

(e)

Fair values

@

(i1)

Financial instrument measured at fair value

The Group’s derivative financial instrument of interest
rate swap is measured using discounted cash flow
methodology. The discount rate used is derived from
the relevant yield curve as at the end of the reporting
period plus an adequate constant credit spread. This
derivative financial instrument falls within Level 2 fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, nor transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). The Group’s policy is
to recognise transfers between the levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

(@)

As at 31 December 2021, approximately $280,579,000 (2020:
$271,757,000) of performance bonds were given by financial
institutions to the Group in favour of the Group’s customers
as security for the due performance and observance of the
Group’s obligation under the contracts entered into between
the Group and their customers. The Group has provided
guarantees of the above performance bonds. If the Group
fails to provide satisfactory performance to their customers to
whom performance bonds have been given, such customers
may demand the financial institutions to pay to them the sum
or sums stipulated in such demand. The Group will then
become liable to compensate such financial institutions
accordingly. The performance bonds will be released upon
completion of the contract works. The performance bonds
were granted under the banking facilities with details as set
out in note 18(b).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has provided
guarantees of $177,951,000 (2020: $141,544,000)
representing a 50% proportionate guarantee in respect of
certain banking facilities of $355,902,000 (2020:
$283,087,000) granted to its joint venture in Macau. The 50%
proportionate facilities were utilised to the extent of
$124,979,000 (2020: $55,656,000), of which amounts of
$92,090,000 (2020: $51,044,000) represent performance
bonds given by financial institutions to the customers of the
joint venture.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as their fair values cannot be
reliably measured using observable market data and no
transaction price was incurred.
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FIVANETEENER - AEEE A
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RBEHR ARREERBRT KR8
SEHHAKERENHR

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—80" &%
B2 #£177,951,0008 L ( T T4 :
141,544,0008 70 ) B IER - HE R E
TRMEAELEZETRITRE
355,902,000 7Tw( = T = T F:
283,087,000 7T ) #150% Lk, 7 4 1x -
50% Lt 5l g4 & B E) A 124,979,0007% 7T
(ZZ —F % :55656,000/8 L) &
F92,090,0008 jo( = & = T F:
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22 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(@)

The subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in a number of
claims, lawsuits and potential claims relating to employee’s
compensation cases and personal injuries claims. The
directors of the Company considered that the possibility of
any economic outflow in settling the legal claims is remote as
these claims are all well covered by insurance. Accordingly,
no provision for the contingent liabilities in respect of these
litigations is necessary, after due consideration of each case.

A subsidiary of the Group is defendant in several arbitration
proceedings relating to projects performed. With reference to
legal opinions obtained, the directors of the Company
considered that the possibility of any economic outflow in
settling such arbitration proceedings is remote. Accordingly,
no provision for the contingent liabilities in respect of such
arbitration proceedings is necessary, after due consideration
of each case.

23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

220

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note 8
and certain of the highest paid employees and senior
management as disclosed in note 9.

22 MERHERERARE)

(d)

AEEMBARAAHERMERDR
AFBERENZARE  FRLEE
REMRSE - ARAEERR REH
REZRRE  BRZEERREEE
A EY R BERRCT- B At
EERBZERMNRRS  HERK
AR RA B BEIELEE -

3
HE
7 ST

AT

AEE-HMNBEARAETKER SR
ZRAHBEFOERES - K2ECES
ERER  ARREERR BRZEF
TREIE B A R O AT RE1E T H
e Bt - BREEEBEARIIERRS
BEARZSHREFHBENIAAEE
e

23 EXRABHBRS

(a)

TEEEASHEH
AEEETREEABNFHM(EECHT
BEENFE)RMESHE  MiETRS
HES ReRERENH T OME -

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

$°000 $'000

Ft Tz

Short-term employee benefits SE Y= FER 16,206 18,672
Discretionary bonus EIBIEAL 50 -
Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 7 620 688
16,876 19,360

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

Except for the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had no transactions
with the related parties during the current and prior years.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
related party transactions falls under definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group contributes to an Occupational Retirements Scheme
(the “ORSO Scheme”), a defined contribution retirement scheme,
which is available to some of its employees in Hong Kong. Under
the ORSO Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5%
of their monthly salaries, while the Group’s contributions are
calculated at 5% of the monthly salaries of the employees as well.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions
after 10 years of completed service, or at a reduced scale after
completion of 3 to 9 years’ service. Contributions to the ORSO
Scheme are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the Group’s
contributions.

A mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) has been
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance in December 2000. The then existing
employees of the Group in Hong Kong could elect to join the MPF
Scheme, while all new employees joining the Group in Hong Kong
from then onwards are required to join the MPF Scheme. Both the
Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of each
individual’s relevant income with a maximum amount of $1,500 per
month as a mandatory contribution. Employer’s mandatory
contributions are 100% vested in the employees as soon as they
are paid to the MPF Scheme. Senior employees may also elect to
join Mutual Voluntary Plan in which both the Group and the
employees, on top of the MPF Scheme mandatory contributions,
make a voluntary contribution to the extent of contributions that
would have been made under the ORSO Scheme.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by the appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K ZA488A5) » LAETTE51)

25 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 25 LAFEEMBKRE

POSITION

2021 2020
=F=—F —TTF
Note $’°000 $000
B 5E Fx Tt
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries NGOk 20,081 20,081
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGIE /e 125,494 155,610
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEEY 192 279
125,686 155,889
Current liability REBAE
Other payables H e FUR 26 19
Net current assets RBEEFE 125,660 165,870
NET ASSETS EEFE 145,741 175,951
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARREE 20
Share capital A% 20(c) 40,000 40,000
Reserves 1 105,741 135,951
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEE 145,741 175,951

26 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 26 HWEMERFARER

REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 20(b)(i).

RREHRE  EFERERAHRE - #—
S5 R AR A R BE BT RE 20(0)(i) ©

27 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 27 EHERERHEEHZAS
PARTY

At 31 December 2021, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Sun Fook Kong
Group Limited, which is incorporated in British Virgin Islands, and
Mr. Lo Kai Shui respectively. They do not provide financial
statements available for public use.

RZEBEZ—F+-A=+—H E=RR K
SENEZ SRR R&EEFTT DB AR EE
HARBREEMKINFRESEERAF R
BRIREE - MELARRHARARALERN
BB TSR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+E8A51 - LABTZ51)

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

28 ERHERKXREBE—S-_—F1+=

R=+—HILLEEEMAERT  H#E
ARBRETRBEHTEE

BEZEUBHRERTEZR  TESHNAE
ERMBEREE_T_—F+_A=1+—H
IEFE H AR EREER] e — BRI - FAERS
BMEERNENT - REEEA - MZFHBER
R BIRNZFERT LML - ZERRERE
HAKEREE A TSR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 BB #E
RN ETHI—REN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, F?eference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BB B mEERNEIRHER] - Bl EZE R e —E-F—-H—AH
Amendments to HKAS 16, Propen‘y, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022

BEEGERNE16RINER] - WF - BB KRR E - (EEEFREFIPTFAE —E--F—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract 1 January 2022

BRGFHERNEI7TRNER] - BEEL — BITEHIAIKAK —E-_F—H—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
ERMBREEN T \FE_Z_ZFEHNFELCE —E-__F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
BEEGERNE1RNER] - BESHERBREXIETH —E-=%—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023
BREGFERNE 1R REBVBRELNEBRAE 2RNEF] - S5 HEKE —E-=F—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Deﬁnition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
EE G ERIE8IRMER] - FETEFTAESR —T-_=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising 1 January 2023
from a single transaction

AR ERE12RNER] FHE X ZEFNEERBENELHE —E-=F—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the REER FHETERZSIERN & XMER M
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of M 25 Rt AEBRRBERMZEZEE]
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them N BRI TN KA e ¥ 4R & M T EXNE R
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial 2o

statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFEHHEHRE

The summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the A&EERFFESERMBRERNZO A ENBEE
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the audited HSGAXEAREERBENBEHIIWT
financial statements is set out below:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS RAaRK

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—t%F ZFT/\F ZTNF ZTTF ZFB-—F
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HKEO000  HKEO000  HK$000
TATT THT THT FBT &7

Revenue Wz 4,611,972 6,197,164 5,461,871 3,772,118 3,624,511
Gross profit/(loss) EF(EH) 247,159 273,176 75,149 (39,917) 85,713
Profit/(loss) for the year FERMN/ (&) 142,691 129,321 (29,402) (18,974) 18,001
Attributable to: FE1h -
Shareholders of the Company &R FIAXE 141,874 129,689 (28,827) (19,027) 17,426
Non-controlling interests FEfE 817 (369) (575) 53 575

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY FARE ARRER

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—tF ZFT/\F ZTNF ZTTF ZF-—F
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HKEO000  HKE000  HK$000
TAT TAT THT TAT &

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE 68,169 79,497 150,554 157,327 115,960
Current assets RENEE 1,845,550 2,079,893 2,231,062 1,994,852 1,684,762
Total assets BEmRE 1,913,719 2,159,390 2,381,616 2,152,179 1,800,722
LIABILITIES &f&
Current liabilities mEAE 1,435,473 1,660,893 1,879,194 1,710,437 1,401,847
Non-current liabilities EMBAE 3,451 4,717 54,253 44,157 23,281
Total liabilities B EEEE 1,438,924 1,665,610 1,933,447 1,754,594 1,425,128
EQUITY R
Total equity attributable A B FELS
to shareholders of HEmiEEE
the Company 473,991 493,343 448,308 397,659 375,091
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 804 437 (139) (74) 503
Total equity MR 4AEE 474,795 493,780 448,169 397,585 375,594
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